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3 0 100 "̂c POWDER RIVER B.\S1N WESTFRN SUBnT.-MlKOUS COAL DISCL'S ÎON 

3.1 Common Systems 

3.1.1 Coal Yard 

3.1.1 1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

The predicted effects of handling Power River Basin (PRB) coal in the cca! --'rd were developed from 
an interview with Plant Operations, the Pi-edicted Perfonnance Summa 7 a.̂ d die Coal Reclaim and 
Conveyor System ReJiatjiiity Improvement Study done for IPL by SWEC n. "̂ 88. 

The focus of the evaluation centered on; 

• Stockpile Capacity 

o Train Deliveries 

Belt Capacity 

Existing Handling Sysiem Probleiios o 

3.1.1.2 Stockpile Capacity 

The available information indicates that switching to PRB coai will not reduce the existing stockpile 
capacity 10 any great extent. SWEC recommends live itorage bt provided by storage silos of 64 hours 
duration. The silos would be ot the mass flow type providing first i i-first out flow. The location of the 
silos and associated conveying systems will reduce storage to the north and northeast of the existing 
reclaim hopper. 

Dead storage, for emergency use onlv, is provided in a compacted pile. 

This pile must be Uid down in shallow lifts and must be heavily compacted with dozers and scrapus. 
The pile must be monitored with inlrared detection devices to discover any thermal hot spots which must 
be removed, extinguished and recompacted. Live storage is provided for a weekend of 64 hours 
duration. Tiit handling capacity h designed to operate for rwo shifts per day six days per week with 
reclaim on two shifts per day seven days per week. 
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3.1.1.3 Train Deliveries 

Assuming that the units are base loaded, 100 ton 100 railcar unit trains will b. .-t̂ uired six days a week. 
Use of tht; existing unloading system, without any upgrading of eruiprent. will require 12.5 hours to 
unload the unit train. This assumption does not allow time for ihe s vitchi.ig of empty raiicars for loaded 
raiicars. Frozen railcar ' eliveries and use of the car thaw sy.ner.i will increase the unloading .ime 
required . 

3.1.1.4 Belt Capacity 

Use ofthe existing belt conveyor system, without modifications, will require bunkering for 10.75 hours 

per day. Load reductions maybe required if an equipment failure occurs and is not easily repaired. 

3.1.1.5 Existing Handling System Conditions 

The use of PRB coal at Stout Station will require major system modifications, many of them have been 

identified in our 1988 study. 

PRB coal, because of its reactive and dusty nawre. requires special handling to avoid spontaneous 
combustion and dust explosions. Tbe chutes, storage hopp;rs, silos, storage bunkers, and other coal 
handling equipment should be designed to be self cleaning with steep valley angles so lhat the coal will 
not accumulate. Dust coUtciion must be well designed ard maintained. 

Much of the existing coal handling system is not suiuble to handle PRB coal and requires upgrading. 
Mary chutes and hoppers need redesign, skining must be extended and maintained, dust colleaion hoods 
added, belt scrapers added, belts sh. uld have vulcanized splices and washdown troughs and sumps and 
pn;nps added. Spillage from belts and other coal handling equipment must be contained and cleaned up 
immediately. Piles of coal spillage will be a severe fire hazard if not cleaned up daily. Fire proteaion 
has 10 be added with detection devices, sprinkler systems, and fire pumps. 

SVSTC estimates the cost of adding silos and new conveyors to be approximately 
$8,000,000-510,000,000. None o'' the existing problem modifications are included in the cost estimae. 

3.2 Stout Units 5 & 6 Systems 

3.2.1 Pulverizer Svstem 

svTrcMEy.om 111-20 
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2.2.2.1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

The effects of switching coal on the coal feed and pulverizer systems are influenced from many 
parameters. Coal rank, mo.sture, HHV a; rlardgrove grirdability index are the most imponant faaors. 
Conversion to Powder River Basin coal is expected to cause significant impact to the existing capability 
of the feeder/pulverizer system to meet full load requirements. The four RPS - 613 pulverizers, as 
configured, will allow approximately 80 % of full boiler operation with this coal, at fineness, with one 
pulverizer out-of-'ei% îce for maintenance. The existing air heater will provide approximately 640'F 
P'-imary air temperature to the pulverizers. This temperature will allow for high moisture coal and still 
niainuin the minimum I40'F pulverizer outlet air temperature, which is considered adequate for adequate 
coal drying and transport. 

To maintain full load capability, without one spare mill available for maintenanre, allowing for wear, 
requires an increase in pulverizer size to model RPS - 723 mills. The scope of r fications, include; 

New RPS - 723 pulverize'-s (5). 
Exhausters (5) with motor drives. 
Coal feeders (5). 
Air ducts (w/ air control dampers). 
Foundations. 
COj ineni'ig sysiem. 
Electrical breakers upgrade. 
Controls. 

Raw coal piping modifications. 
Isolation gates ("Raw coal, burner lines). 
Burner lines (w/ supports). 
New Burners. 

Carbon Dioxide (CO,, has been chosen to provide inerting and fire protection for the pulverizers at this 
faciUty. A new low pressure CO-system wiil be connected to all pulverizer units. 

The COj is stored under pressure in a liquid form in a refrigerated storage tank at 300 psi and 0°F. 
When a pulverizer trips, the CO, may be discharged to the pulverizer by either an automatic valves from 
a signal panel or by an operator for manual discharge. Liquid CO, is discharged by a master valve, and 
expands to a gaseous form, to be introduced into the mill through hot air inlets plus other injection points. 
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A summary of the predicted pulverizer performance and recommended modificatior.s with PRB coal is 

ubulated in Table A-5. The engineering order-of-magnitude capital cost estimate for these modifications 

including demolition is $9 6 million. 

3.2.2 Boiler Evaluation 

3.2.2.1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

The prediaed effects of convening the boilers to a compliance low sulfur, Subituminous coal were 

developed from a number of sources. The prediction of impaci on boiler performance originated with 

SWEC and the use of computer programs to estimate combustion constituents quantities, boiler efficiency, 

and slagging and fouling indices. A summary is presented in Table A-6. 

The viability of conversion and the effects of coal swiiching on boiler operation was also estimated from 
information gathered in an interview with Plant Operations and experience with this boiler design. 

The levei of this review is considered sufficient to provide representative performance/operation 

information. The results Iner served as the basis for estimating the scope of modifications required, 

within the tolerance specified, to maintain the boiler MCR. This evaluation, however, does not include 

a rigorous analysis on the probability of reaching and maintaining full load rating, given the coal property 

and characteristic variations that could occur with Subituminous coals from the Powder River Basin 

(PRB). It is not intended to be a final scope of work, as Stone & Webster Engineering Corp. 

recommends a detailed evaluation and a long term test burn to demonstrate the combined impact of lising 

this coal prior to making a commitment to it. 

The focus ofthe evaluation centered on factors having the potential to result in derating of Unit capacity, 

and the equipment modifications reyured to prevent derating. The specifi: factors, are: 

• Burner operation 
• Furnace slagging and furnace exit gas temperature 

• Conveaion pass fouling 

• Fly ash erosion 

3.2.2.2 Burner Operation 

The information available indicates that the existing burners will require conversion, possibly to low NO, 

n-pe. The likelihood of unaccepuble burner operation with this coal is considered high if the burners are 
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not replaced. The factors related to burner heat input and burner zone heat release, coal V.M. content 
and ash content are well within the accepubie range to effect a proper replacement. 

3.2.2.3 Furnace Performance & Furnace Ex.t Gas Temperature 

The potemial for furnace slagging is the same or slightly increased from the Lynnville coal due to the 
lower furnace emissivity and the Med/High slagging index with the PRB coal. Given the relatively low 
heat release values, which is consistent with the low ash fusion temperatures of the original design coal, 
the number of deslaggers installed in ihis region and the predicted rise in FEGT, initial indications are 
that furnace control can still be mainuined with operating changes without the need for major 
modificatioiu, but, potentially resulting in a periodic 10 % load derate. 

A consequent effect of v?;iations in furnace p •"-'•-irmance is the impact on steam/metal temperatures and 
spray anemporator capac ties. The available data suggests that no potential problems related to this exists 
if furnace conditions are maintained. 

3.2.2.4 Convection Pass Fouling 

The fouling potential is not increased with this coal. However, the combination of increased slagging 
resulting from lapses in sooiblowing, changes in coal charact-'-istics and the historical tendency to have 
high temperature ash corrosion on the furnace arch could increase the deposition rate in the high 
temperature zones of the convection pass. The recommendation is to not add retractable sootblower 
coverage in the zones exceeding 1500 degrees F at this time. 

3.2.2.5 Fly Ash Erosion 

Although fly ash erosion is not a threat to performance, it is a factor which could seriously affea long 
term reliability and maintenance requirements. Erosion is a function of many parameters. However, flue 
as velocity is considered a key faaor as erosion rate is a 2.5 - 3 power ftinaion of this parameter. Since 
the maximum flue gas velocity is predicted to be 3 % higher than with the base coal, the erosion index 
is the same or slighuy, and the overall ash quantity is lower, tube life should not be deleteriously affected 
with the PRB coal. 

3.2.3 Fans 

SWITCMEV.007 III-23 
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3.2.3.1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

Forced Draft Fans 

The existing forced draft fans are considered adequate for MCR operation with this coal. This, however, 

does not consider the possible addition of low NO, burners, which may require additional sutic head. 

The conversion to Powder River Basin coal results in virtually the same flow and static head requirements 

lhat exists with the current high sulfur coals being bumed. This, therefore, does not jeopardize exceeding 

the existing fan margins. 

Induced Draft Fans 

Similar to the situation with the Forced Draft Fans, the tlue gas flow and pressure requirements are 
expected to be approximately three percem higher than with the high sulfur coal. Refer Table A-6. The 
flue gas temperature is also expected to rise slightly, which incrc<'..es the volumetric flow rate by 
approximately seven percent. Even with this rise, the actual fan pciormance indicates the fan flow, head 
and temperature margins are not jeopardized. 

3.2.4 Elearost?tic Pre.-ipiuior 

3.2.4.1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

Please refer to SubSection 1.2.4.1. of Section III, which includes the discussion related to Power River 

Basin coals. 

3.2.5 Ash Handling 

3.2.5.1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

The fly ash handling system is classified as a wet type, suppliea by Allen Sherman Hoff. 

The conversion to Powder River Basin coal does not pose a potential problem to reliable operation with 

ah.p]e water supply. The ash ha* significantly more calcium, which tends to make it more cemenuiious, 

however, the quantity is significantly less lhan with the Lynnville coal. 
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3.2.5.2 Ash Handling/Pond Effluent 

The present system sluices the bononi cjid fly ash to an ash pond adjacent to the Plant. Changing the coal 
source will not affect the handling of the bonom ash and the effluent will not likely require additional 
treatment prior to discharge. 
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3.3 Stout Unit 7 Systems 

3.3.1 Pulverizer Sysiem 

3.3.1.1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

Tbe effeas of switching coal on the coal feed and pulverizer systems are influenced from many 
parameters. Coal rank, moisnire, HHV and Hardgrove grindability index are the most imponant facton. 
Conversion to Powder River Basin coal is expecied to cause significant impaci to the existing capability 
of the feeder/puiveruer system to meet full load requirements. The five RPS - 823 pulverizers, as 
configured, will allow approximately 75 % of full boiler operation with this coal, at fineness, with one 
pulverizer out-of-service for maintenance. The existing air heater will provide approximately 650*F 
primary air temperarure to the pulverizers. This temperature will allow for high moisture coal and still 
mainuin the minimum 140*F pulverizer outlet air temperarare, which is considered adequate for adequate 
coai drying and transpon. 

To maintain full load capability, without one spare mill available for maintenance, allowing for wear, 
requires an increase in pulverizer size to model RPS - 883 mills. The scope of modifications, include; 

New RPS - 883 pulverizers (5). 
Exhausters (5) with motor drives. 
Coal feeders (5). 
Air ducts (w/ air control dampers). 
Foundations. 
CO; inening system. 
Electrical breakers upgrade. 
Controls. 
Raw coal piping modifications. 
Isolation gates (Raw coal, burner lines). 
Burner lines (w/ supports). 
New Burners. 

Carbon Dioxide (COj has been chosen to provide inening and fire proteaion for the pulverizers at this 
facility. A new low pressure CO; system will be conner.ed to all pulverizer uitits. 

The CO, is stored under pressure in a liquid form in a refrigerated storage tank at 300 psi and 0*F. 
W7ien a pulverizer trips, the CO; may be discharged lo the pulverizer by either an automatic valves from 
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a signal panel or by an operator for manual di:.charge. Liquid CO, is discharged by a master valve, and 
expands to a gaseous form, to be introducec into the mill through hot air inlets plus other injeaion points. 

A summary of the predicted pulverizer performance and reconunended modifications with PRB c:al is 
Ubulated in Table A-7. The engineering order-of-magninide capita! cost estimate for these modifications 
including demolition is S30.5 million. 

3.3.2 Boiler Evaluation 

3.3.2.1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

The prediaed effects of convening the boilers to a compliance low sulfur, Subituminous coal were 
developed from a number of sources. The prediction of impact on boiler performance originated with 
SWEC and the use of computer programs to estimate combustion constituents quantities, boiler efficiency, 
and slagging and fouling indices. A summary is preseraed in Table A-8. 

The viability of conversion and the effects of coal switching on boiler operation was also estimated from 
infonnation gathered in an interview with Plant Operations and experience with this boiler design. 

The level of this review is considered sufficient to provide represenutive performance/operation 
information. The results later served as u.<, basis fcr estimating the scope of modifications required, 
within the tolerance specified, lo maintain the boiler MCR. This evaluation, however, does .lot include 
a rigorous analysis on the probability of reaching and mainuining full load rating, given the coal property 
and chrj'acteristic variations that could occur with Subituminous coals from the Powder River Basin 
(PRB). It is not intended to be a final scope of work, as Stone &. Webster Engineering Corp. 
recommend.! a deuiled evaluation and a long term test bum to demonstrate the combined impaa of using 
this coal prior to making a commitment to it. 

The focus of the evaluation centered on faaors having the potential to result in derating of Unit capacity, 
and the equipment modifications required to prevent derating. Tbe specific factors, are: 

Burner operation 
Furnace slagging and fiimace exit gas temperature 
Conveaion pass fouling 
Fly ash erosion 
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3.3.2.2 Burner Operation 

The information available indicates that the existing burners wili require conversion, possibly to low NO, 

type. 

Tbe likelihoxi of unaccepuble burner operation with this coai is con'idered high if the burners are not 
replaced, 'fhe faaors related to burner heat input and burner zonr neat release, coal V.M. content and 
ash content are well within the accepubie range to effect a prope: replacement. 

3.3.2.3 Furnace Performance & Furnace Exit Gas Temperature 

Tbe potential for fiimace slagging is the same or slightly increased firom the base coals due to the lower 
fiimace imissivity and the Med/High slagging index with the PRB coal. Given the relatively low hiat 
release values, which is consistent with the low ash fusion temperatures of the original design coal, the 
nu .oer of deslaggers installed in this region and the predicted rise in FEGT. initial indicanons are that 
fiimace control can still be mainuined with operating changes with:)ut the need for major modifications, 
but. potentially resulting in a periodic 15-20 % load derate. 

A consequent effea of variations in furnace performance is the impaa on steam/meial temperatures and 
spray attemporator capacuies. The available data suggests that no potential problems related to this exists 
if fiimace conditions are mainuined. 

3.3.2.4 Convection Pass Foul>ng 

The fouling p3ientia] is not increased with this coal. However, the combination of increased slagging 
resulting from lapses in sooiblowing, changes in coal characteristics and the historical tendency to have 
high temperature ash corrosion on the fiimace arch cr>uld increase the deposition rate in the high 
temperature zones of the convection pass. The recommendation is to not add retraaable sootblower 
coverage in the zones exceeding 1500 degrees F at this time. 

3.3.2.5 Fly Ash Erosioa 

Although fly ash erosion is not a threat to performance, it is a factor which couid seriously affea long 
term reliability and maintenance requirements. 

Erosion is a fiinaion of many parameters. However, flue gas velocity is considered a key faaor as 
erosion rate is a 2.5 • 3 power funaion of this parameter. Since the maximum flue gas velocity is 
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prediaed to be 3 % higher than with the base coal, the erosion index is the same or slightly, and the 
overall ash quantity is lower, tube life should not be deleteriously affeaed with the PRB coal. 

3.3.3 Fans 

3.3.3.1 Methodology and Parameters Evaluated 

Forced Draft Fans 

The exisung forced draft fans are considered adequau for MCR operation with this coal. This, however, 
does not consider the possible addition of low NO, burners, which may require additional static head. 

Tbe conversion to Powder River Basin coal results in vinually the same flow and static head requiremems 
that exists with the current high sulfur coals being bumed. This, therefore, does not jeopardize exceeding 
the existing fan margins. 

Induced Draft Fans 

Similar to the situation with the Forced Draft Faas, the flue gas flow and pressure requirements are 
expeaed to be approximately three percem higher than with die high sulftir coal. Refer Table A-t. The 
flue gas temperature is also expected to rise slightly, which inaeases the volumetric flow nte by 
approximately seven percent. Even with tbis rise, the actual fu perfonnance indicates the fuk flow, head 
uA ter>perature margins are not jeopardized. 

3.3.4 Electrosutic Precipitator 

3.3.4.1 Methodology and Parameten Evaluated 

See Subsection 1.3.4.1 of Section m, wfaich includes the discuuion rdtted to Powder River Basin Coal. 

3.3.5 Ash Handling 

3.3.5.1 Methodology and Parameten Evaluated 

The fly ash handling system is dauified as < wet type, supplied by Allen Sherman Hoff. 
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The conversion to Powder River Basin coal does not pose a potential problem to reliable operation with 
ample water supply. The ash has significantly more calcium, which tends to make it more cemenutious, 
however, the quantity is significantly less than with the Lynnville coal. 

3.3.5.2 Ash Handling/Pond Effluent 

The present system sluices the bottom and fly ash to an ash pond adjacent to the Plant. Changing the coal 
source will not affect the handling of the bottom ash and the effluent will not likely require additional 
treatment prior to discharge. 
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TABLE A-5 
Stout 5 & 6 

Comparative Pulverizer Performance 
and Required Modifications 

Stout S t 6 Stout 5 16 Stout 5 t 6 Stout 5 t 6 1 

BOI LEI NAMUFlkCTUttER CE CE CE CE 1 
BOILER SIZE (STEAM FLOW). LB/NR 750,000 750.000 750.000 7S0.000 

COAL TYPE Lymvillc 111. tASIN CENTRAL APP. POyDEI IIVEI 
8ASIN 

(OILER EFFICIENCY, X 86.66 87.09 88.07 •4.06 

FIRING RATE 9 MCR, IB/NR 92.626 88.151 80,854 118.370 

COAL GRUDABItlTY, HCI 55 54 45 53 1 
COAI MOISTURE, i 1S.O0 13.00 7.00 27.20 1 
COAL HEATING VAIUE, 8TU/LB 11,000 11,500 12,400 8,874 1 
AIR HEATER TEMP., V 588 588 588 620 1 
EXISTING PULVERUEk SIZE, MODEL NO. RPS • 61J RPS • 613 RPS • 613 RPS - 613 1 

NUMBER OF PULVERIZERS EXISTING 4 4 1 
ADJUSTED BASE CAPACITY OF 
PULVERIZER, LB/HR 

32,208 31,877 28.000 S1.B2S 1 

CE CAPACITY ADJUSTMENT FOR WEAR 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 1 

NUMBER OF PULVERIZERS REQUIRED 
ADJUSTED FOR WEAR 

3.19 3.07 3.21 4.IS 

NEU PULVERIZER SIZE, MODEL NO NA NA NA NA 

MEU BASE CAPACITY OF PULVERIZER 
ADJUSTED FOR 1CZ WEAR, IB/KR 

NA NA NA 

NEU PULVERIZERS RES. (ADJUSTED FOR 
WEAR; 

NA NA NA HA 

PULVERIZER DESIGN INLET AIR TEMP. 
REO. FOR "UOF MILL OiniET TEMP. 

NA NA NA HA 

PULVERIZER PA FLOW PER NEU PULV. NA NA NA 173,600 

NEW PULVERIZER MOTOR NA NA NA TfS 

HEW HOT/COLD AIR DUCT NA MA NA TCS 

AIR TEMPERATURE TESTRICTIONS NA NA NA rn 
SILO REQUIREMENTS NA HA NA Tts 

FEEDER REQUIREMENTS NA NA NA TfS 

FOUNDATIONS IEOUIREM:̂ <TS NA NA NA ns 
OEMOIITICN REQUIREMENTS NA NA HA ns 
RAU COAL PIPING NA NA h.t ns 
ISOLATION VALVES NA NA NA *̂ 1 CO. INERTING SYSTEM NA NA NA Tit 1 

rwrrcMEv.oo? 111-31 

P-581 



S t M S S 4 staut I S A Stout S I S Stout 3^6 i 

Piriae 

mtnae 
a* aa NA Tts 

as aa NA ns 
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TABLE A-6 
Stout 5 & 6 

Predicted Boiler Performance Suiiunary 

s t o u t S&6 S t o u t 5 ( 6 S t o u t 5 t 6 S t o u t 5 t 6 

B o i l e r l o a d , X U O 100 100 100 

Main STean F low, I b / h r 750,000 750,000 750,000 750 ,000 

COAL 

TvTJe Base 1 1 1 . B a s i n C e n t r a l Aop. PRt 

Fuel NNV, B T U / l b 1 1 . 0 0 0 . 0 1 1 , 5 0 0 . 0 1 2 , 4 0 0 . 0 8 , 8 7 4 . 0 

C, l b / l b 0 .6076 0.6326 0 .6819 0 .S050 

M 2 , l b / l b 0 .04J6 0.0435 0 .0437 0 .0360 

0 2 , l b / l b 0.0545 0.082S 0.0809 0 .1271 

N Z , i j / l b 0 .011J 0 .0130 0 .0120 0 .0068 

S, l b / l b 0 .0300 0.0075 0 .0102 0 .0040 

C l , l b / l b COOOO 0.0000 0 .0009 0 .0001 

h20 , l b / l b 0 .1300 0 .1300 0 .0700 0 .2720 

A s h , ( b / t b 0 .1180 0 .0900 0.10O4 0 . 0 4 9 0 

O t h e r , t b / l b 0 .0000 0 .0000 0 .0000 0 .0000 

NGl 55 54 45 S3 

S l a g g i n g Irvtex N/A LOU low Med . -M igh 

F o u i i n g l nde« N/A LOH-Med Lou Low-Med n 

B o l t e r E f f . , X 8 6 . 6 6 87 .09 8 8 . 0 7 8 4 . 0 6 

Coal F low , I b / h r 92 ,626 88 ,151 80,854 118,370 

T o t a l A i r , I 121 121 121 121 

Cont). A r F low, I b / h r 
(no m a r g i n s ) 

952 ,464 913,624 896,805 946,078 1 

A i r Temp., d e g . F 588 588 588 620 1 
F lue Ga» F low, ( b / h r 
( w e t , no M a r g i n s ) 

1 ,033 .697 993 ,762 969 ,463 1,OSS,636 1 

F l u * Cas FlOM, a c f n 
( w e t . no f u r g i n s ) 

330 ,482 317,628 308 .096 347,600 1 

Cas lemp., deg. f 313 313 313 325 1 
F lue Cas M o i s t . , Sut 5 .84 5 .78 5.03 7.n 

Unburned F u e l , t b / l b 0 .0021 0.0022 0 .0024 0 .0025 

T o t a l Ash F l o w , I b / h r 

L—•• = 
11 ,127 8 ,129 8 ,311 6,099 1 
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TABLE A-7 
Stout 7 

Comparative Pulverizer Performance 
and Required Modifications 

STOUT 7 STOUT 7 STOUT 7 STOUT 7 

•OILER MANUFACTURER CE CE CE CE 

BOUER SIZE (STEAM FLOU), LB/MR 3,145,200 3,145,200 3,145,200 3,145,200 

CtAL TYPE Lynnvilie ILL. BASIN CENTRAL APP. POWDER RIVER 
•AS IN 

•OILER EFFICIENCY. X 88.70 89.05 90.00 85.94 

FIRING RATE S MCR, LB/NR 371,893 357,557 328,093 480,120 

COAL CRIHOABILITY, HGI 55 54 45 53 

COAL MOISTURE, X 13.00 13.00 7.00 27.20 

COAL KEATING VALUE, BTU/LB 11,000 11,500 12,400 8,874 

AIR tEATER TEMP., T 633 633 633 650 

EXISTING PULVERIZER SIZE, MODEL MO. 823 • SS 823 • RS 823 • RS 823 • RS 

NUMOER OF PULVERIZERS EXISTING 5 5 5 5 

ADJUSTED BASE CAPACITY OF 
PULVERIZER, LB/MR 

91,884 90,659 77,500 90,520 

CE CAPACIT" ADJUSTMENT FOR WEAR 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 

NUMBER OF PULVERIZERS REQUIRED 
ADJUSTED FOR WEAR 

4.50 4.38 4.7 5.89 

NEW PULVERIZER SIZE, MOOEl NO NA NA NA 883 - RS 

NEW BASE CAPACITY OF PULVERIZER 
ADJUSTED FOR 10X WEAR, LB/NR 

NA NA NA NA 

NEU PULVERIZERS REO. (ADJUSTED FOR 
WEAR) 

NA NA NA 4.89 

PULVERIZER DESIGN INLET AIR TEMP. 
REO. FOR "̂ OF MILL OUTLET TEMP. 

NA NA NA NA 

PULVERIZER PA FLOW PER NEU PULV. NA NA NA 173,600 

NEW PULVERIZER MOTOR NA NA NA YES 

1 HEW MQT/COLD AIR DUCT NA NA NA YES 

1 AIR TEMPERATURE RESTRICTIONS NA NA NA YES 

1 SILO REQUIREMENTS NA NA NA YES 

FEEDER REQUIREMENTS NA NA NA YES 

1 FOUNDATIONS REQUIREMENTS NA NA NA YES 

R DEMOLITION REQUIREMENTS NA NA NA YES 

RAU COAI PIPING NA NA NA YES 

ISOLATION VALVES NA NA NA YES 

CO, INERTING SYSTEM NA NA YES 

PIPING 1 
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STOUT 7 STOUT 7 STOUT 7 STOUT 7 X 

VALVINC 

CONTROLS MOOtFICATIONS NA NA HA YES 1 

ELECTRICAL WIRING NA NA NA TES 1 
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TABLE A-8 
Stout 7 

Predicted Boiler Performance Summary 

Stout 7 Stout 7 Stout 7 Stout 7 

• o i l e r Load, X 100 100 100 100 

Main Steal* Flou, Ib /hr 3,145,200 3,145,200 3,145,200 3,145,200 

fcOAL 

1 •ate I I I . Basin Central Aop. PRB 

1 Fuel MHV, BTU/lb 11,100.0 11,500.0 12,400.0 8,874.0 

1 C, lb/lb 0.6130 0.63?i 9 6819 0.5050 

K2, l b / l b 0.0440 0.0435 0.0437 0.0360 

02. l b / l b 0.0700 0.0825 0.0809 0.1271 

N2, l b / l b 0.0130 0.0130 0.0120 0.0068 

S, l b / l b 0.0320 0.0075 0.0102 0.:040 

c t , I b / t b 0.0000 O.OOOO 0.0009 0.0001 

H20. l b / l b 0.1300 0.1300 0.0700 0.2720 

Ash, l b / l b 0.0960 0.0900 0.1004 0.0490 

Other, l b / l b 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 

HCI 55 54 45 53 

Slaggir>g Index N/A Lou Lou Med.-High 

Fouling Index N/A Lou-Med Lou LOM-Med 

• o i l e r E t f . , X 88.70 89.05 90.00 85.94 

Coal Flou, Ib /hr 371,893 35 557 328,093 480.120 

Total A i r , X 120 l i . ' 120 120 

kcne. A i r Flow, Ib /hr 
(no B i rg ins ) 

3,800,508 3,675,209 3,609.012 3.805.667 

Air Tetnp., deg. f 633 633 633 650 

1 Flue Cat Flou, Ib /h r 
1 (wet, no aa rg i ru ) 

4,135,956 4,000,264 3,903,869 4,262.214 

1 Flue Cat Flow, ac f * 
1 (uct , no n t rg i r t s ) 

1,299,152 1,256,802 1,219,462 1,390,406 

1 Cat Temo., de«. F 300 300 300 320 

1 Flue Cat M o i t t . , Xut 5.89 5.82 5.06 7.84 

Unbumed Fuel, l b / l b 0.0021 0.O022 0.0024 0.0018 

Total Ash F lou , Ib /h r 36,500 32,972 33,754 24,375 
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Fuds 

F P & L F i les Appeal 
Of Orimulsion Verdict 
Flonda Power &. Ligti Co (FPid., recssuy fiied its arpeai of 
the stale 's rejection of its piac to burn Onsjulsion at :is Manatee 
plant. Tbe utiiit>' cotacsds thai Gov Lawton Ciiies and his cabtcK 
filled to use appropnate findings of fact, to follow proper 
administiative procedures, and ro correc'Jy mterprst aad apply 
i e state's Power Placi Siang Act (PPSA) in trnrhirg its decision. 

FP&L filed :ts appeaf bnef July I " w.th ±s. First Distnc: Cour. 
of Appeals in Tailaiiassee. Ra. and is seeeaig to ovenurn the *-
3 verdic: issued la .\pni by Cuies asd his sw-tECSiDer satinet, 
acting as the sLate s Power Plant Siang Board I'CACR 4,'2Z'96. 
p.3). "The coun nmst reverse the final order and rscua'e issuance 
of an order cotuisteai with the beanng officer's findmp of fact 
as suppor.ed by cotnpeteat subsianaa: tv.desce. and correct 
inierpretanon and appiicaccn of '.he .Admnatranve Procecures 
Aa (AP.A) and PPS.A.' .^n amirjs runce bnef *as fiied by tte 
Florida Indusmai Power Users, '.he Flonda Cianber of CommerK 
and the .'̂ onda .Manufacmnng and Cbencai Councd. 

The unlirv contencs '^J ' the board disregarded a state hearing 
officer's recommended order as weil as a recotrjararianon of 
condinoaai approval from the state Departara: of Eavircnmeaiai 
Protecnon (DEP;. FPid-'s pian was also approved by several 
state, regional aad local groups, iccludxg the Public Service 
CommissioD. :he Tampa Bay Regional Planning Conmission and 
a naT'' he?nng officer. FPiL's plans :o cocven .Manatee included 
the insta'.ition of wet scrubbers aad ilecTOsauic precipitaiors. 
which would SO. and pamcuaa eaiisions by 90^1. The switch 
would save ±e utiiir,' roughly S;.6 bdlion over 2C yea.-s. The 
fuel wouid be supplied by Bitor .Amenca Corp. uader a ;0-year 
contrac: sigaed m .^prJ 1994 

In its bnef, FP4cL cited three reasons that the • erdic: should be 
overturaed; the board 'dsurpca the roie o 'Jle heanng officer 
regarxling the facts; refused :o specif>- acar j : that 'Jhe unllry could 
rairi' to ge: proiec: approval, as recuired by tte PPSA. and axioptec 
policies coniradicrjig previous judicial and DE? decisions without 
«f)i»>pT3fi' explanation. 

Baing First Is Bad? 

Approval of 'Jie piaa woulc have made F ? i L '.he first utiliry ia 
Che U.S, '.o bum Onmuisioc, and some sources coatead thai bemg 
tte firr. to use '±e fuei is aa uraccepubie nst. The governor did 
not c.te anv specifics ic rejecting tte FPid, pun, aad said only 
that tte imquaanfiaoie nsks of burniag '-he fuel outweighed any 
Mvmgs '.o FPiiL customers. "Contrarv to an expresi iiamtory 
mandate, the siting aoa.'d refused tc specif, acuoas whicb would 

r55S fieiesron l>LO.tcaBons. Jtc i2C2J 775-C24C 
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secure its ainjrovai for "Jsc application.' the asiity stated. AiMrding 
to FP&L, tae board also refusec to consider appropnate magahon 
altemauves "for 'iie adverse eavironmmra; and human tmpacxs 
thai were -.is stated basis fcr ±e denial of tte projea. * 

For eMfficit. said FP&L. ±e sitmg board couid have adopted a 
condicon of ceraficauon restncnng .N0_ emissions to iustorical 
levels, resoivmg concerns expressed by some groups over possible 
emissions increases. FP&L his agreed to several ccndinoos 
regarding tte fuel's oaaspon aad use. While .NO, emissions would 
increase ai a result of tte switch CPP&L expeas to incrtase &e 
plant's caaacity facaarj. its NO, emissions .ne of 0.3 Ib. NO,/ 
mmBtu would be m compliance with state, local and federal 
standards. 

The DEP -s not appearmg m the appeal in either side of 'ie issue, 
a source there said. .\ source m tte state anoraey general's ofBce 
called the FP&L bnef "inttrestmg,* and noted thai "raised 
sone good poiais." Reply bnefs are due today. 

I P L Consider ing T e s t 
Of Western Coa l At Stout 
Witt Phase II requiremeats and deregulanon's cost-cutting 
mandates a miad. Indianapolis Power & Light Co. (IPL) is 
considenng test-bunung low-suiftir westem coal at its Stout 
geoeranag stanon this fall. Where the coal will come frcm hasn't 
yet beea decided. IPL said. 

IPL has purchased it-m^r,, coai exclusively since 1990, and three 
umts a: Stout currently bum only inrtitr, coal. Uaia 5-7 art 
Phase i-affected. and bum low-sulfur Indiana coal. In 1995, Stout 
received rcughly 1.3 miilioa tons of coal (11.255 BmAb., '2.6 
Ihs. SO '̂mmBru) in 1995 at an average delivered price of 113.45c/ 
mmBtu (S15.54/ton). 

The atiiit>' declined to say what western coal it is loolcag at, and 
industry sources differed as 'x the likely source regioa. Several 
prediced that tte persistently low pnees of PRB coal *ot»ld win 
out. whiie a coal broker m the .vtidwest said similarities a moisture 
content and heat vaiue betweea Colorado/Utah and Irrliana coal 
would favor bituminous Colorado/TJtah coals (PRB coais are 
subbituauaous). 

Transportation costs alone will likely reader PRB coais infeasible 
as a long-term suppiy opnon. insisted a skepdcal PRB producer. 
'Those ciants are pracacally sitnng in the middle of the coai 
fields." he said. "They can truck the coal there." A Colorado/ 
Utah producer disagreed. " I think PRB coai wiil be very 
competicve even with a ttree-lme haul, even in compeanon with 
trucked QLaoa Basm coal.* he said, 'lust look at tht numbers 
the PRB 15 gett-ig — unless all of a sudden those flndiiaa] mines 
decide ic lower pt.res. which in tte past they haver't had ihe 
propensity to do. * 

IPL-P-00379 
CLEAN AIR C3MPI.IANCE REVIEW • Augutt 12. 1996 

Hapnaucoort in tn-f 'orm is lUa^ai sna Buna/taOla by firfs uo to I50.000 par vtofaon. 

P-596 



Rebuttal Verified Statement of Michael J. Ward 

My name is Micliael J. Ward. I am currently Executive Vice President-Finance and 

Chief Financial Officer of CSX Transportation, Inc. (CSX), with headquarters in 

Jacksonville. Florida. 

I have a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Maryland and a Master of 

Busmess Administration degree from the Harvard Business School I have been employed by 

CSXT since 1977, when I joined the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad Company (B&O) and the 

Chesapeake and Ohio Railway Company (C&O), predecessor railroads of CSX that were 

then commonly referred to as Chessie System Railroads. Although I was initially employed 

as a Research Analyst in the Finance Department. I have spent the preponderance of my 

career in the Coal Depanment, including positions as Vice President of Coal Marketing in 

Jacksonville. Flonda, and General Manager of the C&O Business Unit in Huntington. West 

Virginia. 

.As Vice President of Coal Marketing. I was responsible for the pricing and marketing 

of coal, coke and iron ore transportation. Coal, coke and iron ore the most unponant 

commodities transported by CSX in terms of revenue. In 1996, coal, coke and iron ore 

revenues for CSX totalled S1.6 billion of its 54.8 billion commoaity revenues. This 

represents 337c of CSX's total commoditv' revenue. In terms of coal train volume, that 

amoums to over 300 loaded coal trains per day. or 8 million carloads per year. One of 

everv three cars CSX carries is loaded v\ ith coa! produced from mines in Appalachia. the 

Midwest, and the South. 
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The C&O Business Unit is a semi-autonomous unit of CSX, and consists of 1,900 

route miles of railroad, headquartered in Huntington, W V. Although primarily focused on 

coal transportation, the business unit is aiso responsible for the operation of all trains in its 

territory, including merchandise and passenger trains. As General Manager, I was 

responsible for all train operations, engineering, mechamcal, sales, marketing and fmance 

functioni". 

I retumed to the CSX Finance Department in 1995 as Senior Vice President, and 

assumed my present title in 1996. My present responsibilities include Financial Planning, 

Cost & Economic .Analyses. Treasury, Accounting, Budgets, Joint Facilities, Facilities 

Administration. Administrative Services, and related duties. 

I am also the leader of (. SX's Integration Team, which was formed in May 1997 to 

facilitate the integration of the Conrail assets that are allocated for use by CSX into the 

e.xistmg CSX system. The vast majority of my time is now devoted to the success of this 

crucia! project. I have been asked to present this verified statement to describe the 

implementation program that CSX expects to follow. 

SUMMARY 

CSX and the Norfolk Southem Railway (NS) are preparing to integrate the lines and 

assets of Conrail into our respectiv rail systems if the .Application is approved by the Board. 

We are also preparing to welcome the current Coru'ail employees ihat will be joining us. 

This task is complex and requires a great deal of thoughtful piannmg and implementation. 
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This statement describes our current planning process, and our flexibility to make 

refinements to those plans as conditions change during the integration process. 

LESSONS LEARNED 

Based on our own experience and discussions that we have had with Coiu-ail. NS and 

other companies, both in and out of the railroad industry, ihat have experienced mergers or 

acquisitions m recent years, CSX has identified some "lessons leamed" that we intend to 

follow in this Transaction. Among the lessons are: 

• Safetv is Paramount. The integration of the Conrail lines and assets allocated 

into the CSX system must be done safety. This message must be constantly 

conveyed during this entire integration process to both CSX and Conrail 

employees. 

• Ir.:̂ gration with Deliberation This can be accomplished by using a detailed 

plamng process lhat integrates the necessary changes in a careful and 

deliberate manner Effective integration over the long term takes precedei. ; 

over short term gains. 

• Welcome Conrail's Emplovees and their Expertise. CSX will welcome and 

value the Conrail employees that are to become CSX employees. Although 

CS.X has carefully studied the Conrail propert}' that will be allocated, and we 

have had extensive meetings with Conrail employees, we do not have their 

"hands on" experience of operating it. However, the Conrail employees do. 
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and we plan to embrace their expertise. This message will be emphasized to 

the Conrail employees during the integration process. 

.Sufficient Resources. CSX believes that some prior mergers have tended to 

underestimate the - .nber of people and assets that are required to implement 

the merger. CSX will ensure that we have sufficient people and locomotives to 

operate all our trains on Day One. With experience, these numbers may be 

adjusted, but any adjustments will be based upon market conditions, iraffic 

demands and safety. 

Maintain a Staff Command Center. Begirming on Day One and continuing 

throughout the integration process, we will maintam a staff command center 

that is manned by business and technology experts. Problems are to be 

quickly refen-ed to the center. Small and medium problems can be quickly 

addressed and resolved at this level. Larger problems can be analyzed and 

forwarded to service management in a tunely manner for resolution. 

Fn̂ nrP thp Fssential Prerequisites. No amount of planning or management can 

lead to a successful integration unless cenain items have been addressed prior 

10 the start of combined operations. In the case cf the Conrail allocation. CSX 

believes that the fcllowing points must be addressed prior to our beginning to 

operate the Conrail propenies that are to be allocated to us: 

• Sufficient Labor Agreements are in Place: Implementing agreements 
with cenain unions are considered essential for a smooth 
implementation. These agreements are necessarv' to allow us to make 
the various changes outlined in the Application, and to split the existing 
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Conrail workforce between CSX, NS and the Shared Asset Areas of 
Conrail. 

Sufficient Personnel are Available: This includes both management and 
agreement-covered employees as are accessary for CSX operations on 
the Conrail lines to be allocated to CSX and for CSX operations in tlie 
Shared Asset Areas. 

Important Capital Improvements are Completed: Various capital 
projects have been identified by CSX as imponant to the efficiem 
operation of the integrated CSX and Conrail territories. These 
improvements : ould be substantially completed prior to 
implementation. 

Information Technologv is Installed: The i.̂ erging t ^ information will 
be essential. Maintaimng our principle of keeping cfi.iae to a 
minimum, the information technology must coincide w.uj our 
implementation strategies for all other integration teams. 

Sufficient Locomotives are available and distributed: The operating 
plan will continue to be refined as additional commercial data becomes 
a\ailable. This operating plan continues to refine the resource 
requirements necessan.'. including locomotives 

Emplovees are properlv trained: The necessary resources must also be 
trained in new systems and procedures. A dedicated team is charged 
v\ ith determining and prioritizing all training requirements. Until these 
requirements are met, unplementation will not proceed. 

.Necessarv Issues are Coordinated with .NS: .NS and CSX meet on a 
regular basis to make sure our implementation plans are compatible. 
Both panies understand how critical this issue is for a successful 
integration. 

As a result, CSX is approaching the ponion of Conrail which it will operate in a 

deliberate and methodical manner. Safety is of prime importance and will not be 

compromised. Conrail's routes, equipment and other assets will be imegrated into the CSX 

system in as seamless and safe a manner as possible to avoid service interruptions to any of 
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our customers, i.e., both those we currently serve and those CSX will serve once the Conrail 

transaction has been implemented. Although CSX will begin to operate the allocated Conrail 

lines on Day One, we recognize that some ponions of the implementation will have to be 

done in stages, panicularly with regard to the new operating plan and field transportation 

systems. CSX clearly intends to retain Conrail's expertise and. if anything, we will allow 

more than sufficient time for training. Finally, CSX will continue to communicate with all 

panies. including our employees and customers and public officials, to ensure that CSX's 

goals and priorities are understood and to receive comments from all interested parties that 

can assist us in doing an even better job of integrating our systems. 

TE.\.M STRUCTLTIE 

Ver> early in the process. CSX recognized the need to form a dedicated team to do 

implementation planaing to facilitate the integration of the allocated Conrail assets into the 

CSX sysiem. Therefore, we formed a team whose sole task was to undertake the 

implementation plaaaing process. At the ouiset, it was understood that safety was to be an 

overriding principle of the process and that this priticiple would be emphasized on a 

contmuing basis. Our next step was to interview approximately 50 key members of CSX's 

senior management to ascertain what specific areas or functions should be included in the 

implementation planning process. These interviews produced a list of over 250 items. These 

Items were then categorized into three groups: 1) tasks which were essential for the long-

term s'jccessful integration of the allocated portion of Conrail into CSX; 2) tasks which 

would require a long lead time and 3) tasks that would facilitate the implementation. A 
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further breakdown of these tasks produced the infrastructure of teams and tasks that we are 

currently using to complete the implementation planning process. 

There are currently 21 core teams involved in the integration planning process. The 

names of these teams, and the CSX executive in charge of each team, are set forth below: 

Team Name Team Leader 

1) Day One Operations Gerry Gates 
2) Safety Frank Pursley 
3) Headquarters Integration Chuck Wodehouse 
4) Technology John Andrews 
5) Commercial Les Passa 
6) Labor Ken Peifer 
7) Capital Planning Tom Schmidt 
8) Asset Division Dan Miller 
9) Human Resources Sally Basso 
10) Conveyances/Closing Mike Giftos 
11) Pro Forma Fred Favorite 
12) Conununications Many Fiorentino 
13) Intermodal Les Pa.sa 
14) Inventory Everett Eddy 
15) Information Process Doug Maxwell 
16) Monitoring On-going 

Conrail Operations Mike Ward 
17) Corporate Governance .Mike Ward 
18) Concession Process Bill Han 
19) Training Joel Warner 
20) Implementation Planning Bob Haulter 
21) Fumre Teams (As Needed) Mike Ward 

Many of these teams have numerous sub-teams, each of which is focused on specific 

tasks. To make sure all key tasks were included in the prccess, we matched our team 

structure against the normal business processes needed to run our railroad. We also matched 

our teams against our organization structure to make sure each department was represented. 
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Bv looking at our integration planning process from both of these perspectives, we feel very 

comfortable that all key areas are being addressed. 

As noted above, a senior executive of the organization has been assigned the 

leadership function of each team. In most cases, this team leadership role has temporarily 

become the primary focus of that individual's job. For key teams, a full-time coordinator 

has been assigned to the team leader to assist in managing the team. These coordinators 

have been temporarily removed from their.normal assignments. They ail have many years of 

experience with CSX. 

We have also organized a project management office, from which we manage and 

organize the day-to-day activities of the integration project. This office is staffed with a full-

time Assistant Vice President-Integration Planning. The role of this office is to ensure 

deadlines are met. project management principles are followed, intemal t̂ ade-off decisions 

are made, and that decisioas made during the planning process are fully disseminated and 

understood by each team. 

Finally, we have a steering committee composed of myself and all Team Leaders. 

The role of the steering comminee is to set guidelines and policy, resolve questions that arise 

between various segments of our team, make appropriate decisions as required, and ensure 

timelines are met. This steering committee meets on a regular basis, averaging 

approximately two fiill days per week. 
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IMPLE.\IENTATION PL.WNESG GENT:RAL PROCESS 

Each team has gone through, and will continue to follow, the same general planning 

process. In eariy June 1997, the origaiai teams were formed. These teams were selected 

based either on the aniouai of lead time necessary to complete the implementation process or 

due to their extreme critic ;̂. :y to the successful integration process. 

The first stage in the process for each team was to define their scope and determine 

their tasks. The prunar>- commitment to safety was again emphasized to each team at this 

state. .As an example of this "define and determine" stage, the Day One Team was charged 

to fijc.us on operations for the first 90 days after Day One, or what might be \'iewed as the 

critical imtial transition process. .After the scope and team structure was completed, each 

team then spent approximately 60 days dissecting and thoroughly understanding Conrail 

operations in their assigned area. They spent extensive periods of time with .key Conrail 

employees to enable them to understand the operational, administrative, and technical aspects 

of Conrail's orgamzation. This data gathering process proved to be extremelv helpf i l . 

After comparing the current operations of CSX and Conrail. the teams completed a 

"gap analysis. ' The gap analysis idemified areas where processes are performed differently 

on the two propenies. From this analysis, best practices were identified. .Also, this analysis 

gave us our first thoughts on where traimng might be needed dunng th; transition process. 

Even if these best practices are not implemented immediately, we have a database for future 

reference. 

Each team then undertook a "visioning process. " During this step, the team identified 

the desired state of operations pcst-implementation and dates were identified fcr reaching the 
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desired state. The next step was to put together preluninary detailed implementation plans. 

This is where project management proved very beneficial. We then prioritized the tasks into 

categories in order of the extent to which the tasks were essential. 

The last few months have been spent making sure the individual team plans are 

compatible within the framework of the overall project. The steering committee reviews the 

plans for each team, and makes the necessar>' trade-off decisions to ensure that we achieve a 

smooth and transparent implementation. 

The next major step is to finalize detailed transition plans. In this stage, timelines are 

firmly established, resource and training needs are finalized, and the implementation process 

fonnally begins. During the spring of 1998, we w ill move towards the building of 

contingency plans covenng key areas where technology, labor or other items may impact our 

original plans. These contingency plans can then implemented as required. 

RFrOGNTTION OF THE TASK 

CSX's management has long recognized that the integration of Conrail will be the 

most complex transaction in which our company has panicipated in recent times. The 

operations of the Conrail system have to be divided between CSX and the Norfolk Southem 

Railway (NS). At the same time, Comail will remain as the operator of certain rail services 

in the Shared Asset Areas. This approach makes this transaction unique, but one that is fiilly 

within the capabilities of CSX (and NS) to handle. 

CSX IS no stranger to mergers or combinations of railroads. Indeed, CSX was 

fonned in 1986 bv the combination of the Chessie System and Seaboard System railroads. 
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which were themselves the products of a series of successful mergers and combinations. We 

are also well aware that no amount of planning can guarantee an absolutely safe and smooth 

integration process. Problems may arise; the problems experienced by UP/SP are only tl.c 

most recent though cleariy they are quite severe. CSX and NS collectively are confident in 

our ability to successfully allocate the Conrail system between us in a safe and efficient 

manner and to avoid the problems that were experienced in UP/SP. 

For example, there are significant differences between the UP/SP merger and the 

allocation of Comail assets. Some of these differences are as follows; 

Comail is very financialiv sound For the period from 1990 thiough 1996, 

Comail has maintained a Standard & Poor's credit rating of A. An A rating indicates that 

that company has a strong capacity to pay interest and repay principal on its outstanding 

debt. The only U.S. Class I railroad with a higher credit rating than Comail at the lime of 

this acquisition was NSR. By contrast, during the period from 1990 through 1995 the 

Standard & Poor's credit rating for SP fluctuated between P+ and BB-I-. Companies that 

have ratings of BB or less are generally regarded by Standard & Poor's as having 

predominately speculative characteristics with respect to capacity to pay interest and repay 

pnncipal on outstanding debt. 

To further contrast the financiai strengths of Comail versus SP, we need look no 

funher than the operating ratios. During the three year period 1994 to 1996, Comail's 

operating ratios were 83.6%, 87.6%, and 83.7%. Conversely, SP's were 92.4%, 100.7% 

and 98.4%. These figures are based on R-l Schedule 210 data. 
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In terms of revenue adequacy, Conrail was 8% in 1994, 6.8% in 1995, and 8.4% in 

1996. The SP was 7.2% in 1994 and 3% in 1995. The 1996 data is not available due to 

SP's 1996 merger. By almost any fmancial measure, Comail was more financially sound at 

the time of the acquisition than SP was at the lime of its merger with UP. 

2. The portion of the Conrail area to be operated bv CSX is smaller than SP. 

Just prior to the UP/SP merger, SP operated 14,404 miles of railroad stretching from Oregon 

to Louisiana and from Califomia to Illinois. By contrast, the size of Conrail assets to be 

operated by CSX consists of 4,150 miles of railroad (excluding the Shared Asset Areas), 

predominately in states in which CSXT already operates. The integration of the allocated 

portion of Comail to be operated by CSX will not be as large a physical task as UP faced in 

merging SP into its system. 

3. This is an allocation of Comail. not a rationalization. Unlike many mergers, 

there is ver>' little overlapping of the CSX lines and the Comail lines that are being operated 

by us. This is a classic "end-to-end" "Combination. Indeed, of the 4,150 miles of Comail 

that are specifically being operated by CSX, only 29 miles are scheduled for abandomnent. 

THE INTERIM PERIOD: 
AN OPPORTUNITY TO CONFIRM AND ADJUST 

One unique feature of the Comail acquisilion is the interim lime period between the 

date that control actually passes from the voting trustee to both CSX and NS (the Control 

Date) and the day that the various Conrail lines and asseis are allocated and separately 

operated by CSX and NS as pan of their respective rail systems (Day One). 
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During the period between the Control Date and Day One. Comail will continue to be 

operated as a unitar>' railroad. While the exact length of this interim period is uncertain, it is 

clear that CSX and NS will continue to have an opportunity to directly observe the 

continuing Comail operations and to confirm, adjust, or fine mne the integration plan and the 

scheduling that have previously been made. 

CSX has had numerous meetings and contacts with our counterpans at NS to 

coordinate our respective implementation planning effons, panicularly with respect to 

planned operations in the Shared Asset Areas. This coordination will cominue durmg this 

interim period and may likely increase. 

CSX has also had extensive meetings and contact with our counterparts at Comail 

from July 1997 to the present. The purpose of these contacts was not to exercise or control 

any decision making of Comail. To the contran.', the purpose was to ob.serve and understand 

the cunent Comail methods and procedures for operating their railroad. CSX values the 

expertise of the Comail employees and recognizes that lhey have much to offer. As our 

integration plan has been developed, we have continued to meet with Comail employees to 

gain their feedback regarding the CSX plan In order to implement the plan in a safe 

nicinner. CSX recognizes the importance of "buy in" and acceptance of the plan by the 

Conrail employees who will continue to operate the Comail .issets that are tc be allocated. 

The presence of this interim period, and our continuing contacts w ith Comail employees, 

w ill provide us with the oppormnitv'. if any of our assumptions are inaccurate, to make the 

necessary conections as soon as possible. 
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PASSENGER SERVICE 

Passenger service "s such a critical element of a successful integration program, lhat it 

is being given special anention by Paul Reistrup, who is cunently Vice President-Passenger 

Integration for CSX. No one is bener qualified for this assignment. 

Paul started his railroad career with the B&O in 1957 and held numerous freight and 

passenger operating positions, culminating as Direcior of Passenger Services for several 

years. He served from 1967 through 1975 with the Illinois Central Gulf Railroad at the vice 

presidential level for freight and passenger operations, and from 1975 ihrough 1978 as 

President of Amtrak. Smce that limv̂ , and until his remm to CSX earlier this year as Vice 

President-Passenger Integration. Paui held positions working for ether railroads and a 

railroad consulting firm. 

In his capacity as Vice President-Passenger Integration. Paul has conducted numerous 

meetings with ofiicials of Amtrak and the various conmuter agencies which operate 

passenger trains on the Comail lines to be allocated to CSXT and has filed as verified 

statement in iliis Rebunal. Those meetings have proven to be beneficial, even where 

agreement has not yet been reached on all issue:. It is my understanding that CSX will 

honor all existing agreements with respect to passenger service on the Comail lines that are 

to be operated by CSX, and will continue to work with the passenger agencies to ensure that 

the Transaction will benefit the users of both freight and passenger services. 

As far as the future is concemed, I understand lhat any requested changes to 

passenger ser\'ice will be considered on a case-by-case basis in accordance with existing 
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contracmal obligations. Due consideration will be given to safety, scheduling, and the need 

for coordination with CSX freight operations. 

FUNCTIONS QF KEY INTEGRATION TEAMS 

Set fonh below is a description of the role and mission of the key integration teams, 

along with a brief description of team leader's experience. 

1- Dav One Operations. CSX recognized the importance of having someone with 

personal knowledge of current Comail operations to head the Day One Team. Gerry Gales 

was selected for this assignment and joined CSX earlier this year as Vice President-

Consolidation from his prior position as ComaU's Vice President-Customer Suppon. He had 

been with Comail since 1976. and held increasing senior positions in the engineering, 

transportation and mechanical departments in Pennsylvama, New Jersey. Ohio. New York 

and Indiana The knowledge of Mr Gates regarding Comail, plus the knowledge of the 

other team members regarding CSX, gives us a complete picmre of the Day One task thai we 

are facing 

This team has the broadly-defined mission of planmng and implementing the actions 

necessar> to prepare for the first day of railroad operations for the enlarged CSX system, and 

the Shared .Asset Areas, and to ensure that present high levels of operations and safely are 

maintained or improved. The team's core activities include: a) developing all necessary 

safety-related plans, including comprehensive operating procedures and rules, a traimng and 

hirmg plan for train crews and dispatchers, and integrated safetv' mles; b) making sure the 

necessar)' infrastrucmre is in place to support the required operations; c) ensuring lhat 
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properly trained employees are available to operate on Day One; d) establishing an 

operations planning function whose task is to develop an operating plan for Day One; 

e) creating a customer support team which must be ready to address all customers needs in a 

seamless fashion from the first day of operations; f) putting in place a team focused on the 

Chicago area; g) creating a team to work extensively with NSR to address operations in the 

Shared Asset Areas; and. h) ensunng that a technology team is available to provide the 

proper suppon for operaiions. 

On Day One we intend to maintain operations as closely as possible as to how they 

are done today The transition process will be done slowly. This is in keeping with CSX's 

primarv goals of protecting the existing rail services and providing a safe environment for 

our new operating employees and our customers. Implementation of new operating systems 

will be done in a phased approach, ensuring that one geographical area is sufficiently trained 

before embarking on another geographical area. A sufficient number of trainers will be 

available in each area. While this operating system transition is underway, network 

operations will remain the same as they are today. We will maintain the cunem dispatching 

organization and system, the cunent crew calling network, and the operations control center 

m Philadelphia (referred to as the "blue room"). These network operations fiinctions will not 

be consolidated into CSX until the field operating systems transition is complete. We will 

also seek to mimmize the changes to the operating plan dunng this transition process. The 

safetv program for both propenies has been outlined in numerous other documents, bul agam 

the central theme will be to keep change to a minimum. 
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We believe one of the key ingredients necessary for a successful transition is the 

availability of key resources. One of the sub-teams to Day One Operations is focused solely 

on the task of personnel. We have undertaken extensive analysis to determine the proper 

number of train and engine personnel required during the transition process. In order to 

maintain safety, CSX plans to have a sufficient number of employees, includh->̂  trainers, 

available on Day One. CSX anticipates that additional engineers, conductors, and trainmen 

will enter training eariy in 1998 so that necessary lead times will be met This hiring and 

training is distinct from anticipated post-control hiring and training of current Comail 

employees, and is in addition to the normal hiring that would be necessarv' to offset normal 

anriiion. A sufficient number of employees will be available to serve as pilots lo familiarize 

train crews with new tenitories B\' this means, CSX will assure protection from problems 

associated with umeasonable employee fatigue and stress. In addition. CSX and NS will 

discuss with Comail, to the extent pennitted hy law, mechanisms to ensure an appropriate 

pool of train and engine service talent. CSX is making every effon to retain experienced 

Conrail lleld operating personnel By retaimng a substantial number of experienced Comail 

field personnel. CSX will reduce the burden of training replacements and will retain all of 

the benefits associated with substantial railroading experience. 

The same principle holds true with field management persormel. It is the inient of 

CSXT to retain in place the vast majority of all field supervisors. This serves many 

purposes. First, it mainiains the operating experience on a specific temtory . Second, it 

reduces the amount of change on operating personnel; they will still be supervised by the 

P-613 



- 18 -

same manager. Third, CSX believes lhat field supervisors on Comail are generally a very 

talented group and wishes to retain this talent. 

2. Safety. The Safety team is headed by Frank Pursley, who has worked 

continually for CSX or its predecessors since 1970. His entire career has been in the field of 

railroad operations, from Assistant Trainmaster through Superintendent, Vice-President-

Transportation to his current position of Vice Preside Operations Suppon and Safety 

Integration Officer. His responsibilities include opei<. g mles and compliance, derailment 

investigation, hazardous materials emergency response, crew saferv' training, enviromnental 

protection programs and operations planning. As such, he was the namral choice to lead the 

Safety team. 

Safety is the first of our guiding principles in the Comail integr.ition process. While 

It is not my intent to revisit the details of the Safetv Implementation Plan that was recently 

filed by CSX with the Board or Mr. Pursley's verified statement in this Rebunal, I do wish 

10 emphasize the CSX commitment to the safety of cur employees, our customers, and the 

commumties in which we operate in implementing this Integration Plan. 

This commitment to safety is apparent in several areas. Our employees will be 

properly trained. There is only the "safe" way, not a CSX or Comail way. We will have 

more than a sufficient number of employees available to operate our system in a safe 

manner. The best practices of CSX and Corirail wUl be combined, but only after we are sure 

that the mtegration process is proceeding in a successful manner. Until then, we will have 

the opponunit}' to smdy the best safety practices of both CSX and Comail and to select the 

best ones for fumre operations. 
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It is our intent that the safety rules and training procedures of CSX and Comail will 

continue separately through 1998. Because of the operational changes that will occur on Day 

One (and will continue thereafter), we feel that maintaimng separate mles and procedures 

will assist the implementation of the Day One changes. During this initial period, the 

importance of compliance with the existing safety mles will be emphasized. In addition, 

CSX will continue our cunent review of the operating and safety mles of both CSX and 

Comail, with the goal of identifying the best safety practices of both railroads and then 

combimng those practices into one set of safety rules. We nian to implement the combined 

mles during 1999, but only after proper trairJng of all affected employees has been 

completed 

3. Headquaners Chuck Wodehouse is Vice President-Controller of CSX and is 

in charge of the Headquaners Team. He has been employed by CSX or an affiliated 

company since 1979 in the fields of accounting, audit and expendimres. He formerly worked 

the accounting firm of Deloitte Haskins & Sells and is a Certified Public Accountant. 

As with the other sections of the Integration Plan, the goal of the Headquarters team 

is to integrate designated Comail headquarters personnel into the CSX headquarters, and to 

provide continued support on Day One to other CSX departments in a marmer that is 

transparent to our customers. While our longer term plans call for centralizing the 

headquaners operating functions in the Jacksonville, FL area, except for Shared Asset Areas 

functions, this phase-in will be grcd'aal. On Day One, Comail headquaners operating 

suppon will to continue function at Philadelphia, Pittsburgh and Dearbom. bul as part ofthe 

CS.X headquaners system. 
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The headquaners section is divided into eleven (11) areas: Finance. Technology, 

Operations, Intennodal, Customer Service, Sales & Marketing, Supplies & Service 

Management, Employee Relations, Law, and Non-Employee Expenses. Each section has 

smdied the current Comail operations and proced'.ires in their area and has developed detailed 

plans for Comail integration. 

The first phase of the Headquarters Integration will involve centralizing the non-

operating functions, and the second stage will involve centralizing the Headquaners 

operations suppon areas. Necessary training of affected employees will be completed prior 

to both stages. 

4. Technologv. John Andrews has spent his career in tbc infonnation technology 

field. Beginning as a Repair Technician with GTE in 1972, lie remained with ihat company 

until 1993, except a brief period with a consulting firm. John came to CSX Transportation 

in 1993 as Vice Presidem-Application Systems and is currently Chief Information Officer for 

CSX. His pnmarv' duties in this capacity include the development of new technology 

systems and the operation of a central data processing center. 

The scope of this team is divided into two phases. Phase I includes all system and 

infrastmcmre work required to enable planned Day One operations. This includes the 

general and administrative functions, customer interaction functions, locomotive/asset 

management functions and dispatch compatibility. Phase II includes all systems and 

infrastmcture work required to enable the phased transition of rail yard and terminal 

operations. 
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This team comprises 10 sub-teamt: Communications, Data Center Operaiions, Data 

Resource Management, Revenue Management, Train Cusiomer Operations, G&A 

Intermodal, Train Maintenance. Train Control/Signals, and Dispatch. Each of these leams is 

closely aligned with its respective business panner to ensure lhat technology requirements 

match the long-term and transition needs of the various departments. As a result of these 

duties, the Technology team, is also greatly involved with project management. 

Wiihin the auspices of this leam, the company undertook a tedi-jus, bul necessary, 

process we called the "day in the life." For 4 distinct areas - train, car. employee ana 

customer - we brought together a team of over 30 knowledgeable peoph from variou.«, 

departments to discuss information requirements. These teams discussed what data was 

necessarv' to track each of these key resources, how the data flowed through our information 

systems, and 'Ahat infomiation would be available during each phase of the transition. These 

sessions, which someiunes lasted three days, proved to be very beneficial. 

CSX has compared the CSX and Comail infonnation technology systems from the 

standpoint of a long term integration or substimtion. We have concluded lhat the Comail 

system is based upon an older technology. Appropnate "bridges" will be in place on Day 

One between the CSX and Comail computer systems to illow for use and direction of the 

Comail computer system by CSX. Gradually, the Comail computer system will be retired 

and CSX technology will be ;itilized on the entire system. A sufficient workforce will be 

available to provide maintenance and repair for the Comail system until it is retired and to 

bring it into compliance with year 2000 requirements if it is still in operation as of that dale. 
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5. Commercial. The Commercial team is led by Les Passa. He is cunently 

President and Chief Executive Officer of CSX Intermodal, Inc. Mr. Passa joined CSX in 

June of this year, as Vice President, Commercial Integration, having spent most of the last 

ten years with Comail in a variety of positions, including intermodal planmng. customer 

service, automotive and logistics and corporate planning. CSXT needed someone witli 

extensive Comail commercial experience to head this team in order to understand and 

address any differences in CSXT and Comail commercial operations ihat may arise during 

the integration process. 

As noted previously, it is CSX's goal to accomplish the integration of Comail's 

operations into the CSX system in a manner that makes the process as transparent as possible 

to Comail's customers Because most of Comail's customers are cunently CSX customers, 

we will already have in place a "customer/server" relationship. Our job will be to 

demonstrate to our customers ihat the expanded CSX network is the besi provider of their 

carload and intermodal transportation needs. We plan to do this by retaining the existing 

Comail business that is located on lines that are used by us and to grow that business from 

Day One by competing aggressively with other transportation providers, especially tmcks. 

For Day One operation, CSX bills of lading, waybills and billing will be in place on 

the allocated Comail lines and will be under the conu-ol of CSX. Comail's public price lists, 

tariffs and exempt pricing circular will remain in effeci until Day One. Beginning on Day 

One. CSX will gradually begin to replace these Comail pubUcations with those issued by 

CSX. The end result wiil be CSX public price documents that will include existing CSX 

lines and Comail lines that are operated by us. 
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Comi-numcation with the customers is essential to a smooth integration process. Our 

customers wil! be informed when the current CSX commercial stmcmre will be expanded to 

include the allocated Comail lines. We will advise them of the expected levels of CSXT 

b r̂vice that will be available and emphasize the expanded oppormnities lhat are available to 

them by using the expanded CSX network. 

6. Labor. Ken Peifer heads the Labor team. He began his railroad career with 

the Chessie Sysiem railroads in 1965. His experience includes employment with the Western 

Pacific, the Rock Island and the Southem Pacific railroads. He remmed to CSX as Assistant 

Vice President-Labor Relations, and is cunently Vice President-Labor Relations of CSX. 

His duties include the negotiation of national labor agreements, the establishment of overall 

labor strategy, the oversight of the arbitration of significant labor issues and guarantee 

payments. As such, he is the senior CSX official in the field of labor relations and has filed 

a joint verified statement with Mr. Roben Spenski in this Rebunal. 

A prerequisite to Day One Operation ir the negotiation and execution of necessary 

implementing agreements with the involved labor organizations. Because the Comail 

w .rkforce initially must be allocated into comparable jobs on CSX, NS and Comail (for its 

Shared Asset Areas and the System Support Operations facilities), where it is necessary to 

effect the transaction the parties will jointly negotiate (and if no agreement is reached, will 

jointly arbitrate to reach an agreement) an implementing agreement to which "hey will be 

panies with the representatives for each class or craft on the three rail systems satisfying all 

labor conditions for this transaction. 
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7. Capital Planning. The leader of the Capital Planning Team requires someone 

with both "field" experience as well as planning abilities Tom Schmidt was chosen for this 

assignment and will also retain his position as Vice President-Advanced Rail Signaling and 

Dispatch Technology for CSX. Tom has worked continuously in the railroad industry since 

1969. and has been with CSX since 1985. He has an extensive background in engineering, 

service design, quality management and network operaiions. 

This team is charged with the responsibility of coordinating the capital plarming, 

budgeting and execution of capital improvement projects ihat are related to the integration of 

the Comail lines that are to be operated by CSX. This involves approximately 52 projects 

with estimated expendimres of approximately S488 million. Some projects are being 

implemented nou. such as the double-tracking of the former B&O line and the constmction 

of various switch connections between CSX and Conrail tracks at numerous locations. Train 

operations over these connections are subject to the approval of the Transaction by the 

Board. Various projects in the Chicago area, such as the 59th Stree: intermodal yard, are 

also under constmction. 

8. Asset Division. The .Asset Division team is charged with dividing the Comail 

operating equipment for use by CSX and NS Dave Miller. Assistant Vice President 

Engineering and .Mechanical Maintenance Programming and Logistics for CSX, is the leam 

leader. He has been with CSX since 1983, serving in various capacities in purchasing, 

mechanical operations and planmng prior to assumirg his present duties. 

Comail's operating equipment will be divided into three classes: 1) locomotives; 2) 

cars and 3) other equipment, such as maimenance of way equipment and motor vehicles. 
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Each class is divided into subclasses based, for example, upon the age, stams (owned or 

leased) and condition. There will then be an allocation of each subclass of the equipment on 

the percentage of Comail stock ownership, i.e., 42% CS.X and 58% NS. An arbitration 

proced re will be used to resolve any disputes. Once the allocation process has been 

completed, various pieces of equipment may be swapped between CSX and NS, depending 

upon their own needs and requirements. 

9. Human Resources. Sally Basso is in charge of the Human Resources Team 

and cunently serves as Vice President-Human Resources of CSX She has been with CSX 

or its predecessor railroads since 1978, servicing in a variety of positions in human 

resources, and compensation and benefits. 

CSX places a great emphasis on issues that face our employees, and is sensitive to 

their needs. The task of this team is to ensure that the Comail employees that begin working 

for CSX on Day One are highly skilled and motivated to perform their jobs. 

To accomplish this task, coordination with NS will be required, and a fair method of 

employee selection must be developed in accordance with applicable agreements. The team 

wiii also be .-esponsible lor the management of the Comail benefit programs that cover all 

fonner Comail employees; i.e., those that transfer to CSX. those that are retired and those 

that are separated as a result of the transition process. 

10. Conveyances-Closings. The Conveyances and Closing team is headed by Mike 

Giftcs. Senior Vice President and General Counsel of CSX Transponation, Inc. Mike 

joined the Chessie System Railroad upon his graduation from the University of Mar>'land 
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School of Law and has been employed by CSX or one of its affiliated companies since lhat 

time and is the senior legal officer of CSX. 

The Conveyances and Closing Team is split into the following 5 sub-teams; Real 

Estate, Closing Process, Contract Allocation, FELA Claims and Lawsuits and Liabilities. 

Each sub-team has its own leader, and the sub-teams are in various stages of development. 

This team is charged with the responsibility- of drafting and executing the necessary 

documents to separate the rights and obligations of Comail between CSX and NS, or their 

designees, as described in the Transactioi Agreement on a timely basis. 

11. Pro Forma. Fred Favorite is the leader of the Pro-Forma Team, He has 

worked continuously for CSX or one of its affiliated companies since 1980, and is cunently 

Vice President-Planmng anJ Analysis of CSX, He has held positions in areas of fmance, 

cosis and budgets, asset manatement and economic planning. 

This team is responsible for preparing "management-based" Pro-Forma financial 

reports that reflect the integra'ied operations of CSX with the Comail lines and assets that are 

to be allocated for use by CSX. The reports will include the following: an income 

statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement. ROIC a projection of capital spending and key 

operating statistics. Modifications will be made to the reports as required by changes in the 

key assumptions, an̂  the team will share its findings with other teams. 

12. Comî iunications. CSX will be at a disadvantage if the benefiis that we 

foresee resulting from the approval of the Transaction are not properh communicated to our 

employees, our customers, governmental agencies and the general public. To insure that 

these points are properly made. Marty Fiorentino. who cunently services as Vice President-
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Corporate Communications and Public .Affairs, was selected as the leader of the 

Communications Team. 

The team will concentrate on communicating the benefits of the Trarsaction to: 

1) CSX and Comail employees, with a special emphasis on introducing the Comai'. 

employees to CSX and our corporate goals; 2) to our customers, both existing and those now 

using Comail; 3) to the commumties that wc now serve and will serve if the Application is 

granted and 4) the media and public officials. The team will also report the comments of 

each of these groups to CSX, These comments are instmctive and will be useful in molding 

our integration process, 

13. Intermodal. The integration of that portion of the Comail intermodal network 

that is allocated for use by CSX into our enlarged intermodal operations is a cmcial element 

in the success of the Application, and is headed by .Mr. Passa. The Intermodal Team will 

examine die operations of our affiliated intermodal company, CSX Intermodal Inc. (CSXI), 

and review areas including finance, operations, human resources, sales & marketing and 

labor CSXI is also expected to coordinate and review its own planning with the appropriate 

Integration Team. The various sub-teams include; Finance, Operations, Commercial, and 

Other Suppon Functions, Each of these sub-teams are in the process of developing detailed 

project plans based upon the control of the Council lines to be allocated to CSX. 

14, Inventon', The Inventory Team is responsible for monitoring the levels of 

Comail inventory items and planmng an equitable allocation of those items with NS on or 

after Da>' One. Everen Eddy heads this team. He is cunently Direcior, Mechanical 

Inventor)' for CSX and has been employed by CSX or is predecessor railroads since 1967. 
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He has held numerous positions in car distribution, inventory control and mechanical 

inventory. 

The function of this leam is similar to that of the Asset Division Team, A 

methodology for a split of Comails' inventory on a 42/58 percentage basis must be 

developed and agreed to with NS. Specifications must be defined and a momtoring system 

developed for use prior to Day One. .Additionally, the team must coordinate with other CSX 

teams to be sure that sufficient inventorv' levels are maintained by Comail on Day One. 

15. Information Processes. The Information Processes Team is headed by Doug 

Maxwell, General Counsel of CSX. Doug joined the CSX Law Depanment in 1990. He 

graduated from Harvard Law School in 1975 and spent the next 15 years in the private 

practice of law before coming to CSX. 

This team acts as CSX's single point of contact all appropriate information 

requests to Comail while the Application is pending before the Board The leani is mindful 

of the prohibitions of requests for confidential information, particularly in commercial areas, 

and for requests that might reflect premamre control of Comail. The team also coordinates 

requests with NS in order to avoid duplication and to reduce the administrative time of 

Comaii in replying to the requests. 

16. Monitoring On-goin° Comail Operations. I am the leader of this team, the 

prunarv' function of which is to accurately monitor the performance of Comail in a lawful 

manner from the date that the .Application was filed, i.e.. .July 23, 1997. until Day One. 

This monitoring must necessarily be done in coordination with NS and in a marmer that does 

not unduly burden Comail. 

P-624 



- 29 -

The focus of the monitoring will shift during this time frame. From the filing date of 

the Application until the day that it (hopefully) is approved by the Board, i,e,, the Control 

Date, the monitoring will be passive and restrained and in compliance with regulations 

regarding premamre control. During this period, however, we still need to know that 

Comail is performing in a manner that is financially sound and that meets the needs of its 

customers. From the Control Date until Day One. the monitoring will be more proactive 

and in coordination with NS. As noted previously in Jiis statement, this interim period will 

be an important time for leaming Comail operations first hand and will be of considerable 

benefit to CSX on Day One. 

17. Corporate Govemance. I am also the leader of this team. Our task is to 

review the corporate orgamzation of Comail with the objective to ensure that it can be 

managed in a way that allows CSX tc achieve synergies and operating objectives as outlined 

in the Application. The team will assist, in conjunction with NS, in completing required 

orgamzation specifications for the Comail operations that will remain in the long-term. 

18. Concession Process. The Concessions team was formed to consider the 

legitimate concems of slate and local goverrunental agencies and other railroads which felt 

that they would be adversely impacted if the Transaction were to be approved. Bill Han was 

selected to head this team He has over 23 years of service with CSX, primarily in the fields 

of transportalion, operations, strategic plamiing and service design, and is cunently Vice 

Presideni-Corporate Development. 

The Concessions teams has an "open door" policy of negotiating issues with the 

governmental agencies and railroads. The goal is to execute agreements that address 

P-625 



- 30 -

concems which are a consequence of the Transaction in a manner which does not detract 

from the benefits This policy has met with a great deal of success as CSX has executed 

agreements with numerous railroads (shortiines, regionals and Class Ones) and governmental 

agencies, which resulted in Lheir public .support for the Transaction. We continue to work 

with a number of entities lo senle concems and gain support. 

19. Training. The Training Team is led by Joel Warner, who is cunently 

Assistant Vice President-Human Resource Development fcr CSX. Joel joined CSX in 1986, 

has spent his career at CSX in the human resources field, and has a Master of Science degree 

in Human Resource Development from St. Thomas University. 

The importance of this team is readily apparent. Proper training of CSX and Comail 

employees is a cmcial element in the successful integration of CSX and the allocated Comail 

lines. The Comail employees who are to become CSX employees need lo be prepared for 

thi? transition in order to understand their responsibilities with CSX Some training will be 

required for curreni CSX employees in order to make the iraiisition easier for all concemed. 

The leam is also responsible for identifying and obtaining the necessary resources that will be 

required for performing the training, 

20. Implementation Planning. The Implementation Planning team is headed by 

Bob Haulter, who is cunently serving as CSXT's Assistant Vice President-Integration 

Planning. This is a namral selection, as Bob has been involved in the Comail project since 

.March 1997. He has had a wide range of duties with CSXT since joining a predecessor 

company in 1973. including Corporate Secretary', Administrative Services, Labor Relations, 

Human Resources and Perfonnance Improvement. 
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This team is responsible for the coordination and facilitation of the efforts of all 

integration teams. It's role is to oversee the project plan for the entire integration process, 

this includes team definition and scope, project plan development, issue resolution, overall 

project coordination, the review of key deliverables and providing on-going direction to the 

process. This leam is also responsible for ensuring that all issues that arise between various 

teams are resolved on a timely basis. 

21. Fumre Teams (As Needed). There are currently no additional teams Early in 

the integration process, however, we realized that it was not critical to initiate 

implementation planning for each team simultaneously. Some tasks are more critical, and 

some tasks require a longer period of time for the planning and implementation process. The 

teams that did not meet either criteria were put on hold until the critical tasks were 

addressed. Also, we realized that as we progressed the implementation planning process new 

tasks would be identified. 

As fumre tiisks are identified they will either be incorporated into the existing team 

stmcmre or new teams will be formed That decision will be made by me in consultation 

vith the steering comminee, A recent example is the Inventory team. Due to the nature of 

the task, as outlined earlier, it was not deemed necessary to initiate this team last simmier. 

The team is now under formation, and coordination is just begiiming with NS. 

CONCLUSION 

CSX has devoted a great deal of employee time and expense to the Conrail integration 

process and I know that NS has done the same. Although the allocation of Conrail, if 
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approved by the Board, will be a complex undertaking, I am confident lhat CSX has an 

implementation process that is capable of accomplishing that assignment, 1 am also confident 

that we have procedures in place to refine this process as the need arises to make any 

adjustments that may be required. The integration will be done in a safe and pmdent manner 

that will ultimately benefit CSX, our employees, our customers and the general public. 
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I, Michael J. Ward, declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is 
true and correct. Further, I certify that I am qualified and authorized to file this 
verified statement. Executed on December 8,1997. 
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• - REBUTTAL "VERIFIED STATEMEI'TT 

OF 

DWIGHT D. WEATHERHOLTZ 

My name i s Dwight D. Weatherholtz and I am Marketing Manager -

- Marketing Services for CSX Transportation, Inc. (CSXT). Among my 

duties f o r CSXT i s r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r the publication and f i l i n g of 

t a r i f f s on various subjects, includxng switching. I am also 

required to stay current on t a r i f f s published by other r a i l r o a d s 

and on practices and procedures g e r e r a l l y i»i the r a i l r o a d business 

respecting t a r i f f movements. 

The primary purpose of t h i s v e r i f i e d statement i s to address 

c e r t a i n statements made by Gerald Fauth i n support of the Corments, 

Evidence and Request f o r Conditions of the Erie-Niagara Rail 

Steering Committee (ENRS), with respect to switching charges i n the 

Buffalo-Niagara area. Mr. Fauth complains at length about the 

le v e l of current Conrail switching charges i n Buff^"''^ and seeks to 

show that they 'ara high by many standards." ENRS-6, Fauth VS at 

28 . 

The main standard he measures Conrail charges against i s a 

$156 per car fee that i s one of many charger; NS has applied i n 

Buffalo. Mr. Fauth ciaims that t h i s charge has become "generally 

established by NS i n the Buffalo arsa." I d . This, however, i s a 

seriously misleading stfitement. 

I have examined N£ Switching t a r i f f , NS 8001. The $156 charge 

so heavily r e l i e d upon by Mr. Fauth, per Note 1, Item 1400, NS 8001 
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app-lies only as follows: "NS Motor Vehicle F a c i l i t y open only on 

automobiles from Halifax, NS when received from CN-GTE at st a t i o n 

14005". Also, per Note 2, Item 1400, NS 8001, NS w i l l switch f o r 

CR at $450 (34th revised page 32, NS 8001), subject to the 

fol l o w i n g : "NS Motor Vehicle F a c i l i t y open only on automobiles from 

Edison assembly plant at Metucho>n, NJ when received from CR". Thus 

i t cannot be said that $156 i s the charge "generally established" 

i n Buffalo. 

The secondary purpose of t h i s v e r i f i e d statement i s to 

confirm, as ref l e c t e d i n t h e i r published t a r i f f s (CSXT 8100 and NS 

8001) that CSXT and NS generally perform switching services f o r one 

another at the rate of $250 per car. 
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CERTIFICATION 

I , Dwight D. Weatherholz, declare under penalty of perjury 

that the foregoing i s true and correct. Further, I c e r t i f y that 

I am qualified and authorized to f i l e t is v e r i f i e d statement. 

Executed December 9, 1997. 
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REBUTTAL VERIFIED STATEMENT 

OF CHARLES J V. EHRMEISTER 

NS ASSISTAN T VICE PRESIDENT 

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL 

My name is Charles J, Wehrmeister, I am employed by Norfolk Southerr. 

Corporation (NS) as Assistant Vice President. Safety and Environm;;ntal, a position I have 

held for approximately three years. Business ftinctions for which I am responsible i iclude 

admmisienng NS s grade crossing fund, performing filings for reportable injuries, auditing 

injur}' records to deienmine compliance with corporate procedures, and safety traimng. 

Most of my 28Vi year railroad career has heen in line management in NS's and its 

'.predecessors' Transponation Departments, Before assuming my cunent job, I held positions 

as Crossing Watchman, Switchman, Road Brakeman, Yard Conductor, Operations Trainee, 

Assistant lo Trainmaster. Assistant T.-ainmaster. Terminal Trainmaster, Assistant 

Superintendent, Superintendent Terminal(i) and Division Superintendent. 

I. Introduction 

The purpose of this statement is to: (a) describe NS's industry-leading safety record; 

ib) discuss key feamres of NS's Safety Integration Plan filed with the Surface Transportation 

Board (STB) on December 3. 1997; and (c) respond to safety-related contentions of parties 

other than the V.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) and Federal Railroad 

Admmistrauon (FRA), I believe that with careful planning md execution, the Comail 
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transaction can be earned out without compromising safety In fact, the iransaction should 

have long-run safety benefits. 

II. Nnrfnik .Southern's Safetv Record 

NS is a safety leader of the United States rail industry, having recently won the 

prestigious E, H Harriman Memorial Gold Award for employee safely fo - a re. ord eighth 

straight year, (Other NS safety and serv.ce awards are listed in Volume 6A of the Primary 

.Application, at 122 123.) Safety is so deeply ingrained at NS that it is the first subject at 

virmally ever>' meeting, including meetings ofthe Board 

of Directors, and the first element of our corporate 

vision: to be the -safest, most customer-focused, and 

successful transportation company in the world ' To 

ensure our commitment to safety is followed from top to 

bottom. NS has adopted "Six Tenets of Safety." (See 

Figure CJW-1.) NS's low number of reportable injuries 

is proof of our Lommitment: in 1996 such injuries were 

Figure CJW-l 
Norfolk Southern's 

Six Tenets of Safety 

All injunes can be prevented 
All exposures can be safeguarded 
Prevention of injuries and 
accidents is the responsibility of 
each employee 
i raining is essentia! for good 
saiery performance 
Safety is a condition of 
employment 
Safetv IS good busmess 

Figure C m i 

a remarkable one- fifth of what they were just eight years 

t)efore. (See Figure CJW-2.> 

In comments filed in this proceeding, DOT and FRA characterized NS's operating 

policies, rules and practices as "provincial" and NS s safety' culmre as -individualistic.'"' 

-Preliminary Comments of the United States Department of _ 
Transportation (DOT-3), V e r i f i e d Statement of Edward R. English, 
at 15. 
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NS is uncompromising in its insistence on safety', and we are working to carry that 

philosophy to carry over to the expanded sysiem. On the other hand, we well understand 

that a provincial, inward-looking approach could never lead to world-class safety 

performaiKe. That is why NS regularly has enlisted the most authoritative outside advice on 

safe.7 available. DuPont. a world leader in safety, has provided expert advice at critical 

juPwtures in NS's safety program, and has been retained once again to help us implement the 

Conrail transaction safely. DuPont will 

visit Comail craft employees and 

officers on three Conrail Divisions and 

at the Juniata and Hollidaysburg Shops, 

and will revisit current NS properties. 

We anticipate receiving DuPont s 

recommendations by March 1998, in 

ample time to incorporate their 

recommendations into the 

implementation. 

Norfolk Southem Safety Performance 
FRA Injury Ratios 

1.25 

m 88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 
Y*ar 

B Injuries per 200,000 Honrs 

Figur? cm-2 
Note: 1997 is a partial year covering 10 months. 

in. Preparation of the Safetv Integration Plans 
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Li Decision No. 52. the STB required NS and CSX to submit Safety Integration Plans 

(SIPs) for the proposed expanded CSX and NS rail systems and nr the Shared Asset î reas 

(SAAs). NS and CSX filed the SIPs on Decembe 3. 1997.-

NS s SIP identifies and describes measures to ensure compliance with *̂ ederal safety 

laws and safe operaiions as NS integrates into its rail sysiem allocated portions of Comail I 

was among iho:-e who workt d for the thirty days between issuance of Decision No, 52 and 

fihng of the SIPs, assembling the required information and formulating NS's plan. In many 

respects. NS's SIP memorializes NS' extensive safety' integration effort: evaluating Comail's 

safety practices (and in some cases reevaluating our own), becoming more familiar h 

Comail s personnel, territory and facilities, and analyzing, with the help of some of the most 

expenenced safety minds in the industry-, how to integrate Comail operations withoui a hitch. 

Comail s safety officers have played a key role in this proceiis. Beginning earlier this year, 

they have guided NS personnel on Safety Train visits, hi-rail trips and over-ihe-road-

visiiations. In receni months, Comail has escorted NS on tours of Comail's Pinsburgh, 

D̂OT has indicated Lhat Applicants and FRA "are committed to 
continuing the refinement of the SIPs u n t i l comments are due on 
the f i n a l EIS" and that the SIPs are "works i n progress." See 
I n i t i a l Comments of the United States Department of 
Transportation on the Safety I n t e g r a t i o n Plans F i l e d by CSX 
Corporation and CSX Transportation, Incorporated, c-.nd Norfolk 
Southern Corporation and Norfolk Southern Railway Company (DOT-
4), at 3. NS agrees that continuing dialogue between Applicants 
and FRA on issues covered i n the SIPs i s e s s e n t i a l . However, NS 
also believes the SIPs submitted cn December 3 are i n f u l l 
compliance w i t h Decision No. 52. and that a d d i t i o n a l formal 
f i l i n a s would be unwarranted. Our personnel and resources must 
be allowed to focus f u l l - t i m e on the very real and challenging 
tasks associated with safely implementing the Conrail 
consol :.dat ion. 
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Indianapolis and Dearbom Divisions During these trips, we have held numerous joint 

discussions with employee groups "on division." and made dozens of one-on-one contacts.' 

In this statement. 1 will not anempt to replicate NS's SIP. which runs more than 200 

pages, but it does seem appropnate to highlight several key feamres relating to 

implementation planning and safety: 

Training. At the heart of any successful safety' program is a well trained 
workforce. This applies equally lo agreemeni and supervisorv' personnel. NS 
has focused heavily on training for the expanded NS sysiem. Excellent 
training facilities exist on both NS and Comail properties. 

Train and Engine Service Positions. Employees subject to the Hours of 
Service Act (HSA) have some of the most safety-sensitive jobs in the industry. 
Unlike other recent mergers, which abolished jobs for HSA-covered 
employees, the Comail transaction contemplates an increase in locomotive 
engineer and trainmen positions NS is hiring and training over 1,000 new 
u-ain and engine serv ice employees for the NS system post-transaction. Wiihin 
pre-control constraints, we will be discussing with Comail mechanisms for 
maintaining a more lhan adequate pool of train and engine service talent on 
Comail as well. 

Dispatching. Dispatching is another area receiving close scrutiny. Again, 
several factors distinguish the Comail transaction from other recent mergers. 
Based on cunent headcounts. NS does not anticipate eliminating any dispatcher 
positions, nor will there be near-term changes in dispatching locations likely to 
cause anriiion. Significantly, both Comail and NS rely on regional 
dispatching. Because we will retain this system post-transaction, most 
dispatchers will continue to handle territoi'»s with which they are familiar, 
using the same lype of dispatching consoles and equipment they use today. 

Track Maintenance. NS has always placed great emphasis on maintaining ils 
track and roadbed for safe operations Our Operations Division officers 
already have tested and inspected rail and track strucmre. including taking 
measuremer.c<; by track geometry cars, on Comail propenies to be operated by 
NS, Completion of this first testing and inspection phase enhances effons to 

-NS's and Comail's collaboration on safety actuallv began long before the cunent 
proceeding was e\en instituted, as the two railroads got to know each others" "best practices' 
through joint ventures like TripleCrowTi Services*.. 
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plan for the manpower and capital necessary to meet appropriate standards all 
over the expanded system. 

rv. Safety-Related Contentions of Parties other than DOT and FRA 

A number of parties to this proceeding other than DOT and FPA iiave voiced safety-

related concems. These include: Allied Rail Unions (ARU); the American Trucking 

Associations (ATA); Charles D. Bolam. Vice President, St. Louis Rail Labor Coalition; 

Cleveland, OH; John F. Collins, New York State Legislative Chairman (on behalf of vanous 

parties collectively referred to as "BLE"); Inumational âssociation of Machinists and 

Aerospace Workers (lAM); Congressman Dennis J Kucinich; Congressman Robert 

Menendez; the Ohio Attomey General, Ohio Rail Development Commission and the Public 

Utilities Commission of Ohio (collectively the Slate of Ohio Parties); Shell Oil Company and 

Shell Chemical Company (Shell); Southeastem Pennsylvania Public Transit Association 

(SEPTA); Transportation Committees of the Pennsylvania Senate and House of 

Representatives (Transportation Committees); Transportation Communications Intemational 

Union (TCU); Transportation Trades Department, AFL-CIO (TTD); United Railway 

Supervisors Association (URSA); United Transportation Unions (UTU); and West 'Virginia 

Slate Rail Authority, 

The above parties' concems may be grouped as follows: 

* Concems about the experiences of the westem rail carriers 

(particulariy UP and SP) in implemenling recent STB-approved 
control transactions;'' 

*E.Q.. ARU, lAM, John F. C o l l i n s , Congressman Menendez, New 
York State L e g i s l a t i v e Board, Shell, TCU, Transportation 
Committees, TTD, URSA and UTU. 
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* Concems about Applicants' planning for safety integration and 
implementation;* 

* Concems about workforce stmcmring, particulariy safety-
sensitive occupations;* 

* Concems about Applicants' pre-transaction safety records and 
continuing compliance with federal rail safety laws;̂  and 

* Concems about local safety impacts.* 

I will address each of these issues in mm. 

UP/SP-RELATED CONCERNS 

NS is well aware ofthe public's concem about raii safety in light of re.em rail 

mergers - particulariy UP/SP, However, there are basic differences between the Comail 

transaction and UP/SP. SP was in poor financial and operating condition before and at the 

lime of the merger, while UP was still sorting out an earlier transaction with the Chicago and 

Northwestem, Hence, from the snn UP/SP was playing catch-up. p-̂  icularly vith regard 

to operations over SP lme<̂  Also unportant is the fact that before the merger UP and SP had 

the first and second highest accident rates among class I railroads for five of the preceding 

six years,* 

TTD. 

^E.g.. TCU. 

-g-' ARU, John F. Co l l i n s , Congressman Kucinich, JAM and 

•9•' Charles D. Bolam, Congressman Kucinich, Congressman 
Menendez and West V i r g i n i a State Rail Authority. 

^E.q., ATA, Cleveland, OH, the State of Ohio Parties and 
SEPTA. 

*For addit i o n a l d e t a i l s on the differences between the UP/SP 
merger and t h i s transaction, see Rebuttal V e r i f i e d Statement of 
James W. McClellan included as part of t h i s f i l i n g . 
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CONCERNS ABOUT PLANNING 

A number of parties have expressed concems about NS's and CSX's planning 

process. Some urge measures essentially equivalent to ihe SIPs Applicants filed on 

December 3. 1997, As described above, the SIP documents NS's safety plans and processes 

from virmally every conceivable angle. In ad ition, the way in which this transaction has 

evolved over the past year, and the parties" earlier experience with Comail, have provided 

ample planmng time. There can be no doubt lhat safety has been looked at more intensively 

in the Comail iransaction than in any rail merger in history. 

CONCERNS ABOUT WORKFORCE STRUCTURING 

As discussed above. NS anticipates minimal loss or relocation of experienced 

personnel est)ecially in HSA-covered, safety sensitive positions. Total projected job losses 

as a result of the Comail transaction are less than the rail industry's average annual attrition 

rate. By retaining the vast majority' of experienced operations persormel, NS should have a 

more than adequate workforce. 
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CONCERNS ABOUT PAST SAFETY RECORDS 

While there is always room for improvement on the road to zero injuries and 

incidents. I believe NS s safety record speaks for itself. But don t lake my word for it. 

Shell Oil Company and Shell Chemical Company put it this way: 

NS nas always achieved top ratings from Shell and has won numerous railroad 
inuustry safety awards. Shell has confidence that NS safety standards and 
practices will be integrated into the acquired Comail lines and operations. 

As for compliance, it is NS's policy always to obey the law. In this regard. I feel 

obliged to respond directly to one contention. At no time has NS "refused to participate in 

the Federal Railroad Admimstration Safety Assurance and Compliance [SACP] Program."" 

This misapprehension appears to derive from a recent smdy by the U S, General Accounting 

Office (G.AO) on FRA's new approach to railroad safety,'- In fact. NS has participated in 

the S.ACP process, and has wO uacted GAO in an effort to have representations to the 

contrary retracted 

CONCERNS ABOIT LOCAL SAFI-:T^ I.MPACTS 

At NS no known risk exists in a "safety vacuum " Where appropriate. NS has 

pursued and will continue to pursue, measures to avoid potential adverse impacts on safety 

Joint Comments of Shell O i l Company and Shell Chemical 
Company (SOC-3), at 9. 

-"Letter of October 21. 1997 from Congressman Robert Menendez 
to the Members of the Surtace Transportation Board, at 2. See 
also Responsive Application (Subnumber 74), f i l e d with the 
Surface Transportation Board by Congressman Dennis J. Kucinich, 
at 10 . 

-iLi: U.S, General Accounting O f f i c e , Railroad 
'I rai..-portac 1 on : Federal Railroad Administration's Kew Approach t o 
Railroad Safety, July 1997, at ^. 
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at particular locations. In addition, the STB's Section of Environmental Analysis is 

scmtinizing loea' safety effects, and is empowered to require mitigation if necessary. 

V. Conclusion 

Rail stakeholders and the public have a legitimate right to expect ihat eastem rail 

restrucmring will be carried out in the safest manner possible, NS's safety record and the 

concrete steps we have taken to address parties' concems firmly demonstrate that safety is at 

the forefront of Jiis proceeding. In the final analysis, I believe the Comail transaction will 

be seen not just as having a neutral effect on safety - frankly, NS would consider that less 

than an achievement - but as greatly improving transportation safety in the United States. 

10 

P-642 



VERIFICATION 

I. Charles J. X '̂ehrmeister, verify under penalty' of perjury ihâ  the foregoing statement is 
tme and correct Funher. 1 ^ertity that 1 am qualified and authorizec. to file this statement 

Executed December 8, 1997. 

Charles J Wehrmeister 
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My name is William W. Whitehurst. Jr. 1 am President of W.W. Whitehurst & 

Associates, Inc., an economic consulting firm specializing in financial analyses, cost 

accounting, and other economic regulatory issues involving the railroad industry. On behalf 

of Applicants CSX Corporation and CSX Transportation, Inc. (jointly, "CSX"), I previously 

submitted a verified staiement included in the Railroad Consolidation Application filed 

June 23. 1997 in this proceeding (CSX/NS-18). A description of my background and 

professional qualifications was included as Appendix A to tl .a verified staiement. 

I have been asked by Applicants CSX and NS (Norfolk Souihem Corporation and 

Norfolk Southem Railway Company) to analyze and respond to the testimony submitted on 

behalf of various shipper interests by Alfred E. Kahn. Fredenck C. Dunbar and Thomas D. 

Crowley relating to the acquisition cost of Consolidated Rail Corporalion ("Conrail") and its 
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potential impact on the Board's revenue adequacy and revenue/variable cost ("r/vc") 

jurisdictional threshold determinaticns.' 

In brief, these shipper wimesses contend that: (1) the purchase price paid for Conrail 

by CSX and NS exceeds the historic book or market value of Conrail (variously defined) by 

a large amouni and, to that extent, reflects what they characterize as a substantial acquisition 

"premium"; (2) as a result of the proposed transaction, CSX and NS will have both the 

increased ability (due to transaction-related increases in market power) and need (in order to 

pay for Conrail) to impose excessive rate increases, particularly for so-called "captive" 

shippers; and (3) CSX and NS will, at least to some extent, be able to implement these rate 

increases free from the Board's scrutiny because inclusion of the acquisition "premium" in 

the railroads' financial reports for regulatory purposes would raise applicable regularui j rate 

"ceilings" by both reducing the carriers' rales of relum on investment for revenû ; auê  «*.cy 

purposes and increasing system-average URCS variable cosls of service and the applicable 

180 percent r/vc jurisdictional threshold for Board rate regulatory jurisdiction (49 U.S.C. 

§ 10707(d)). To prevent the claimed erosion of these rate protections, Kahn/Dunbar and 

Crowley urge thai the Board impose a "mechanical" fix in the form of a condition requiring 

that the acquisition "premium" be recorded by CSX and NS in ai account (Accouni 80 

-- Other Elements of Investment) that is excluded from consideration in revenue adequacy 

and jurisdictional threshold determinations." 

' Messrs. Kahn and Dunbar sponsored a joint verified statement that was submitted 
separately by Atlantic City Electnc Company and Indumapolis Power & Light Company 
("ACE, et al.") (ACE. et al,-l8) and Consumers Energy Company (CE-05). Mr. Crowley 
submitted testimony on this and other issues on behalf of ACE, et al (ACE, el al.-18). and 
substantially similar staiements on behalf of Consumers Energy Company (CE-05) and GPU 
Generation. Inc. (GPU-02), In addition, Centerior Energy Corporation (CEC-05) submitted 
a statement by Frank S, Harris II (a colleague of Mr. Crowley) containing essentially the 
same analysis and conclusions Unless otherwise indicated, citations to this testimony shall 
refer to the statements included in the ACE, et al.-l8 filing. 

^ § ^ ICC Docket No 40581, Georgia Power Co. v. Southem Railway Co. (served 
November 8, 1993), Appendix (August 18, 1993 staff memorandum at 13). 
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My analysis of these claims is addressed below under the following topics: 

• Shippers' Characterization of the Acquisition "Premium" 

• The Board's Purchase Accounting Rules and Use of Acquisition Cost 

For Regulatory Purposes 

• Projected Financial Impacts of the Acquisition Cost of Conrail on CSX 

and NS 

• Potential Impact of Conrail's Acquisition Cost on Revenue Adequacy 

and Jurisdictional Threshold Determinations 

As explained below, I conclude that: (1) the shipper witnesses have mischaracterized 

the Conrail purchase price as including an acquisition "premium" to the extent they suggest 

that it is excessive or does not accurately reflect the curreni value of Conrail and the 

anticipated efficiencies and other merger benefits projected to result from the proposed 

transaction; (2) the Board's accounting mles and decisions require that asset values as 

recorded for regulatory purposes reflect acquisilion cost, not predecessor cost; (3) taking into 

account transaction-related efficiencies and traffic gains, CSX and NS will be able to finance 

the acquisition of Conrail and generate net income gains, without raising overall rate levels; 

and (4) the shippers' claims lhat the use of Conrail's acquisition cost (rather than its pre-

transaction historic net book value) for regulatory purposes would significantly raise 

applicable rate reguiatory "ceilings" are inconect, primarily because they wholly ignore the 

impact of anticipated merger efficiencies and other benefits that will result from the proposed 

transaction. 

I have also heen asked to analyze and respond to the separate testimony of 

Mr. Crowley regarding trackage rights compensation, submitied on behalf of Indianapwlis 
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Power & Light Company ("IP&L"). This topic is addressed at the end of my verified 

statement. 

SHIPPERS' CHARACTERIZATION 
OF THE ACOUISITION "PREMIUM" 

The purchase price paid by CSX and NS for Conrail was $9,895 million, plus 

assumed liabilities and transaction fees. Kahn/Dunbar and Crowley claim that this purchase 

price reflects a large acquisition "premium," but they use that term inconsistently and 

indiscriminately. At different places in their testimony, these wimesses refer to the acquisi

tion "premium" as the amount in excess of net book value (Kahn/Dunbar VS at 17), book 

value of Conrail shares (Crowley VS at 23). historical book value (jj^. at 26). gross b !jk 

value (id, at 25; Kahn/Dunbar VS at 16), the market price of Conrail slock immediately 

prior to the announcement of the proposed CSX acquisition of Conrail (Crowley VS at 25), 

the market value of Conrail's asseis (Kahn/Dunbar VS at 18), and "original cost" (id, at 17). 

Implicitly, lhey suggest that the purchase price paid for Conrail is excessive, although they 

nowhere say so directly.̂  

If these witnesses (and the parties they represr t̂) are suggesting lhat the purchase 

price paid by CSX and NS for Conrail is excessive, or c es not reflect the actual fair market 

value of Conrail's business and assets as part of the integrated CSX ana NS rail systems, 

they are wrong: the purchase pnce reflects no such acquisition "premium." The purchase 

price for Conrail was established ihrough arms' length bargaining among independent, 

commercially sophisticated and well-advised panies. Because most railroad services are 

competitive, and railroads (unlike heavily regulated public utilities) enjoy no guaranteed rales 

of return. CSX and NS had no reason to pay more than fair value for Conrail. Indeed, the 

Application includes unchallenged and unrebutted tesiimony establishing that the financial 

' Mr. Crowley does use the term "overstated value" with reference lo the acquisition 
cost of Conrail. Crowley VS at 28. 
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terms of the proposed transaction uncluding the purchase pnce) are fair and reasonable.* 

Kahn/Dunbar and Crowley offer no evidence to suggest that the purchase price paid for 

Conrail is excessive or othennise does not reflect the true current value of Conrail's business 

in the hands of CSX and NS." 

COMPARISONS TO 
PRE-ACOUISrriON MARKET PRICE OF STOCK 

Of course, as Kahn/Dunbar and Crowley note, the purchase price of Conrail 

(including assumed liabilities and transaction fees) does substantially exceed, by varying 

amounts, the pre-transaction market value of Conrail's outstanding publicly traded stock, 

Conrail's pre-transaction total shareholder equity, and the histonc net book value of Conrail's 

road property and equipment assets (only the latter of which is relevant for regulatory 

purposes), Crowley VS at 25-29. As a general matter, these facts are neither unusual nor a 

matter for concem. 

* See CSX/NS-18. Vol. 1. Levy VS at 555; CSX/NS-IR Vol 1, Nolop VS at 460; 
CSX''NS-18. Vol, 1, Hamilton VS at 569; CSX/NS-18. Vol, 1. Goodwin/Wolf VS at 598. 

* Kahn/Dunbar suggest that the purchase pnce might be excessive to the extent it 
reflects the Applicants' expectation of monopoly profits resulting from transaction-related 
increases in market power, Kahn Dunbar VS at 18-19, In my judgment, it is highly dubious 
to think that CSX and NS would have paid more than the fair value of Conrail in the belief 
lhat they could generate increased economic rents. In fact, lo the extent lhat the transaciion 
introduces two-camer rail service post-acquisition at points served only by one railroad pre-
acquisiuon, competition will be increased -- thus leducing the opportunities for economic 
; nts. If nothing else, this theory assumes that .Applicants believed, in setting the purchase 
piice, lhat the Board would approve an anti-competitive transaction, which is contrary lo all 
recent rail merger decisions (including BNSF and UP SP). in which the Board and its 
predecessor have taken care to ensure that any adverse competitive effects would be 
remedied. In any event, other witnesses for Applicants show lhat the iransaction as proposed 
will not reduce competition or increase market power. Further, as I discuss below, the fact 
that anticipated merger efficiencies, traffic and revenue gains, and related benefits more lhan 
justified the purchase price of Conrail also demonstrates lhat the purchase price of Conrail 
does not reflect anticipated economic rents. 
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As should be apparent to anyone who has read newspaper accounts of proposed 

corjwrate mergers and acquisitions involving publicly traded companies, it is not at all 

uncommon for the purchase pnce of such a company lo exceed, often by a large amount, the 

pre-merger m.arket value of the company's publicly traded slock or the company's total 

shareholder equity. A major reason for this is lhat substantial synergies may be available to 

the acquirer in combination with the acquiree lhat are not available to the acquiree on a 

stand-alone basis.* 

More generally, as Professor Kalt discusses in his rebuttal verified statement, the 

purchase pnce may be justified by any number of factors, including the purchaser's expecta

tion that the acquired company will be more valuable under its control, as a result of 

improved management of the acquired company's assets and business, efficiencies related to 

the combination of the acquired company's assets with those of the purchaser, and similar 

considerations. In this limited sense, the purchase price may reflect a control "premium," 

but such a "premium" is merely a portion of the (explicit or implicit) discounted cash flow 

values of synergies inherent in the combinaticn. This is certainly lme in the case of Conrail. 

TTie Application documents the substantial efficiencies, service improvements, incremental 

traffic gains, and other benefits that the proposed Conrail transaciion will generate. By 

attracting new traffic to Conrail's lines, the proposed transaction will revitalize many Conrail 

assets, and the pi rchase pnce reflects this. 

* .\n example recounted in the present Application is the economies of north-south 
intermot''ai service, which is attractive for CSX and NS in combination with Conrail, but 
does not provide the same economies to Conrail as an independent railroad whose long hauls 
are east-west. 
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COMPARISONS TO 
HISTORIC NET BOOK VALUE 

It is even less surprising or unusual lhat the purchase price for Conrail exceeds the 

historic net book value of Conrail's road property and equipment assets as recorded on LS 

books for regulatory purposes. Under generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") 

and the Board's Uniform System of Accounts for railroads ("USOA"). assets are usually 

recorded on the ccmipany's books at depreciated onginal (or historic) cost to the owner. 

Particularly in the case of assets with relatively long service lives (which is the case for a 

large share ot a railroad's investment), historical cost will not reflect - and often will be 

significantly less than -- cunent market values. What it cost a railroad to build a rai' line or 

acquire land for a nght-of-way a century ago has little relationship lo the current .alue of 

these assets 

In the case of Cjnrail. 'I:ere is even less reason to presume any relationship between 

the depreciated histoncai as'̂ et values recorded on Conrail's books and the cunent market 

value ot those assets Tlie book value of its assets does not even reflect depreciated original 

cost, but rather is skewed as a result of the prcx:ess by which Conrai! was created. 

Conrail came into being as a government-owned railroad in 1976. designed to operate 

certain rail properties that were ordered by the govemment lo be conveyed to Conrail by 

Penn ("eiiirai and a number of other bankrupt raiiroads in the Nonheast. Pursuant to the 

Final System Plan developed by the U.S. Railway Association ("USRA"), designated assets 

of the bankmpt nii!n»ads were conveyed to Conrail, and recorded on its books at "acquisilion 

cost" (the amount the I'.S. govemment paid, through Conrail, to the vanous bankmpt 

railroad estates tor the transferred rail properties). The "acquisition cost" for the various rail 

lines and other properties conveyed to Conrail was determined initially by USRA through 

extensive valuainni studies based on the net liquidation value of the properties, reflecting the 

fact that the h.uiknipt railroads were no longer viable as going concems. The estates of the 

bankrupt i . r lMd- then vinitested both the basis of valuation and the amounts in lengthy 
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proceedings before the Special Court, the railroad reorganization court established by 

Congress in the Regional Rail Reorganization Act of 1973 (the "3-R Act") to supervise the 

reorganization of the Northeast rail system and the associated creation of Conrail. In those 

proceedings, which continued for several years after the creation of Conrail and the convey

ance of properties to it on April I, 1976, the Special Court confirmed USRA's view that the 

"acquisition cost" of properties conveyed to Conrail should be established based on their net 

liquidation value, which was the basis used by USRA. The Special Court also held, however, 

that the particular valuations determined by USRA under the net liquidation value methodolo

gy were understated.' 

Taking the Special Court's various mlings as guidance, the govemment parties and 

most of the individual bankmpt estates subsequently negotiated se»»lements which involved 

additional payments to the bankmpt estates by the U.S, govemment for the railroad proper

ties acquired by Conrail, The additional payments by the federa govemment resulted in 

retroactive increases in the "acquisition cost" of the rail lines conveyed lo Conrail, and the 

associated asset values recorded on Conrail's books. Hence, the values assigned to assets 

conveyed to Conrail upon its commencement of operations on April 1. 1976 were adjusted in 

1978, 1980. and 1981 to reflect the Special Court proceedings and the settlement agreements. 

In ils Annual Reports to the ICC (Form R-1) for those years, Conrail addressed these 

conveyance adjustments in the Notes to Financial Statements, showed the adjustments by 

individual property account in Schedule 330. "Road and Exjuipment Property." 

As a result of thi: process, the asset values recorded on Conrail's books do not reflect 

any reliable or accurate measure of even depreciated original cost, much less provide any 

coherent barometer of cunent market value. In many (if not most) instances, the net 

liquidation value methodology yielded a valuation of the bankmpt railroads' properties lhat 

In re Valuation Proceedings Under Sections 303(c) and 306 of the Regional Rail 
Reorganization Act of 1973. 445 F, Supp. 994 (Special Court, R.R.R.A. 1977), 531 F. 
Supp, 119i (Special Court. R.R.R.A. 1981). 
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was less than those railroads histonc depreciated investment (or net book value) in such 

properties. In other words, in many instances the "acquisilion cost" of the conveyed 

properties to Conrail was less than the value ai which the predecessor railroads carried these 

properties on their own books and records prior to the mandated conveyance to Conrail. The 

settlements between the bankmpt estates and the govemment had the effect of increasing 

these asset values to some degree, but it remains the case lhat lhey were based on net 

liquidation value, which was less lhan depreciated original cost in many (if not most) 

instances. 

Thus, book value is not normally a reliable measure of the cunent value of -ailroad 

assets. In view of the peculiar circumstances of its creitio.;, that is especially tme with 

respect to Conrail. 

CONCLUSIONS REGARDING 
CHARACTERIZATION OF SO-CALLED ACOUISITION "PREMIUM" 

As this discussion reveals, the references by Kahn/Dunbai and Crowley to the so-

called acquisition "premium" paid by CSX and NS for Conrail are misleading, at least 

insofar as they suggest that the purchase price for Conrail did not reflect fair market value. 

The purchase price clearly does substantially exceed the pre-transaction net book value of 

Corrail's road property and equipmer. assets (the asset values used lor regulatory purposes). 

When these witnesses argue that the acquisition "premium" should be excluded from 

consideration in revenue adequacy and jurisdic -onal threshold determinations, it is this 

amount - the excess of the purchase pnce over net book value of road property and 

equipment assets - that they hav̂ : in mind. Accordingly, while the term acquisition 

"premium" is misused and inconsistently defined by the.se witnesses. 1 will use it as a 

shorthand reference to mean solely the difference between the acquisition cost of Conrail 

stock and the pre-transactior. book value of Conrail's assets for regulatory purposes. 

9-

P-656 



THE BOARD'S PlTtCHASE ACCOUNTING RULES 
AND USE OF ACOUISITION COST FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES 

Under principles embodied in GAAP and the Board's Uniform System of Accounts 

for railroads (49 C.F.R. § 1201) ("USOA"), assets are recorded on a company's books at 

cost. When a railroad (such as Conrail) is acquired through purchase or merger, the value of 

ils assets is reflected on the purchaser s books at acquisition cost, resulting in an adjustment 

in the pre-transaction book values. These purchase accounting mles have been in place for 

over 35 years. Although Kahn Dunbar and Crowley do not expressly contest the applicabili

ty or requirements of these accounting mles, at places they suggest that inclusion of the 

acquisition "premium" in the CSX and NS property accounts for regulatory purposes would 

be "improper" and that adjusting the Conrail asset values to reflect the acquisition cost of 

Conrail to CSX and NS is "without regard to correct accounting rules." Crowley v r al 30, 

31 n.29. In light of these assertions, it may be helpful to review the Board's accounting 

mles and how they apply to the proposed Conrail fransaction. 

PURCHASE ACCOUNTING 
RULF^ inSDER THE BOARD'S USOA 

The USOA prescribes the accounting mles goveming the financial statements that 

railroads are required to file with the Board as pan of their Annual Repon Form R-l. The 

revenues, expenses, and asset values reflected on these financial statements are used for a 

variety of regulatory purposes, including both the Board's annual revenue adequacy determi

nations and its development of earner-specific URCS vanable cost formulas used in 

jurisdictional threshold determinations in individual rate cases. 

The Board's accounting rules generally require that asseis be recorded on a rail 

carrier's books for regulatory purpt)ses at histoncai cost, USOA. Instmctions for Property 

Accounts § 2-1. The regulations also address the proper treatment of asset values in the case 
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of the merger, consolidation, or purchase of a rail '::arrier. Section 2-15(a) of the USOA's 

Instmctions for Property Accounts slates that: 

(a) When a railway or portion thereof constituting an operating unit 
or system is acquired by merger or consolidation in a pooling of interests or 
by purchase the cost of acquisition represented by cash, capital stock or other 
securities issued or assumed, liabilities assumed, and other consideration, shall 
be recorded in the accounts m the manner stated hereunder. . . . (Emphasis 
added.) 

Section 2-15(c) of the instmctions, which addresses accounting for purchase (as 

opposed to pooling of interest) transactions, provides ihaf 

(c) Purchase: 

(1) When the acquisition results from a purchase (except from 
subsidiaries controlled through ownership of the majority share of voting 
slock) including mergers or consolidations other than pooling of interests, the 
amouni includible in accouni 731, "Road and Equipment Property," shall be al 
the cost at the date of acquisition to the purchaser of the transportation proper
ly acquired. The cost assigned to the property, as well as other assets ac
quired, shall be the amount of the cost consideration given. Where property 
and other assets are acquired for other than cash, including liabilities assumed 
and shares of stock issued, cos' shall be determined by either the fair value of 
the consideration given or the fair value of the assets acquired, whichever is 
more clearly evident. In addition to any liabilities assumed, provision shall be 
made for such estimated liabilities as may be necessary. 

(2) When the cosls of the individual units or classes of transporta
lion propeny are not specified in the agreement, the cost assigned such 
propeny shall be apportioned among the appropriate primary accounts using 
the percentage relationship between the fair values for each class of pTperty 
acquired and the total of such values. (Emphasis added). 

Thus, these mles require that, in the case of transactions accounted for as a purchase 

as opposed to a pooling of interests.*' the assets of the acquired carrier must be adjusted (uj>-

* The USOA instmctions prescribe different mles for pooling of interests, a narrov/ 
category of transactions in w hich the form, but not the substance, of a carrier's identity is 

(continued...) 
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ward or downward) to reflect acquisition cost to the purchaser. Acquisition cost for these 

purposes means the cash purchase price or. where propeny is acquired for other than cash 

(including assumption of liabilities), either the fair value of the consideration given or the 

fair value of the assets acquired, whichever is more clearly evident. These mles conform 

precisely to the requirements of GAAP, See Financial Accounting Standards Board, 

Accounting Standards - Cunent Text § B50,125 (1997 Supp.). The required adjustments to 

a carrier's propeny accounts to reflect acquisition cost in connection with a purchase 

transaction are known as purchase accounting adjustments.' 

*(...conlinued) 
altered ihrough an exchange of existing stock. See USOA. Instmctions for Property 
Accounts § 2-15(b); S. Davidson. C. Stickney, & R. Weil, Financial Accounting: A 
Introduction to Concepts. Methods, and Uses 482 85 (2d ed, 1979): Financial Accounting 
Standards EJoard, Accounting Standards - Cunent Text §§ B.50,104-. 124 (1997 Supp,), Il 
is my understanding that the proposed Conrail acquisition would not qualify as a pooling of 
interests under the USOA or GAAP. 

' Mr Crowley injects an unfortunate amount of confusion into this subject by inconect
ly suggesting that the purchase accounting rules governing revenue adequacy determinations 
are different than those which apply to junsdictiona; threshold determinations, Crowley VS 
at 27-28. In point cf fact, both revenue adequacy and junsdictional threshold (i.e.. URCS 
vanable cost) determinations are ba.sed on financia statements prepared in accordance with 
the USOA and submitted in each railroad's Annual Report Form R-l. The purchase 
accounting mles descnbed in the preceding text thus apply equally to both regulatory 
functions. In particular. Mr, Crowley is tiatly wrong when he claims that revenue adequacy 
determinations are based on the lesser ot purchase pnce or appraised value of the acquired 
assets, while carriers can elect for junsdictional threshold purposes to record the acquired 
asseis at either purchase pnce or appraised value (even when the latter is greater in amount 
than the fonner). As the USOA makes clear, acquisition cost is the goveming accounting 
standard. For assets acquired for cash, cash purchase price represems acquisition cost. For 
asseis acquired other than for cash (such as a combination of cash and assumption of 
liabilities), acquisition cost is the fair value of the consideration given or the fair value of the 
asseis acquired, whichever is more clearlv evident. Thus, appraised value is relevant except 
when the consideration is limited to cash. Although not entirely clear, it appears that Mr. 
Crowley's confusion stems from his fai luie to recognize that purchase price can (as in the 
case ofthe Conrail transachon) involve both cash and non cash (i,e,. assumed liabilities) 
consideration. 
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The Board's purchase accounting mles have been in place for many years, and the 

purchase accounting adjustments to property accounts required under these mles are a regular 

and normal phenomenon in the railroad industry. The required adjustments in property 

accounts can work in either direction. In some merger, consolidation, and purchase 

transactions, the acquisition cost has been less than the pre-existing book value of the 

acquired carrier's road propeny and equipment (i.e.. "predecessor cost"). In that event, the 

Board's mles require lhat the acquired assets b<~ written down in value lo reflect the lower 

acquisition cost. This was the situation, for example, in several large rail consolidation 

transactions discussed by the ICC in its 1990 decision in Ex Pane 483. where the agency 

reaffirmed the application of ils purchase accounting mles and concluded that acquisition cost 

(rather lhan predecessor cost) should be used for regulatory purposes even when acquisition 

cost was less than predecessor cost.'" It was also tme in transaC'ons such as the purchase 

of Souihem Pacific Transporiation Company by Rio Grande Industries in the late I980's." 

More recently, as Mr. Crowley notes, a number of railroads have been acquired at a 

cost lhat exceeds the acquired carrier's histonc net book value (e.g.. UP/CNW, BNSF. 

UP/SP). Crowley VS at 27-28. In these transactions, the Board's purchase accounting mles 

require lhat the value of the acquired carrier's assets for regulatory purpo5«s be written m? to 

reflect acquisition cost. 

The logic of these purchase accounting mles is that, as a general msiter, assets should 

be recorded on a earner's books at actual cost to the owner at the time of acquisilion. When 

ICC Ex Parte No. 483. Railroad Revenue Adequacy - 1988 Determination. 
6 I.C.C.2d 933 (1990). affd sub norn. Association of \merican Railroads v. I££, 978 F.2d 
737 (D.C, Cir. 1992), 

" Indeed, as my prior discussion reveals. Conrail's existing book asset values for 
regulatory purposes reflect a substantial wnte-down in value at the lime Conrail was created 
and ils assets were transfened to i : from the predecessor bankmpt railroads. The accounting 
treatment of Conrail's creation thus simply reflected prevailing purchase accounting mles. 
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one railroad purchases another, the actual cost is the purchaser's acquisilion cost, not the 

values reflected on the acquired or selling carrier's books. 

APPLICATION OF THE BOARD'S FLTICHASE 
ACCOLTVTING RULES TO THE CONRAIL TRANSACTION 

The proposed acquisition and allocation of Conrail is subject to the Board's purchase 

accounting mles set forth in the USOA and described in the previous section. Accordingly, 

in developing the pro forma financial statements included in the Application in this proceed

ing. Applicants applied these accounting mles and included appropriate purchase accounting 

adjustments based on 1995 adjusted "base year" results for CSX, NS, and Conrail and a 

preliminary estimate of the fair market value of Conrail's assets. The results of this analysis 

are contained in the pro fonnas included as Appendices C and G of CSX/NS-18. 

For purposes of the pro forma financial statements, the pre-transaction net book value 

of Conrail's road property and equipment asseis was $6,693 million. This amount reflects 

the values shown on Conrail's books at year-end 1995 (the "base year" for purposes of 

analysis), wi .i adjustments lo exclude certain non-recurring items. The total purchase price 

for Conrail from an accounting view (S9.895 million plus assumed liabilities and transaction 

fees) substantially exceeded Conrail's pre-transaction book value. As a result, under the 

Board's purchase accounting mles (and GAAP), a write-up in the value of Conrail's assets 

was required to reflect the actual acquisition cost. 

Because the economic consideration for Conrail included both cash and non-cash 

items ( i^^ . assumption of liabilities), the pertinent USOA instmctions required lhat the 

purchase accounting adjustments be based on the fair value of the consideration given or the 

fair value of the assets acquired, whichever is more clearly evident. To assist in this 

assessment of acquisition cost, Applicants relied on the preliminary results of an independent 

estimate of the fair \alue of Conrail's road property and equipment assets prepared by Price 
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Waterhouse,'̂  As discussed according to this preliminary estimate, the cunent fair value of 

Conrail's road property and equipment assets is $16,243 million. This figure was less than 

the total purchase price plus assumed liabilities and transaction fees ($17,242 million)." 

Because the preliminary Price Waterhouse estimate focuses on the fair value of Conrail's 

road property and equipment. Applicants used the lower fair value figure as the basis for the 

required purcha.se accounting adjustments to Conrail's road property and equipment assets 

reflected in the pro formas, assigning the difference to accounts that are excluded from 

revenue adequacy and jurisdictional threshold determination* .''' This resulted in an estimat

ed write-up of $9,550 million in the value of Conrail's road property and equipment assets 

($16,243 million fair value estimate minus pre-transaction adjusted book value of 

$6,693 million). As with the other elements of Conrail's financial statements, the pro formas 

divided the Conrail asset write-up between CSX (42%) and NS (58%) based on their 

respective percentage ownership interests in Conrail (thus assigning $4,011 million to CSX 

and S5,539 million to NS). CSX/NS-18. Vol, 1, at 133, 171, This analysis assumed, for 

purposes of the pro forma financial statements, that CSX and NS would each account for the 

'• A copy of the preliminary Price Waterhouse fair value estimate, as revised on June 2, 
1997. IS included as Exhibit WWW-1 to this venfied statement. 

" The difference, estimated to be S999 million based on the preliminary results of the 
Pnce Waterhouse fair value estimate, was assigned to "goodwill," which is defined as the 
amount by which the acquisition cost exceerls the fair value of the acquired assets. The 
"goodwill" appears within the category "Other long lerm Assets" in the pro forma balance 
sheets, CSX/NS-18. Vol. I . at 133, 171. Amounts assigned to goodwill are not considered 
as part of the investment base in revenue adequacy and jurisdictional threshold determina
tions. 

Mr. Crowley apf)ears to have this relationship backward, as he suggests that "ap
praised (fair) value" exceeds "acquisition cost" and that, under the Board's accounting mles, 
assets may be wntten up to reflect fair value even when it is greater lhan acquisilion cost. 
Crowley VS at 27-28. His discussion overiooks the basic point that purchase price (or 
acquisition cost) includes both cash purchase price of the acquired Conrail stock and assumed 
liabilities. When assumed liabilities arc taken into consideration, the actual purchase price 
for Conrail exceeded the fair value of the Conrail road property and equipment assets as 
reflected in the preliminary Price Waterhouse fair value estimate. 
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entire portion of their ownership interest in Conrail on a consolidated basis together with 

their separate pre-existing rail operaiing assets. 

The purchase accounting adjustments depicted in the pro forma financial statements 

are necessarily split between combined CSX/Conrail (Appendix C to CSX/NS-18) and 

NS/Conrail (Appendix G to CSX/NS-18) presentations. To isolate the purchase accounting 

adjustments for Conrail as a whole, so lhat one can see the accounting involved for the entire 

transaction, I have re-assembled the CSX and NS portions of Conrail and the CSX and NS 

purchase accounting entries from the "base year" balance sheets to show the total effect on 

Conrail. The source of this re-assembly is the pro forma balance sheets submitted in the 

Application. The resulting "base year" pro forma balance sheet before and after the purchase 

accounting adjustments is presented as Exhibit WWA\'-2, 

As can be seen on Exhibit WWW-2, pnncipal components of the accounting adjust

ments to reflect the acquisiuon cost of Conrail to CSX and NS include: (1) a write-up of 

assets to estimated fair value (from $6,693 aillion to $16,243 million); (2) addition of acqui

sition debt to the long-term debt (from $1,911 million to $12.116 million); and 

(3) elimination of Conrail equity, reflecting CSX and NS ownership of all Comail shares. In 

addition accumulated defened taxes are adjusted to reflect the fair value asset adjustments. 

In summary , the purchase of Conrail has been accounted for in accordance with the puichase 

accounting mles contained in the USOA. 

Thus, application of the Board's accounting mles will likely result in a substantial 

write up in the value of Conrail's road property and equipment assets to reflect the actual 

acquisition cost of Conrail, Based on the pro forma analysis, the amount of that write-up is 

currently esnmated to be $9,550 million. The r.ecise amount and presentation of any such 

adjustment, however, will not be determined unjl the proposed Conrail transaction is 

completed and consummated for accounting purposes. For a number of reasons, the final 

amoun! of the asset write-up may differ from the amount shown in the pro forma financial 

statements. For example, the size of the write-up will be based on the anal results of the 
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appraisal of the fair value of Conrail's assets, and on the actual property values reflected on 

Conrail's books at the time the transaciion is consummated for accounting purposes, both of 

which may well differ from the figures used in the pro forma financial statements. In any 

event, however, purchase accounting mles will apply. 

PROJECTED FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF THE 
ACOUISITION COST OF CONRAIL ON CSX AND NS 

A centerpiece of the arguments presented in the Kahn/Dunbar and Crowley testimony 

is that CSX and NS will have the ability (through increased market power created as a result 

of the proposed iransaction) and the compelling need (in order to cover the large acquisition 

"premium" they claim is reflected in the purchase pnce for Conrail) to raise rates excessive

ly, particularly for so-called "captive" shippers. Other witn'̂ sses for Applicants address the 

issue of the competitive effects of the proposed transaction. It is my purpose here to address 

the assertion that CSX and NS will be forced to raise rates in order to pay for Conrail. 

The short answer to this claim is that CSX and NS simply do not need lo raise rates 

to finance their acquisition of Conrail, To the contrary, as th^ pro forma financial statements 

and estimates of public and pnvate transaction-related benefits included in the Application 

demonstrate, the proposed transaction will generate substantial recurring cost efficiencies and 

incremental traffic gams that will permit CSX and NS to finance the debt incuned to acquire 

Conrail - without ariy assumed overall rate increases. 

The pro forma financial statements reflect the anticipated effects of ihe proposed 

acquisition on the Applicant earners' financial results, using adjusted 1995 results as the 

"base vear" and assuming no increases in rate levels for iraffic gains projected to result from 

the tnuisaction. As previously discussed, the pro formas also reflect the necessary purchase 

accounting adjustments to incorporate the acquisition cost of Conrail. as well as the debt 

incurred to finance the transaction. 

17 

P-664 



The pro formas demonstrate that the proposed transaction will have strongly positive 

impacts on Applicants' financial results. A useful place to look first is the pro forma 

Statement of Cash Flows for each of the combined CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail systems. 

CSX/NS-18, Vol. 1, Appendices E and 1. They show that the anticipaied merger benefits 

(cost efficienci';s, traffic gains, etc.) are sufficient to: (1) provide cash to pay for the capital 

expenditures • quired to achieve merger benefits; (2) service the acquisition debt (both 

interest payn.ents and principal repayment) . addition to pre-exisiing CSX. NS, and Conrail 

debt; (3) generate additional net eamings; and (4) maintain a positive annual net cash flow 

after both the capital expenditures and debt service. Moreover, the pro forma cash flows 

assume aggressive debt repayment, at a rate in excess of that required to repay the acquisi 

lion debt according to its terms, in order to zero-out incremental net cash increases. If betier 

rate of retum opponunities are available, CSX and NS could each scale back their incremen

tal debt pay-down, with resulting positive net cash flow after all acquisition cash require 

ments are taken into account. 

Added indicators of lack of financial pressure to raise rales include a substantial 

projected increase in net railway operating income ("NROI"), as shown in the pro forma 

Income Statements, and annual additions to retained eamings, as shown in the pro forma 

Balance Sheets. CSX/NS-18. Vol, 1, Appendices C. D, G, & H, The NROI for the 

combined CSX/Conrail system is projected to increase by $270 million annually in the 

"normal" year (a 23 percent increase), while the projected increase for the combined NSi

Conrail system is $350 million (or 35 percent), CSX/NS-18, Vol, I , at 150. 181. Retained 

eamings for CSX/Conrail are projected to increase at a rate of $767 million (or 16 percent) 

annually, while the conesponding figure for NS/Conrail is $764 million (or 12 percent). Id, 

at 138, 169. 

In sum. aniicipated transaction-related efficiencies and incremental traffic gains more 

lhan justify the purchase price paid by CSX and NS for Conrail. Even taking into account 

the debt i . irred to finance the transaction. CSX and NS will be able to finance the purchase 

pnce, pay down the acquisition debt on an aggressive schedule, make the capital investments 
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needed to implement the transaction, and achieve net income benefits, without any assumed 

rate increases. A number of other factors not attributable directly to the proposed transacuon 

- such as reasonably anticipated iraffic growth and additional productivity improvements 

- would improve these projected financial results even more. Thus, there is no ment to the 

suggestion of Kahn/Dunbar and Crowley that CSX and NS wil! be rompelled (even assuming 

they had the ability) to raise rates overall to pay for Conrail. 

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF CONRAIL'S ACQUISITION COST ON REVENUE 
ADEQUACY AND JIltlSDICTIONAL THRESHOLD DETERMINATIONS 

Kahn/Dunbar and Crowley contend not only lhat CSX and NS will have the ability 

(Ihrough increased market power) and the need to impose excessive rale increases on 

shippers following consummaiion of the proposed Conrail transaction. They also claim that 

CSX and NS will be able (at least to some extent) to impose these excessive rate increases 

free from rale reasonableness scmtiny by the board because application of the Board's 

normal purchase accounting mles and use of acquisilion cost for regulatory accounting 

purposes will raise significantly the level of regulatory rate "ceilings" under the revenue 

adequacy and r/vc jurisdictional threshold standards. The implication of this argument is 

that, by raising the applicable rate "ceilings." the proposed transaction will enable CSX and 

NS to impose rate increases that would otherwise be found unreasonable. 

In support of this argument. Mr. Crowley presents a quantitative analysis purporting 

lo demonstrate that the effeci of including the full acquisifion cost of Conrail for regulatory 

purposes (as required under the Board's accounting mles and precedent) would be to: 

(1) significantly reduce the rate of relum of the combined CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail 

systems for purposes of the Board's annual revenue adequacy findings; and (2) significantly 

increase system-average vanable costs, and thus the r/vc jurisdictional threshold, for 

hypothetical coal movements. Crowley VS at 25-39. 
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As I discuss below, Mr. Crowley's analysis suffers from a number of technical and 

computational enors, but ils principal defect is that it completely ignores - apparently 

intentionally - the anticipated efficiencies, incremental traffic gains, and other beneficial 

impacts of the proposed Conrail transaciion. Mr. Crowley's attempted restatement of CSX 

and NS revenue adequacy and junsdictional threshold determinations includes (albeit 

incorrectly) the effects of the anticipated purchase accounting adjustments and write-up of 

Conrail's assets (which increase net investment, retum on investment, and depreciation 

expenses), but it entirely omits the effects of merger efficiencies (which reduce operating 

expenses) and traffic gains (which increase net revenues and net income). As a consequence, 

Mr. Crowley's prediction that the proposed transaction will significantiy increase applicable 

regulatory rate "ceilings" is invalid. 

REVENLT. ADEQUACY ERRORS 

Mr. Crowley asserts that the effect of including the full acquisition cost of Conrail m 

CSX and NS financial (Form R-l) reports will be to reduce dramatically the carriers' rates of 

retum for revenue adequacy purposes, and thus to make it more difficult for shippers to 

qualify for relief from unreasonable rates under the revenue adequacy component of the 

Board's Constrained Market Pncing rate standards for coal shipments as to which the serving 

railroad possesses market dominance,''' Using 1996 as his study year and the purchase 

accounting adjustments supported by the pro forma financiai statements included in the 

Application (which were based on 1995 data), Mr, Crowley claims to show that, when the 

combined CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail financial results for that year are adjusted (as 

'̂  Sm Coal Rate Guidelmes. ^;. tionwide. 1 I.C.C,2d 520. 534-37 (1985), affd sub 
nom. Consolidated Rail Corp, v. United States. 812 F.2d 1444 (3d Cir. 1988). The 
revenue adequacy constraint embodies the pnnciple that railroad revenues should not, in the 
long mn, exceed those necessary to attain a raie of retum equal to the nominal pre-tax cost 
of capital for the industry. The practical significance of this regulatory rate "ceiling" is open 
to debate, I understand that, since the Board (and its predecessor) commenced annual 
revenue adequacy determinations about two decades ago, no railroad rale has ever been 
found unreasonable nor any rate relief awarded on this ground. 
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required under the Board's accounting mles) to reflect the acquisition cost of Conrail - by 

increasing net investment to substitute the acquisition cost for Conrail's pre-transaction book 

value and by reducing NROI to reflect additional deprecialion expense on the increased 

investment base - CSX/Conrail's rate of retum would drop from 8.8 perceni to 6.2 percent, 

while NS/Conrail's rate of relum would fall from 11.6 percent to 7.6 percent. Crowley VS 

at 33-35 & Exhibit TDC-M.'* The effect of using acquisition cost for revenue adequacy 

purposes, he concludes, is to caus** the combined CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail systems to 

fall farther short of the revenue adequacy level (11.9 percent in 1996 based on the Board's 

cost of capital findings), thereby limiting otherwise available rate relief. 

Mr, Crowley's analysis (which is displayed in his Exhibit TDC-14) contains three 

fundamental errors - two lhat are technical in nature and one that is more fundamental. 

First, Mr, Crowley adjusied the figure for "Net Investment in Road and Equipment" 

(which forms pan of the denominator in the rate of retu'-n computation) to reflect a required 

write-up in the value of the Conrail assets to acquisifion cost, but he miscalculated the 

amount of the wnie-up, Mr. Crowley calculated the amount of the write-up (which he (mis)-

'" Even wiihuut adjustments to reflect the full acquisition cost of Conrail, CSX and NS 
rates of retum for revenue adequacy purposes will be affected by the proposed transaciion 
simply by virtue of the arithmetical effect of combining CSX and NS with their respective 
assigned portions of Conrail. Because Conrail's 1996 rate of retum (8.4 percent) was less 
than that of both CSX (8.9 percent) and NS (13.0 percent), including the assigned portions of 
Conrail in consolidated CSX and NS rep ts would a.rithmetically reduce their rates of 
retum. This averaging impact is reflected in Mr, Crowley's Exhibii TDC-14, It shows that, 
while CSX's rate of retum for revenue adequacy purposes was 8.9 percent in 1996, restating 
its rate of retum to include 42 percent of Conrail's financial results would reduce the 
CSX/Conrail rale of retum to 8,8 percent. Similarly, including 58 percent of Conrail's 1996 
financial results with NS's results (reflecting NS's ownership share of Conraii) would reduce 
NS s rate of retum for 1996 from 13,0 percent to 11,6 percent - even assuming no change 
in Conrail's books to reflect acquisition cost. Kahn/Dunbar and Crowley do not object to 
this impact of the transaction on CSX and NS rates of return, as it is an unavoidable effect of 
combining portions of Conrail with CSX and NS, To the contrary , this effect is reflected in 
Mr, Crowley's portrayal of the accounting procedures he urges the Board to adopt in this 
case. Crowley VS at 37. 
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characterizes as the "acquisition premium") by subtracting the pre-transacuon book value of 

Conrail shares ($3,169 million) (by which Mr. Crowley apparently means total shareholder 

equity) from the cash purchase price paid by CSX and NS for Conrail's shares 

($9,895 million), and then adding to this amount his estimate of the value of Conrail's 

accumulated depreciation and asset disposition charges that would be eliminated by the 

transaction ($2,387 million). Mr. Crowley treats the result of this computation 

($9,113 million) as the amount of uie required write-up in the value of Conrail's assets for 

revenue adequacy purposes. Crowley VS, Exhibit TDC-11. 

Mr. Crowley's computations arc incorrect. As previously discussed, the amount of 

the required write-up in the value of tbe acquired Conrail assets is based on the difference 

between the acquisition cost of Conraii (here, the estimated fair value of Conrail's assets, 

which is less than the total purchase price of cash and assumed liabilifies) and the pre

existing depreciated book value of Conrail's road propeny and equipment assets. That 

figure, based on the pro forma financial statements included in the Application and the 

preliminary Price Waterhouse fair value estimate, is $9,550 million. Mr. Crowley's 

convoluted computation involving the cash consideration (excluding assumed liabilities) and 

the amount of Conrail's shareholder equity does not reflect conect accounting mles, even 

though his results were not tembly far oft from the conect figure. 

Second, ivlr. Crowley also increased the figure for accumulated defened taxes by 

$3,490 million to reflect what he believed would be the impact of the proposed transaction 

on the combined accumulated defened taxes for CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail. Crowley VS, 

Exhibits TDC-11 & TDC-14. The conect figure, as shown in Exhibit WWW-2, is 

$3,567 million, and it appears clearly in the pro forma financial statements. CSX/NS-18, 

Vol. 1, at 133. 171, Raiher than use these readily available figures for both CSX and NS, 

Mr. Crowley derived the total adjustment for accumulated depreciafion by dividing the CSX 

figure by 42 percent (CSX's ownership share of Conrail). The allocafion of the accumulated 

depreciation adjustment between the carriers is not based precisely on the 42%/58% 
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ownership division. Mr. Crowley's figure is therefore inconect and off by a relatively small 

amount. 

Third, and most important. Mr, Crowley's calculations give no effect whatsoever to 

the positive projected impacts of the proposed Conrail transaction on operaiing expenses, 

revenues, and NROI. Mr. Crowley's computations reflect an assumed increase in operating 

expenses of $220.01 million, which involve the !'".:'̂ eascd depreciation expense associated 

with the anticipated write-up in the value of ConraU's asseis. Crowley VS, Exhibit TDC-14. 

But Mr. Crowley simply ignored the offsetting effect', on NROI resulung from projected 

reductions in operating expenses and increases in revenues from transaction-related traffic 

gains. This omission is significani. The pro forma financial statements included in the 

Application (which Mr. Crowley has not challenged) show that, as a result of the proposed 

transaciion, the "normal" year NROi of the CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail systems will 

increase by a total of S620 mili'on - even after taking account of the increased deprecialion 

expenses associated with the anticipated write-up in the value of the Conrail assets. 

CSX/NS-18, Vol. 1, at 150. 181. 

This is a funda:uental defect in Mr. Crowley's analysis. In effeci. his restatement of 

the CSX and NS rates of retum reflect (albeit incorrectly) those features of the proposed 

transaction that reduce the carriers' rates of return, but leaves out all other features that will 

increase the rates of retum. The very poim of the transaction, and the willingness of CSX 

and NS in incur the price lhey paid for Conrail. is to achieve merger-related efficiencies, 

incremental traffic and revenue gains. ser\ ice iniprovements, and other benefits. Il is 

seriously misleading for Mr. Crowley to focus solely on the aspects of the proposed 

transaction that would reduce CSX and NS rates of return while ignoring the other aspects 

that would have the opposite effect. 

Mr, Crowley's attempted restatement of (ombined CS.X Conrail and NS/Conrail rales 

of remm for revenue adequacy purposes is largely based on the same matenals underlying 

the pro forma financial statements included in the .Application. For this reason, they can 
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readily be adjusted to con-ect the three en-ors I have just identified. I have done so both for 

the year 1995 (which is used in the pro formas and from which much of Mr, Crowley's data 

were derived) and 1996 (the year used m Mr. Crowley's analysis). For each year. I have 

restated Mr. Crowley's Exhibit TDC-14 to substimte the con-ect figures for increased net 

investment and accumulated defened taxes and to incorporate the projected net operaiing 

income gain of $620 million in the NROI figure. The results of my analy.sis are contained in 

Exhibit WWW-3 (for 1995) and Exhibit WWW-4 (for 1996). 

My analysis shows that, when Mr. Crowley's rate of retum calculations are conected 

and the projected merger efficiencies and incremental traffic and revenue gams are taken into 

account (as they must be), CSX and NS rates of retum for revenue adequacy purposes are 

021 significandy reduced as a result of the proposed transaction. To the contrary, the overall 

impaci is to increase the carriers' rates of retum for revenue adequacy purposes. 

For the year 1995, which is the more pertinent year for purposes of merger-impact 

analyses. CSX/Conrail's rate of retum would increase from 6.6 percent to 7.4 percent, while 

NS/Conrail's rate of retum would hold steady at 10,4 percent. The composite rale of retum 

on investment for all three earners, taking into account the full acquisition cost of Conrail 

and merger efficiencies and traffic gains, increases from 8.5 percem to 9,0 percent. The 

latter figures are most relevant in assessing the overall impact of the proposed transaction on 

all CSX, NS and Conrail shippers as a group. 

For the year 1996, assuming the projected "normal" year income benefits of the 

transaciion would apply without change from 1995, CSX/Conrail's rate of retum would again 

increase (from 8,8 percent to 9.1 percent), while NS/Conrail's rate of retum would fall by a 

negligible amount (from 11.6 percent to 11.2 percent). For the three carriers as a whole, the 

composite rate of retum would hold constant at 10.2 percent. 

These results, it should be added, do not take into account any other factors - such as 

normal economic-related traffic growth and additional productivity improvements - lhat 

- 24 -

P-671 



could also improve the financial results of the consolidated CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail 

systems. 

In sum, even when revenue adequacy determinations for CSX and NS are based on 

the acquisition cost of Conrail, as is clearly required under the Board's accounting mles and 

precedent, it is unlikely that the earners' rates of retum for revenue adequacy purposes will 

be adversely affected in any significant way. Indeed, available evidence suggests that they 

will, in general, be positively affected. 

RJRISDICTIONAL THRESHOLD ERRORS 

Mr. Crowley funher claims that, if the acquisition cost of Conrail is used for r/vc 

jurisdictional threshold purposes, the system-average vanable costs and resulting 180 percent 

r/vc jurisdictional threshold will be increased, thus permitting CSX and NS to increase rates 

to "capnve" shippers without regulatory interference or scruliiy, He purports to quantify 

this impact by calculating the system average URCS variable costs and jurisdictional 

threshold for hypotheUcal CSX and NS coal traffic movements using both Conrail's predeces

sor cost (Le.. the net book value of Conrail"s road propeny and equipment before the trans

action) and acquisition cost (Le.. reflecting the purchase accounting adjustments displayed in 

the pro forma financial statements), Croulcx VS at 30-33. 

Based on 1995 restated URCS formulas tor the combined CSX/Coiirail and NS/-

Conrail systems. Mr. Crowley claims to show ihat lhe effect of using acquisition cost rather 

lhan predecessor cost m junsdictional threshold determinations would be to increase the 

vanable costs and jurisdichonal threshold tor a hvpothetical CSX coal movement by 

15 percent, and to increase the comparable results tor a hypothetical NS coal movemem by 

24 percent. Crowley VS at 30-33 & Exhibits TD( 12 & TDC-H, These increases result 

because the purchase accounting adjustmenis to unte up the value of Conrail's asseis to 

reflect acquisiuon cost increase both the net investment on which the remm on investmem 

componeni of URCS vanable costs is calculated and vanable depreciation expenses, 
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Mr. Crowley's jurisdictional threshold computations contain multiple enors. including 

enors of commission and enors of omission. Tne enors of commission, largely technical in 

nature, are reasonably quanufiable and correctable. Conecting the errors of omission 

- including Mr. Crowley's complete failure to incorporate in his revised URCS variable cost 

formulas ̂ ly of the anticipated merger-related efficiencies that would substantially reduce 

variable operating expenses" - would, on the other hand, involve entirely rebuilding the 

base year URCS formulas for the combined CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail systems and 

assessing the indirect effects of the proposed transaction on other URCS inputs (such as the 

industry cost of capital). These tasks could not be completed in the limited lime available for 

this response. Accordingly, 1 address the errors of commission first, and then enumerate the 

major enors of omission. 

Miscalculation and 
Misassignment of the Investment Base 

One of the three principal components of URCS vanable costs is retum on invest

ment, which is computed by multiplying net investment in road property and equipment 

assets by the industry cost of capital rate. In an attempt to show that the use of acquisition 

cost for regulatory purp)oses would increase variable return on investment cosls, 

Mr, Crowiey adjusted the pro forma 1995 CSX/Conrail and NS/Conrail URCS formulas to 

reflect the anucipated write-up in the value of Conrail's assets required under the Board's 

purchase accounting mles. In doing so. however. Mr. Crowley committed en^rs both in 

calculafing the amount of the wnle-up and in the methodology by which the wnle-up is 

allocated to individual property accounts. 

1 would note here that, in resix)nse to Applicants' discovery requests. ACE, et al. 
have admitted lhat Mr, Crowley's analysis of post-transaction variable costs and jurisdictional 
threshold levels for hypothetical traffic movements omitted any consideration of the effects of 
anticipated merger efficiencies on URCS unit costs. Intenogatory Response, ACE, et al.-20 
at 21 J2; Intenogatory Response, CD-09 at 12-13. 
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The conect way to reflect the neces,«aiy write-up in asset values required under the 

Board's purchase accounting mles is -displayed in Exhibit WWW-5. Using the preliminary 

Price Waterhouse estimate of the fair value of Conrail's asseis as my guide (consisteni with 

the pro forma fmancial statements included in the Application), I have distributed the 

purchase accounting adjustment to net investment in road property and equipment 

($9,550 million) to the various property accounts based on the Price Waterhouse preliminary 

estimated fair values for each property account. Because the preliminary Price Waterhouse 

analysis includes separate fair value estimates for each property account, the adjustments for 

each accouni reflect those specific values. The total $9,550 million adjustment to arrive at a 

fair market value of $16,243 million is comprised of the elimination of $2,472.8 million in 

accumulated depreciation and a $7,077.2 million write-up in asset values. 

Mr. Crowley's development of the purchase accounting adjustments to reflect the 

Conrail acquisition cost is displayed in Exhibit WWW-6. This exhibit also compares 

Mr. Crowley's development to the conect amounts shown on Exhibit WWW-5. Mi. 

Crowley's computations include the following enors: 

First. Mr. Crowley miscalculated the amount of the required write-up in the value of 

the Conrail asseis under the Board's purchase accounting mles. As 1 have previously 

discussed, the amount of the purchase accounting adjustment is $9,550 million, based on the 

preliminary Price Waterhouse fair value estimate and the adjusted pro forma Conrail books 

for the "base" vear 1995. This includes, as just noted, elimination of $2,472.8 million in 

accumulated depreciation, and an asset write-up of $7,077,2 million, Mr, Crowley, by 

contrast, attempts to derive the amount of the required adjustment by taking the estimated 

fair value of the Conrail asseis ($16,243 million), and subtracting from that amount the gross 

book value of Conrail's road property and equipment assets at year-end 1995 

($8,510 million), yielding an amount of $7,733 million, Crowley VS, Exhibit TDC-11. 

After adding this amount to the URCS investment base, Mr. Crowley then eliminates 

accumulated deprecialion in the amouni of $2,472.8 million to derive a total net purchase 

accounting adjustment (or write-up of Conrail assets) of $10,205.8 million. 
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As with Mr. Crowley's estimate of the required write-up for revenue adequacy 

purposes, these calculations are inconect. They do not conform to the Board's purchase 

accounung rules (or those of GAAP), which establish the principles goveming purchase 

accounting adjustments reflected on a railroad's R-l reports and which apply equally to both 

revenue adequacy and jurisdictional threshold determinations based on those reports. The 

correct purchase accounting adjustment is $9,550 million. The relauonship between the 

estimated fair value and gross asset book value is not relevant to this computation. Accord

ingly, Mr. Crowley's jurisdictional threshold calculations reflect an assumed purchase 

accounting adjustment that is overstated by $655.8 million. 

Second, in allocating the preliminary Price Waterhouse estimated fair value of the 

acquired assets amon"! the individual propjerty accounts, Mr. Crowley included an amount 

($400 million) that represents assets of Conrail's corporate paren: and assets that are not part 

of rail operations. This amount is properly included in the SEC Reix5rt 10~K for Conrail's 

parent, but it is not properly included in the operating property accounts submitted in 

Conrail's Annual Report Form R-l with the Board. 

Third. Mr, Crowley's electronic workpapers depicting his assignment of the purchase 

accounung adjustments to individual property accounts contain an algebraic enor affecting 

Account 8 (ties). The formula enor introduces a double count into the amounts (i.e.. the 

Conrail values are assigned to both CSX and NS. rather than apportioned between them). As 

a consequence of this one enor, the purchase accounting write-up in the value of Conrail's 

assets IS overstated by over $1 billion ($1,177 million to be precise). 

Fourth. Mr, Crowley used an inconect methcxiology to allocate (or spread) the total 

amount of the required wnte-up in asset values to the individual property accounts. He 

simply allocated the total amount in proportion to the histoncai 1995 amounts reflected on 

Conrail's btx)ks This is inappropriate because the preliminary Price Waterhouse fair value 

esumate -- which is the source of the amount of the required purchase accounting write-up 

~ idenufies estimated fair value amounts for each individual property account. Those 
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account-specific asset values should be employed, rather than a lump-sum pro rata allcx̂ ation 

as used by Mr. Crowley. As a result of this error (which cannot be deemed inadvertent 

given the availability of the preliminary Price Waterhouse fair value estimate to 

Mr. Crowley), the required adjustments to most of the primary property accounts are 

misstated. The effeci of this enor is to overstate the amount of the write-up (and therefore 

total net investment) in the equipment accoums (which URCS treats as 100 percent variable) 

and to understate the amount of the write-up (and therefore total net investment) in the fixed 

propeny accounts (which URCS u-eats as only 50 percent vanable). This, in tum, has the 

effect of overstating the increase in system-average variable cosls resulting from the use of 

Conrail's acquisition cost for junsdictional threshold purposes. 

Taken together, these four computational errors significantly affect Mr. Crowley's 

junsdicuoiial threshold calculauons. The amount of the purchase accounting write-up 

contained in Mr. Crowley's analysis is overstated by $1,577 million. Furthermore, because 

of his misassignment by pnmary account between road and equipment accounts, the variable 

cost investment base in his calculations is overstated by $2,179 million (or 26 percent). 

Miscalculation and 
Misassignment of Depreciation 

Another principal category of URCS vanable costs is depreciation expense, which is 

computed as a percentage of gross investment in road property and equipment assets. In an 

attempt to show that the use of acquisition cost for regulatory purposes would increase 

variable depreciation expense. Mr. Crowley adjusted the pro forma 1995 CSX/Conrail and 

NS/Conrail URCS formulas to reflect the impact of the amicipated write-up in the value of 

Conrail's asseis on annual depreciation expense. Here too, however, his calculations contain 

a number of errors. 

The correct procedure for adjusting depreciation expense to reflect the purchase 

accounung adjustments is displayed in Exhibit \V^"\V-7. The adjustments, which are also 
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based on the preliminary Price Waterhouse fair value esumate and the 1995 pro forma 

Conrail results, reflect adjustmenis to annual depreciafion expense for each individual 

property account based on the required asset value adjustment for that account. Based on 

these preliminary results, the post-transaction annual depreciation expense for Conrail would 

be $513 million. 

In Exhibit WWW-8. by contrast, I display Mr. Crowley's development of the 

purchase accounting adjustments to reflect the impact of the transaciion on depreciation 

expenses. This exhibit also compares Mr. Crowley's calculauons with the correct figures 

shown in Exhibit WWW-7. Mr. Crowley's computations contain the following enors: 

First. Mr. Crowley started with a total depreciation expense purchase accounting 

adjustment of $294 million, which in tum generates total depreciation expenses of 

S584 million. This exceeds the conect amount, as aeveloped in the preliminary Price 

Waterhouse fair value estimate, $71 million (or 14 percem). In brief, Mr. Crowley ignored 

the depreciation expense estimates in the preliminary Price Waterhouse analysis, which 

reflected account-specific esumaies of the value of the Conrail assets, their salvage value and 

remaining service lives, and resulting annual depreciation expense. 

Second, as with the allocation of the purchase accounting write-up in inv ,'stment 

values, Mr. Crowley misallocated the purchase accounting depreciation expense adjustments 

to individual property accounts by applying a lump-sum pro rata allocation rather lhan using 

the account-specific amounts shown in the preliminary Price Waterhouse fair value estimate. 

This enor has the same effect of over-allocating depreciation expense increases to those 

property accounts lhat are highly variable and under-allocating the amounts attributable to 

less variable accouais. 

Taken together, these two enors result in an overstatement of vanable depreciafion 

expense by $99 million (or 31 percent). 
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Errors 
ofOmis-sion 

Mr. Crowley's variable cost and junsdicuonal threshold calculations also contain 

several errors of omission. These are, in fact, far more significam than the errors of 

commission previously described, but are also not amenable to a straightforwaro or reliable 

conecuon or restatement. In brief, the enors of omission are three in number: 

First, as in the case of his revenue adequacy calculations, Mr. Crowley entirely 

excluded any consideration of the impact of projected merger efficiencies, and operaiing 

expense and capital expenditure reductions, on system-average URCS variable costs. As 

described in the Application s Summary of Benefits Statements and the pro forma fii.ancial 

statements, the proposed Conrail transaction will result in substantial merger efficiencies, 

including significam reductions in operating expenses and reductions in necessary capital 

expenditures. These effects would reduce URCS operating expenses (the largest component 

of URCS vanable costs) and, through reduction in capita) expenditures, reduce URCS retum 

on investment and depreciafion exjjenses, for particular traffic movements. These veunable 

cost reductions would to some degree offset the increases in system-average variable retum 

on investment and vanable depreciation expenses resulting from the purchase accounting 

adjustments required by the Board's accounting mles. 

Second. Mr. Crowley also failed to take into account in his URCS calculations the 

impact of anticipated changes in traffic volumes as a result of the proposed Conrail transac

tion. Volumes w ill change as a consequence of both intemal reroutes and incremental iraffic 

gains. Volume changes would affect both the URCS variability percents and resulting URCS 

unit costs. The amount of the impact of volume changes on post-transaction variable costs is 

uncertain and difficult to quantify, but the direction of the impact is clear: Mr. Crowley's 

failure to consider aniicipated traffic volume increases resulted in an overstatement of post-

transaction unit variable costs and jurisdictional threshold ieveis associated with the use of 

acquisition cost. 
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Third. Mr. Crowley also failed to consider the (indirect) impact of the proposed 

transaction on the industry cost of capital rate. As noted above, the retum on investment 

component of URCS variable costs is computed by multiplying the carrier's net investment in 

road property and equipment by the industry cost of capital rate. A lower cost of capital rate 

for the industry means lower variable costs. Mr. Crowley's calculations utilize the 1995 

industry cost of capital rate as determined by the Board. But he ignores the potential effects 

that the financing arrangements for the proposed Conrail transaction could have on the 

industry cost of capital rate. 

It is beyond the reasonable scope of this testimony to assess quantitatively t impact 

of the transaction on the industry cost of capital rate, but several factors suggest u ' tlie 

impact would be to reduce it. As part of the proposed transacuon, all Conrail common stock 

has been eliminated, having been purchased by CSX and NS, and thus will not be considered 

in the Board's annual cost of capital findings. Furthermore, CSX and NS have financed their 

respective shares of the acquisition through debt financing. Both of these changes will have 

die effect of changing the capital stmcture mix for the combined CSX-NS-Conrail, producing 

a higher proportion of debt and a lower proportion of equity. Because these three railroads, 

taken together, consutute approximately one-half of the major Class I railroads included in 

the Board's cost of capital findings, this shift will impact the overall industry capital sU ĉture 

mix. And, since the cost of debt is lower than the cost of common equity, the cost of capital 

will be reduced as a result of the proposed iransaction. This, in tum, would be reflected in 

reduced URCS variable retum on investment costs for particular traffic movements. 

As a result of these enors of commission and omission, Mr. Crowley's variable cost 

and jurisdictional threshold computations tell us nothing reliable about the probable impacts 

of die proposed transaction (and the use of acquisiuon cost for regulatory purposes) on future 

junsdictional threshold determinations. All of the errors idenufied suggest that 
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Mr. Crowley's predicted increase in the jurisdictional threshold levels for hypothetical traffic 

movements is greatiy exaggerated.'* 

IMPROPER WINDFALL RESULTING 
FROM THE RELIEF REQUESTED BY THE SHIPPERS 

A final comment is in order with regard to the specific relief that Kahn/Dunbar, 

Crowley and the parties they represent have requested with regard to ihe purchase price of 

Conrail. These parues seek a condiuon that would exclude consideration of the so-called 

acquisition "premium" for Conrail from considerauon in either revenue adequacy or 

junsdicuonal threshold determinations. In practical effect, they seek to require CSX and NS 

to account for the Conrail transacuon for regulatory purposes using Conrail's predecessor 

cost (L£i, pre-transaction net book value of road property and equipment assets) ramer than 

acquisition cost (as required under the USOA and GAAP). 

This requested condiuon would inappropnately bifurcate the effects of the Conrail 

iransaction, and confer on shippers a regulatory rate windfall. The effect of the condition 

would be to: (!) exclude from consideration the adduional costs associated with the full 

acquisiuon cost of Conrail (including impacts on return on investment and depreciation 

expense) in revenue adequacy and jurisdictional threshold proceedings; while (2) at the same 

time including consideration of all of the offsetting benefits resulting from the iransaction 

(including reductions in opjerating expenses and capital expenduures and incremental traffic 

The variable cost and junsdictional threshold calculations in individual rate complaint 
proceedings, moreover, are often not based on system-average URCS variable costs alone, 
but reflect numerous movement-specific special study adjustments to the system-average 
URCS values. Such special study adjustments frequently include movement-specific 
esumaies of road property and equipment ownership costs (return on investment and 
depreciation expenses), which are the two URCS cost components that Mr. Crowley claims 
would significantiv increase as a result of the use of Conrail's acquisition cost for regulatory 
purposes. For this reason. Mr. Crowley's estimates of the impact of acquisition cost on 
system-average URCS vanable costs (even if they were otherwise conect) would not 
necessarily equate to the actual results in specific rate complaint proceedings. 
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and revenue gains). Thus, CSX and NS rates of retum for revenue adequacy purposes would 

be artificially increased, and jurisdictional threshold levels would be artificially reduced, by 

incorporating in those determinations only the features of the Conrail transaction lhat benefit 

shippers. Shippers would then reap the full advantages of all of the merger efficiencies and 

benefits the transaction makes possible, but would be exempted from any of the effects of the 

costs incurred by CSX and NS lo make those efficiencies and benefits pcssible. 

Clearly, such a one-sided result cannot reasonably be justified. If the so-called 

acquisition "premium" is to be excluded from consideration in revenue adequacy and 

jurisdictional threshold determinations, neither should the offsetting benefits of the transac

tion on those findings be considered. Because the long-mn effects of the proposed transac

tion are suongly beneficial to shippe-s, this would be an unfortunate result. The appropriate 

course of action should be to adhere to the Board's existing precedent and base revenue 

adequacy and jurisdictional threshold determinations on acquisition cost. 

TRACKAGE RIGHTS COMPENSATION 

In testimony submitted on behalf of Indianapolis Power & Light Company ("IP&L"), 

Mr, Crowley proposes "that the STB set trackage rights at [[[ ]]]C per car-mile, which 

equates to [[[ ]]] mills per trailing gross ton-mile for the movement by NS over CSX 

trackage needed to access Stout and Perry K," lPL-3, Crowley VS at 18. At page 19 of his 

statement. Mr, Crowley presents a lable showing his development of the rate he proposes, 

using worktable values from an URCS he identifies as "1995 CSX/Conrail Portion 

URCS."'" 

1 have reviewed Mr, Crowley's trackage nghts compensation computations, together 

with the source I'RCS materials he used in developing them. In summary I find: 

" This IS the URCS identifimi in his work-papers as CSXCRCNP files. It represents the 
base year CSX plus CSX's 42 percent share of the base year Conrail. 
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1. Mr. Crowley has developed a proposed 4C?97 cost level rale of $[[[ ]]] per 

car-mile, or $[[[ ]]] per trailing gross ton-mile, using URCS variable costs. He 

constiiicted Uiis rate from the "1995 CSX/Conrail Portion URCS" and then escalated those 

results to 4Q97 using RCAF-A, the RCAF Index whicn includes a productivity adjustment. 

At the 1995 cost level used in the Application, these rates are $[[[ ]]] per car mile or 

$[[[ 111 per uailing gross ton-mile. 

2. The Board ("STB"), and before it the Interstate Commerce Commission 

("ICC"), in ils SSW Compensation principles calls for tiackage rights fees to be computed as 

a usage-based share of full costs for operations and maintenance, rather than only the tenant's 

share of the variable portion, plus a usage-based share of a retum element based on current 

fair market value. 

3. Mr. Crowley has proposed trackage rights rates using variable cosls m at least 

two recent merger proceedings of which 1 am aware, and the ICC/STB has rejected nis 

proposals as not meeting the SSW Compensation pnnciples both times. 

4. Using full costs, rather than variable costs, the 1995 CSX/Conrail URCS 

produces a rate at 1995 cost levels of $[[[ ]]] per car-mile, rather than the $[[[ ]]] 

which Mr. Crowley proposes. Each of these rates uses Conrail (and CSX) historical 1995 

investment base amounts for the ROI component of URCS, and neither incorporates the 

higher cunent fair market value for URCS ROI which results from incorporating acquisition 

purchase accounting adjustments to Conrail's assets. 

MR. CROWLEY'S RATE 
USES VARIABLE COSTS 

An interesting feature of Mr, Crowley's discussion of trackage rights compensation is 

that nowhere in his lext does the term "variable" appear in conjunction with the term "costs." 

Instead, he uses expressions such as "equitable compensation" and "a pro-rata share of the 
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costs incurred." IP&L wimess Weaver and die IP&L le^al narrative also studiously avoid 

any clarification of what level of costs is being proposed, sticking instead to phrases like 

"CSX's costs." 

Fortunately, an examination of Uie URCS worktable locations referenced in the table 

at page 19 of Mr, Crowley's testimony reveals all.'" Ignoring admonitions regarding Uie 

appropriate basis for computing trackage nghts in the two most recent ICC/STB major 

merger proceedings. Mr. Crowley has developed the irackage rights rale he proposes using 

variable costs. 

Mr. Crowley has further understated costs to be included in his proposed trackage 

rights rate by omitting from URCS retum on investment for road property the components 

representing: (a) roadway machines (DIL248): and (b) work equipment (D1L250). These 

components are pan of standard URCS road property retum on investment, and represent 

part of the requirement to maimain track structure. 

SSW COMPENSATION 
PRINCIPLES 

In Finance Docket 30,000. the UP/MP/WP control proceeding, and in several sub-

dockets lo that proceeding, the ICC developed what have come to be refened to as the SSW 

Compensation pnnciples. These are basic principles for setting trackage nghts compensation 

terms in merger proceedings where the parties have been unable to reach agreement. As 

recently reaffirmed and summanzed in the BNSF and UP/SP merger prcxeedings. these 

principles involve the shanng of costs between the landlord railroad and the tenant railroad 

on a relative shares of usage bas:s. The "below the wheel" costs to be shared are comprised 

of a maintenance and operations (M&O) component and an inierest rental component. The 

In his dcpositic'n. Mr. Crowley confirmed that he was computing variable costs in the 
table at page 19 of his venfied statement. Crowley Dep.. December 5. 1997. at 23-24. The 
complete transcript of Mr. Crowley's deposuion is included as Exhibit WWW-IO. 
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M&O costs include both vanable costs and fixed costs, and are sometimes entiUed "full" or 

"fully allocated" cosls. The interest rental component is calculated by multiplying the 

current fair market value of the property (rather than book value) by the railroad industry's 

cost of capital. 

These ICC/STB SSW Compensation principles put the tenant railroad in the same 

economic pos- .1 as the landlord, first by using full cosls rather than variable cosls, and 

second by using the cunem fair market value of the property raiher than pre-merger book 

value. If the tenant were to pay trackage rights compensation based only on variable cosls, 

he would enjoy a competitive ad\antage over the landlord, as he would be making no 

contribution to the landlord's fixed cos's - costs which the landlord has to recover in the 

long mn lo remain in business. The problems inherent in this situation can be seen in 

several ways. First, in terms of bidding for traffic, insofar as the trackage rights component 

of cosls is concemed, the tenant's variable costs and total costs are one and the same. 

Hence, the tenant can bid at a lower level than the landlord because he has to recover no 

cosls over and above his variable cosls while the landlord does have to cover not only 

variable costs but some portion of fixed costs. A second way to see the economic compel

itive imbalance is to assume that the tenant handled all of the iraffic over the lines of the 

landlord. If the tenant paid only vanable costs, the landlord would be left with a substantial 

portion of his total costs unreimbursed and no way to recover them. An analogous situation 

exists with regard to the base for computing retum on investment. It is most evident in 

cases, such as Uie present proceeding, where there is an actual arm's length iransaction that 

establishes fair market value. In such cases, the actual purchase price represents an 

expenditure by the landlord and. whether financed by debt, equity, or some combination 

thereof Uie landlord has tc recover his cost of capital on the funds. 

Mr. Crowley's variable cost compuutions and proposals have attracted the attention 

and specific comment of the ICC/STB in both the BNSF merger proceeding and in the 

UP/SP merger proceedings. In each of these proceedings, his variable cost proposals have 

been expliciUy rejected 

- 37 -

P-684 



COMPFJVSATION RATE USING 
1995 HISTORICAL FULL COSTS 

In other testimony on behalf of ACE, et al,, Mr, Crowley attempts to incorporate the 

current fair market value of Conrail into URCS-based vanable cost and jurisdictional 

threshold computations. Here, when addressing a trackage rights rale that forms part of the 

basis of IP&L s proposed conditions, however, he uses the historical 1995 book value of 

Conrail, In order to demonstrate the significance of the enor he makes in only using 

variable costs. 1 also use historical 1995 book value of Conrail even though, as noted above, 

SSW Compensation requires using tne higher cunent values, 

I have computed 1995 CSX/Conrail URCS "below the wheel" costs for line haul 

trackage nghts using the same URCS as contained in Mr, Crowley's workpapers. Using the 

same method followed by applicants in UP SP for operating and maintenance costs, but 

including only 1995 historical costs for investment and depreciation, I have calculated full (or 

fully allocated) cosls (i.e.. including both the variable and the fixed ponions of unit cosls). 

Components of these costs are presented in Exhibit WWW-9. As shown, the full cost (al 

1995 cost levels using 1995 historical Conrail (and CS.X) book value for the investmem base) 

for line haul trackage nghts is S[[[ J]] per car-mile, or S[([ ]]] per gross ton-mile. 

The rates which Mr, Crowley proposes are iess than half the rates that would be computed 

using fully allocatexl costs as the Board's precedents require,-' Hence, Mr. Crowley's 

analyses offer no reason to depart from the trackage rights rate negotiated by CSX and NS. 

•'' I note Uiat. for rail activities taken as a whole in 1995, variable costs represented 
approximately 70 percent of total costs for Conrail and CS.X. For "below the wheel" cosls, 
however, the vanable f)ercent is less since: (a) road propeny and retum on road property 
are 50 percent vanable with volume; and (b) the RMAINT regression equation, which drives 
a large pomon of mnning maintenance of way costs, products a variability percent uf 
approximately 60 percent for Conrail and CSX; and (c) the major portion of train control 
costs are treated as zero percent variable by URCS, 
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VERIFICATION 

I, William W. Whitehurst, Jr., declare under penalty of perjury that the 

foregoing is true and correct. Further, I certify that I am qualified and 

authorized to file this statement 

William W. Whitehurst Jr. 

Executed on: Dgcl^'r\^£/C 2 ,19_f2 
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Conrail Estimated Asset Fair Values and Annual Depreciation 
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W W.Whitehurst & Associates, Inc. 
PRO FORMA BALANCE SHEET 

CONRAIL 
(In Millions) 

Exhibit WWW - 2 

Conrail 
Ba.-« f'ear 

-D 
I 

O 
O 

Line 
Line Item Detail 

(1) 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS. & SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

PROPERTIES-NET 
OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIAEJI ITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
CUr^KCNT LIABILITIES 

SHORT-TERM DEBT 
CURRENT MATURITIES OF LONG-TERM DEBT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 
16 COMMON STOCK, $1 PAR VALUE 
17 ESOP PREFERED STOCK 
18 OTHER CAPITAL 
19 RETAINED EARNINGS 
20 TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

21 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 
6 
7 

6 

9 

10 

I t 

12 
13 
14 

ts 

Conrail Purchase Accounting Adjustments Ind Purch 
Base Year CSX Total AWlnfl AdI 

»2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 
(3) • (4) (2) • (S) 

110 0 110 
614 0 614 
519 0 519 

1,243 0 0 0 1,243 

6,693 4,011 5,539 9,550 16,243 
810 764 958 1.722 2,532 

8,746 4,775 6.497 11,272 20,U18 

89 0 89 
181 0 181 
900 170 219 389 1,289 

1,170 170 219 389 1,559 

1,911 4,277 5,928 10,205 12,116 
1,523 1,466 2,101 3,567 5,090 

973 193 87 280 1,253 
5,577 6,106 8,335 14,441 20.018 

85 (36) (49) (85) 0 
282 (118) (164) (282) 0 

1,434 (602) (832) (1,434) 0 
1.368 (575) (793) (1,368) 0 
3,169 (1,331) (1,e?8) (3,169) 0 

8,746 4.775 6,497 11.272 20,018 

mi 



W W Whitehurst & Associates, Inc 

1995 
IMPACT OF CONRAIL AND CONRAIL "PR¥.WJM" ON 

REVENUE ADEQUACY CALCULATIONS 

1995 STB FINDING 

Railroad 

(') 
CombtnedConsoiidated NROI 

• InleresI f rom Worhino Cap Cash 

• IrK Tax Non tail 

Incremental Depreciation 

• Net gain Iranslers 

• Adjusted NROI ' 

Conrail 

(2) 

CSX 

(3) 

349.999 

320 

(25161 

0 

14 843 

362,644 

425 223 

7.156 

5.171 

18,255 

466,805 

NS 

(4) 

Coniail * 

CSX • NS 

(5) 

CSX & NS With CR 
CSX 

With CR 4/ 

(6) 

715,471 

14,704 

24569 

4,409 

759,163 

NS 

With CR 41 

(7) 

1,490,693 

22.180 

27,222 

0 

37 507 

1.577.602 

572,223 

7,290 

4,113 

24 489 

606,116 

918,470 

14 890 

23,109 

13,018 

969.467 

Conrail 

"Premium' 

(8) 

Exhibit WWW • 3 
Exhibit TDC-14 Revised-1995 Data 
Page 1 of 1 

CSX A NS With CR 
And Acquisition "Premium" 

620.000 

0 

0 

0 

0 

620,000 

^ CSX 

With CR 5/ 

(9) 

832,623 

7,290 

4,113 

0 

24,489 

•66.616 

NS 

With CR 5/ 

(10) 

1,278,070 

14.890 

23,109 

0 

13,018 

1.329,067 

CSX * NS 

W*h CR 5/ 

(11) 

2.110.693 

22,160 

27,222 

0 

37.507 

2,197,602 
Corrib Net Inv HSt End 

Comb Nei Inv H i t Start 

Comb Net Inv R&E Av 

6 355 952 

6,440,4t)5 

6,396,204 

8,949,689 

0,612,775 

8,881,232 

8,589 425 

8 347,025 

23 895 066 

23,600,255 

11,619,189 

11,517.766 

12,275,877 

12,082,489 
8,468.2;>6 23,747,661 11,668,477 

OE Inv End 

OE Inv Start 

OE Inv Av 
0 

12,179,183 

9.550.000 

9,550,000 

9,660,000 

15,630.189 

15,528,766 

17.814,877 

17,621,489 
33,445 066 

33,150,255 

16.679,477 

IDC End 

IDC Start 

IOC Av 

Net Rail Rel Ass End 

Net Kail Rel Ass Start 

Net Rail Rel Ass Av 

31,919 

32 780 

32,360 

Work Cap tnd 

Work Cap Start 

Work Cap Av 

208 202 

187 974 

198,088 

109.665 

116.802 

113,234 
Acc Def Ta« End 

Acc Del Ta* Start 

Acc Del Tax Av 

1 400,411 

1 211 565 

1,306,988 

2,063.544 

2 004,995 

2.034.270 
Ta« Ad) Net Inv Bi,s*> End 

Tax Ad| Net Inv Base Start 

' Tax Ad) Net Inv Base ' 

5,195,662 

5 449 644 

6,322,653 

TAX ADJUSTEC ROI 6,8% 

6,995,810 

6 924,582 

6,960,196 

6.5% 

17,71«,1M 33,297.661 

3,197 

3,251 

3,197 

3.251 

3,224 3,224 

31,919 

32,780 

32,360 

13,406 

13,768 

13,687 

268,265 

239 i99 

253,832 

586,132 

544,175 

565.164 

197.110 

195,751 

196.43) 

2,524 852 

2,400 487 
5,986,807 

5 617,047 

2,462.670 6.802.927 

2,651,717 

2 513 852 

2,582,784 

6,329,641 

6,162,686 

6,266.164 

12.1% 

18.521 113 

18,556,912 

18,539.013 

8.5% 

9,177,988 

9 213,432 

9.196,710 

6.6% 

3,197 

3,251 

3.224 

3,197 

3.251 

3,197 

3,251 

3.224 3.224 
18,513 

19,012 
13 406 

13,768 

18,513 

19,012 
18.763 

31,91? 

32,780 

13.687 18.763 
389,022 

348 424 

368.723 

32,360 

197,110 

195,751 

196,430 
3,337,090 

3,103,195 

3,220.143 

3567 000 

3,567,000 

3,667.000 

4,149,857 

4,011,992 

4,080.924 

9,343,125 

9 343.480 

9.343,302 

5,983,000 

5,983,000 

6.983,000 

11,690,648 

11,726,292 

11,708.670 

10.4% 10.4% 7.4% 

389,022 

348,424 

586,132 

544,175 

368.723 

5,405.950 

5,172,065 

_665.164 

9,5&5,iW7 

9,184 047 

6,289,003 9,369,927 

12,613,265 

12,813,620 

12.813.442 

24,504.113 

24,539,912 

24.622,013 

10.4% 9.0% 
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W W Whiteti irst & Associates, Inc 

1996 
IMPACT OF CONRAIL AND CONRAIL "PREMIUM" ON 

REVENUE ADEQUACY CALCULATIONS 

1996 STB FINDING CSX & NS With CR 

Combin«d/Consolidated NROI 

* InleresI From Wort(ing Cap Cash 

*lnc Tax Non-rail 

Incremental Depreciation 

• Net gain transfers 

Railroad 

(1) 

" Adjusted NROI ' 

Comb Net Inv R4E End 

Comb Ne! Inv R&E Start 

Comb Net Inv RAE Av 

OE Inv End 

OE Inv Start 

OE Inv Av 

IDC End 

IDC Start 

IDC Av 

Net Rail '^el Ass End 

Net Rail Rel Ass Start 

Net Rail Rel Ass Av 

Work Cap t n d 

WorV Cap Start 

Work Cap Av 

Acc Del Tax End 

Acc Del Tax Start 

Acc Def Tax Av 

Tax Ad| Net Inv Base End 

la« Ad) Net Inv Base Start 

• Tax Ad) Net Inv Base • 

TAX ADJUSTED ROI 

Conrail 

(2) 

435,306 
253 

(6,166) 
0 

11,014 

440.406 

6,591,516 

6,355.952 
6,473,734 

23,017 

31.919 

27,468 

144 679 

206 202 

176.441 

1 484 091 

1 -JOO,-;! 1 

1,442.261 

5 275 20 
5,195,6t>2 
6.235,391 

8.4% 

CSX 

(3) 

610.621 
8.929 
3241 

13.133 

636,924 

9 482 069 

6,949,689 
9,215,879 

0 

0 

123,537 

109 66b 

116,601 

2 310,618 

2063,544 

2,187,081 

7 294 988 
0 995 610 
7,148.399 

8.9% 

NS 

(4) 

787,725 

12.835 

23,660 

16,646 

840,866 

e,912,33C 

8569,425 
8,750,882 

3,014 

3,197 

3,106 

267 241 

268 265 

267,763 

Conrail • 

CSX • NS 

(5) 

1,833,651 

22,017 

20,736 

0 

40,793 
1,917,196 

24.985,922 

23,695,066 

24,440,494 

3014 

3,197 

3.106 

23 017 

31 919 

27,468 

2612504 

2,5J4.«5J 

2,668,678 
6 564 061 
6 329 641 
6,446,861 

13,0% 

536,467 

566.132 

360,796 
6,407 213 

6 988 807 

6.198,010 

19,134,169 

18 521 113 

18,827,641 

10,2% 

CSX 

With CR 4/ 

(6) 

NS 

With CR 41 

(7) 

793,449 

9,035 

651 

17,759 
820,895 

12.250,505 

11.619,189 

11,934.847 

9 667 
13,406 
11,637 

184,302 

197 110 

190,706 

2,933,936 

2,661 717 

2,782,826 

9,510,538 
9 177 988 
8,344,263 

8.6% 

1 040,202 

12,982 

20,084 

23 034 

1.096.301 

12,735,417 

12275.877 

12,606,647 

3014 

3.19? 

3,106 

13,350 

18513 

16.931 

351,155 

389 022 

370,088 

3,473,277 

3,337090 

3,406,184 

9,623,631 
9 343 125 
9,483.378 

11.6% 

Exhibit V/WW 

Exhibit TDC-14 Revised-1996 Oata 

Page 1 of 1 

CSX & NS With CR 
And Acquisit ion "Premium 

ConraU 

•Premium" 

(6) 

620,000 

0 

0 

0 

0 

620.000 

9.550,000 

9,550,000 

9.660.000 

3 567,000 

3,567,000 

3.567,000 

5,983,000 
5 983 000 
6.983,000 

10,4% 

CSX 

With CR 5/ 

(9) 

1,053,649 

9,035 

651 

0 

17,7'i9 
1,081.296 

16.261,505 

15,630,189 

16,946.847 

9 667 
13 406 
11.637 

184,302 

197,110 

190,706 

4 432,0̂ 6 
4.149,857 
4,290,M6 

12,023 396 

11 690,848 

11,557,123 

3.1% 

N8 

With CR 

(10) 

1,399802 
12.962 
20,064 

0 
23.034 

1.466.901 

18.274,417 

17,814,877 

18.044,M7 

3.014 

3,197 

3,106 
13 350 

18513 

15,831 

351,155 

389,022 

370.088 

5,542,137 

5,405.950 
6.474.044 

13,093,771 

12,813,265 

12.863.618 

11.2% 

CSX * NS 

Wl lhCRS/ 

(11) 

2,453,651 

22.017 

20,735 

0 

40,793 
2,63r.1N 

34,535,922 

33,446.066 

33.990,4*4 

3014 

3 197 

3,106 
23,017 

31 919 

Z7.468 

535,457 

586 132 
660.796 

9,974,213 
9,555.807 
9,766.010 

25,117,169 

24,504,113 

24,810.641 

10.2% 

MM 



W W Whitehuist & Associates, Inc Exhibit WWW - 5 
CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURCHASE ACCOUNTING ASSET ADJUSTMENTS BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT Page 1 of 3 

- USING CONRAIL FAIR MARKET VALUE PER PRICE WATERHOUSE 
(Dollars In Thousands) 

Pre-Acquisition Book Value Purchase Accounting Post-Acquisition Book Value 
Accum Fair Asset Adjustment Accum 

Gross Depr Net Market Decrease in Increase in Gross Depr Net 
Line (Sch 330) (Sch 335) Book Value Accum Asset (Sch 330) (Sch 335) Book 
No ICC Describtion 12.'31/95 12/31/95 Value 06/97- Depr Value 12/31/95 12/311^ Value 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

;3) • (4) -(4) (6) (3) (3) • (8) (4) • (7) (9) (10) 

Road 
1 2 Land for transportation purposes 109.942 0 109.942 1 400,00C 0 1,290,058 1,400,000 0 1,400.000 
2 3 Grading 209.689 22,811 186,878 3.307,500 (22,811) 3,097,811 3.307,500 0 3.307,500 
3 4 Other right-of-way expenditures 2,586 757 1,829 3,000 (757) 414 3.000 0 3.000 
4 5 Tunnels and subways 27,b88 2.874 24,814 349.500 (2,874) 321,812 349.500 0 349,500 
6 6 Bridges, trestles. anJ culverts 227,358 51.941 175 417 2 777,500 (51.941) 2,550,142 2,777,500 0 2.777,500 
6 7 Elevated structuu s 2,575 2,769 (194) 16,000 (2,769) 13,425 16,000 0 16,000 

8 Ties 1,294 855 201,778 1.09:^,077 1.117.500 (201,778) (177.355) 1,117,500 0 1,117,500 
8 9 Rail and other track inatenal 2.503,630 304,233 2,199 3d7 2,707,500 (304,233) 203,870 2,707,500 0 2,707,500 
9 11 Ballast 877 012 (10,865) 687.877 1.637,500 10,865 810,488 1,687,500 0 1,687,500 

10 13 Fences, snowsheds, a;id signs 1.309 543 766 4,000 (543) 2.691 4,000 0 4,000 
11 16 Stations and office buildings 183.645 59,494 124,161 292,000 (59.494) 108.355 292,000 0 292,000 
12 1 Roadway buildings 11,937 4,574 7,363 6.000 (4.574) ( t , 37) 5000 0 5,000 
13 ^8 Watei stations 480 343 137 1,000 (343) 520 1 OOC 0 1.000 
14 19 Fuel stations 33,619 6 964 24,655 30,000 (8,964) (3,t19) 30,000 0 30,000 
15 20 Shops and enginehouses 84,747 33,860 50,887 149,500 (33.860) 64,753 149,500 0 149,500 
16 22 Storage warehouses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
17 23 Whaives and docks 936 58 878 2,000 (58) 1,064 2,000 0 2,000 
18 24 Coal and ore wharves 79,151 23.957 55,194 60 000 (23,957) (29,151) 60,000 0 50,000 
19 25 TOFC/COFC temiinals 77,212 31.587 45,625 69,600 (31,587) (7,712) 69,500 0 69,600 
20 26 Communication systems 121,275 76.966 44,310 48,000 (76,965) (73.275) 48.000 0 48,000 
21 27 Signals and interiockeis 368 989 131,446 237,543 473,000 (131,446) 104,011 473,000 0 473,000 
^'J 29 Power plants 1,140 476 664 2,000 (476) 860 2,000 0 2,000 
23 31 Power-transmission systems 8,981 5.293 3 688 7,00C (5,293) (1.981) 7,000 0 7,000 
24 35 Miscellaneous stiuctures 3,868 530 3,338 3,000 (530) (868) 3 000 0 3.000 
25 37 Roadway tnachines 98,537 73,495 25,042 60 000 (73,495) (38,537) 60,000 0 eo.ooo 
26 39 Public itnpiovements-Construction 43,207 5.225 37,982 30 000 (5,225) (13,207) 30.000 0 30.000 
27 44 Shop machinery 52.041 27 817 24 224 56,000 (27,ei7) 3,959 56,000 0 56,000 
28 4'^ Power-plant machinei\ 3.739 3,198 541 8,000 (3,198) 4,261 8.000 0 8.000 



W W Whitehurst & Associates, Inc Exhibit WWW - 5 

CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURCHASE ACCOUNTING ASSET ADJUSTMENTS BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT Paoe 2 ot 3 
- USING CONRAIL FAIR MARKET VALUE PER PRICE WATERHOUSE 

(Dollars In Thousands) 

Pre-Acquisition Book Value 

Line 
N ^ ICC 

(1) 

Description 
(2) 

Gross 
(Sch 330) 
12/31/95 

(3) 

Accum 
Depr 

(Sch 335) 
12/31/95 

(4) 

Net 
BOOK 

Value 
(5) 

(3j- (4) 

Fair 
Market 
Value 
06/97-

(6) 

Purchase Accounting 
Asset Adjustment 

Post-Acquisition Book Value 

Decrease in 
Accum 
Depr 

(7) 

• (4) 

Increase in 
Asset 
Value 

(8) 

(6) • (3) 

Gross 
(Sch 330) 
12/31/95 

0) 
(31 • (8) 

Accum 
Depr 

(Sch 335) 
12/31/95 

(10) 

(4) • (7) 

Net 
Book 
Value 

(11) 

(9)-(10) 

29 Other 0 45,569 (45,569) 0 (46,569) 0 0 0 0 

30 Amortization (adjustments)' 0 438.536 (438,636) 0 i438,536) 0 fi fi 0 

Total Expenditures for Road 6,430.148 1.548,228 4 881 920 14,656,000 (1.548.228) 8.225.852 14,656.000 0 14,656,000 

Equipment 

32 52 Locomotives 1,138,328 469,155 669,173 650,000 (469.155) (488,328) 650,000 0 650.000 
33 53 Freight-train cars 741.841 313.823 428,018 469,000 (313.823) (272,841) 469,000 0 469,000 
34 54 Passenger-train cars 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

35 55 Highway revenue equipment 2.790 1,920 870 1.000 (1,920) (1,790) 1,000 0 1,000 

36 56 Floating equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
37 57 Work equipment 84,682 50,271 34.411 40,000 (50,271) (44.682) 40.000 0 40,000 

38 58 Miscellaneous equipment 31,401 26,735 4,666 6,000 (26,735) (25.401) 6.000 0 6,000 
39 59 Computer systems 79,785 62,374 17.411 21,000 (62.374) (58,785) 21.000 0 21,000 

40 Amonization (adjustments)' 0 300 (300) 0 (300) 0 0 Q g 
41 Total Expenditures for Equipment 2,078.827 924.578 1.154.249 1.187,000 (924.578) (891,827) 1,187,000 0 1,187,000 

42 Total Road + Equipment 8,508.975 2,472.806 6,036.169 15,843,000 (2,472.806) 7.334,025 15,843.000 0 15.843.000 

43 Non-operating & disposition assets^ 336,825 0 336,825 400,000 0 63.175 400,000 0 400,000 

44 Total 8,845,800 2,472.806 6,372,994 16,243,000 (2,472,806) 7,397,200 16,243,000 0 16.243,000 

Assets not considered bv Price Waterhouse studv 
46 76 Inierest dunng construction 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 u 0 

46 80 Other elements of investment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

47 90 Construction in progress 320.006 0 320.006 320 006 fi 0 320,006 0 320.006 

48 GRAND TOTAL 9,165,806 2.472.806 6.693.000 16.563.006 (2,472,806) 7,397.200 16.563.006 0 1.6,$§3.Q96 



W W. Whitehurst & Associates, Inc 

CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURruAcc 

(Dollars In Thousands) rERHOu«_ 

.Pre-Acquisition Book Valt.« 

Line 
tio. ICC 

(1) 
Descricfipj 

(2) 

Accum 
Gross Depr 

(Sch 330; (Sch 335) 

mm mm 
(^) (4) 

Net 
Book 
Valug 

(5) 
(3) • (4) 

^ Allowance for Disposition of Assets 
Source; NS-20-CO-00103 

Asseis of ihe parent corporation lhat are not part of ihe railroad 

Fair 
Market 
Value 
06/97' 

6) 

Decrease in 
Accum 
Depf 

m 

Increase in 
Asset 

(8) 
(6)0) 

Gross 
(Sch 330) 

12am 
(9) 

(3) • (8) 

Accum 
Oepr 

(Sch 335) 

(10) 

Net 
Book 
Valtig 

(11) 

(9) (10) 

o 
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W W Whitehurst 4 Associates, Inc 
CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURCHASE ACCOUNTING ASSET ADJUSTMENTS BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT 

- AS CONTAINED IN T.D. CROWLEY WORKPAPER FILES PREM95.WK4 AND NSPREM.WK4 
(Dollars In Thousands) 

Crowley Adjustments 

Exhibit WWW - 6 
Page 1 of 3 

Purchase Accounting 

Line 

No 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

ICC Description 

(1) (2) 

Road 
2 Land for transportation purposes 
3 Grading 
4 Other light-of-way expenditures 
5 Tunnels and subways 
6 Bridges, trestles, and culverts 
7 Elevated structures 
8 Ties 
9 Rail and other track materia' 

11 Ballast 
13 Fences, snowsheds and signs 
16 Stations and ofhce buildings 
17 Roadway buildings 
18 Water stations 
19 Fuel stations 
20 Shops and enginehouses 
22 Storage warehoi.j:>es 
23 Wharves and docks 
24 Coal and ore wharves 
25 TOFC/COFC terminals 
26 Communication systems 
27 Signals and mterlockers 
29 Power plants 
31 Power-transmission systems 
35 Miscellaneous structures 
37 Roadway machines 
39 Public improvements-Construction 
44 Shop machinery 
45 Powei-plant machinery 

Accum Asset Adjustment Assumed Fair TDC 

Gross Depr Net Decrease in Increase in Fair Market Over/ 

(Sch 330) (Sch 335) Book Accutp Asset Market Value (Under) 

12/31/95 12/31/95 Value Depr Value Value 06/97^ FMV 

(3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) 

(3) - (4) (4) (3) • (7) 

109,942 0 109.942 0 99,929 209,871 1.400.000 (1,190,129) 

209 689 22,811 186.878 (22.811) 190,592 400,281 3.307,500 (2,907,219) 

2,586 757 1,829 (757) 2,350 4,936 3,000 1,936 

27,685 2,874 24.814 (2,874) 25,166 i>2,854 349.500 (296,646) 

227,358 51,941 175.417 (51,941) 206,652 434,010 2.777.500 (2,343.490) 

2.575 2,769 (194) (2,769) 2,340 4,915 16,000 (11,085) 

1,294 855 201,778 1.093.077 (201,778) 2,353,854 3,648,709 1,117,500 2,531,209 

2.503,630 304,233 2.199,397 (304.233) 2,275,613 4,779,243 2.707.500 2,071,743 

877,012 (10,865) 887.877 10,865 797,139 1,674.151 1.687.500 (13,349) 

1,309 543 766 (543) 1,190 2,499 4.000 (1,501) 

183,645 59,494 124,151 (59,4 >•*} 166,920 350,565 292,000 58.565 

11,937 4.574 7.363 (4,574) 10,850 22.787 5,000 17.787 

480 343 137 (343) 436 916 1,000 (84) 

33,619 8,964 24,655 (8,964) 30.577 64,196 30,000 34.196 

84,747 33,860 50,887 (33,860) 77.029 161,776 149,500 12.276 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

936 58 878 (58) 851 1,787 2,000 (213) 

79 151 23 957 55,194 (23,957) 71.942 151.093 50,000 101.093 

77,212 31,587 45,626 (31,587) 70,180 147,392 69,500 77,892 

121,276 76,966 44.310 (76.965) 110,230 231,505 48,000 183,505 

368,989 131.446 237,543 (131,446) 335,384 704 373 473,000 231.373 

1,140 476 664 (476) 1,036 2,176 2,000 176 

8 981 5.293 3.688 (5.293) 8.163 17,144 7.000 10,144 

3 868 530 3.33b (530) 3,616 7.384 3,000 4 384 

98 537 73,496 25.042 (73.495) 89.563 188 100 60.000 128,100 

43,207 6,226 37,982 (5,225) 39,272 82.479 30.000 52,479 

52,041 27,817 24.224 (27,817) 47,301 99 342 56,000 43,342 

3,739 3,198 541 (3,198) 3,398 7.137 8.000 (863) 

mm 



W W Whitehurst & Associates, Inc 

o 

CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURCHASE ACCOUNTING ASSET ADJUSTMENTS BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT 
- AS CONTAINED IN T.D. CROWLEY WORKPAPER FILES PREM95.WK4 AND NSPREM.WK4 

(Dollars In Thousands) 

Crowley Adjustments 
Pre-Acquisition Book Value Purchase Accounting 

Exhibit WWW - 6 
Page 2 of 3 

Gross 
Accum Asset Adjustment Assumed Fair TDC 

Gross Depr Net Decrease in Increase in Fair Varket Over/ 
Line (Sch 330) (Sch 335) Book Accum Asset Market Value (Under) 
No ICC Description 12/31/95 12/31/95 Value Depr V«i|ue Value 0§/97' FMV 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
(3)- (4) (4) (3) • (7) 

20 Other 0 45,569 (45,569) (45,569) 0 0 0 0 
30 Amortization (adjustments)' 0 438,536 (438.536) (438,536) 0 Q Q fi 
31 Total Expenditures for Road 6.430.148 1.548.228 4.881,920 (1,548,228) 7,021,473 13.451.621 14,656,000 (1.204.379) 

Eouipment 
32 52 Locomotives 1,138,328 469,155 669,173 (469,155) 1,034,655 2,172,983 650.000 1.522,983 
33 53 Freight-train cars 741,841 313.823 428,018 (313,823) 674.278 1,416,119 469.000 947,119 
34 54 Passenger-train cars 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
35 55 Highway revenue equipment 2,790 1,920 870 (1,920) 2,536 5,326 1,000 4,326 
36 56 Floating equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
37 57 Work equipment 84,682 50,271 34,411 (50,271) 76,970 161,652 40,000 121,652 
38 58 Miscellaneous equipment 31,401 26 735 4,666 (26,735) 28.541 59.942 6,000 53,942 
39 59 Computer systems 79,785 62,374 17,41-; (62,374) 72,519 152,304 21,000 131,304 
40 Amortization (adjustments)' g 300 (300) (300) 0 0 0 0 
41 Total Expenditures for Equipment 2,078,827 924.578 1.154.249 (924.578) 1.889.499 3.968.326 1.187.000 2,781.326 
42 Total Road • Equipment 8,508,976 2.472,806 6,036,169 (2,472.806) 8.910,972 17.419.947 15.843.000 1.576.947 

43 Non-operating & disposition assets^ 336 ^25 0 336,825 0 (336,825) 0 400.000 (400.000) 

44 Totai 8,846,800 2,472,806 6,371.994 (2,472,806) 8.574,147 17,419.947 16.243.000 1.176.947 

Assets not considered by Price Waterhouse studv 
45 76 Interest during construction 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
46 80 Other elements of investment 0 J 0 0 0 0 0 0 
47 90 Construclion in progress 320.006 0 320.006 0 (320.006) 0 320.006 (320.006) 

46 GRAND TOTAL 9.165,806 2.472.806 6,693,000 (2.472.806) 8.254.141 17.419,947 16.563.006 856.941 



W W Whitehurst & Associates, Inc 

CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURCHASE ACCOUM . iNG ASSET ADJUSTMENTS BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT 
- AS CONTAINED IN T.D. CROWLEY WORKPAPER FILF.S PREM95.WK4 AND NSPREM.WK4 

(Dollars In Thousands) 
Crowley Adjustments 

Pre-Acquisilion Book Value Purchase Accounting 

Exhibit WWW - 6 
Page 3 ot 3 

Accum Asset Adjustment Assumed Fair TDC 
Gross Depr Net Decrease in Increase in Fair Market Over/ 

Line (Sch 330) (Sch 335) Book Accum Asset Market Value (Under) 
No, ICC Description 12/31/95 12/31/95 Value Depr Value Value 06/97- FMV 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (') 
(3)- (4) 

(6) 

•(4) 
(7) (8) 

(3) • (7) 

(9) (10) 

Allowance for Disposition of Assets 
Souice NS-20 CO-00103 

Assets of the Corporation that are not part of Ihe railroad 

o 
00 

mi 



W W Whitehurst & Associates, Inc Exhibit WWW - 7 
Page 1 of 2 

CALCULATION OF CONRAII. PURCHASE ACCOUNTING DEPRECIATION ADJUSTMENTS BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT 
- USING CONRAIL FAIR MARKET VALUE PER PRICE WATERHOUSE 

(Dollars In Thousands) 

Post-Acquisition Conrail Depreciation Coniail 

o 

Fair Est Annual 1995 Ince ^se 
Market Estimated Net Remaining Estimated Re-distnb Depr IncI Reported in CRC 

ne Value Salvage Depreciable Years Annual Shop Shop Mach R-1 Reported 

ICC Descnption 06/97' Value Amount to Depr' Depr Mach* Re-distnb Deer Depr 

0) (2) 

Road 

(3) (4) (5) (6) (7) («) (9) 

(Sch 412) 

(10) 

(Sch 412) 

(11) 

(9) • (10) 

(Sch 412) 
1 2 Land for transportation purposes 1.400,000 1,400.000 0 0 0 0 
2 3 Grading 3,307,500 3,307,500 78 42,404 42 404 2,855 39,549 
3 4 Other right-of-way expenditures 3,000 3,000 55 55 55 47 8 
4 5 Tunnels and subways 349,500 349,500 102 3.426 .J.426 448 2,978 
5 6 Bridges, trestles, and culverts 2,777,500 3,000 2 774.500 50 55,490 56,490 6,559 48,93^ 
e 7 Elevated structures 16,000 16 000 50 320 320 0 320 
7 8 Ties 1,117,500 1 117 600 20 55,875 55 875 36,080 19,795 
8 9 Rail and other track matenal 2,707.500 300,000 2,407.500 34 70,809 70.809 47.100 23,709 
9 11 Ballast 1,687.500 1,687 500 20 84.375 84.375 20.386 63,989 

10 13 Fences, snowsheds and signs 4 000 4,000 5 800 800 65 735 
11 16 Stations and office buildings 292,000 2,000 290.000 25 11.600 11 600 12.292 (692) 
12 17 Roadway Duildings 5,000 5,000 11 455 455 334 121 
13 18 Water stations 1 000 1,000 15 67 67 5 62 
14 19 Fuel stations 30 000 30,000 18 1,667 1.667 1.169 498 
15 20 Shops and enginehouses 149 500 400 149.100 20 7 455 7 455 3,343 4,112 
16 22 Storage warehouses 0 0 0 0 0 0 
17 23 Wharves and docks 2 000 2 000 5 400 400 20 380 
18 24 Coal and oie wharves 50 000 50,000 20 2,500 2 500 2.427 73 
19 25 TOFC/COFC termini.ls 69 600 69,500 10 6,950 6,960 4.378 2,572 
20 26 Communication systems 48,000 900 47 100 10 4.710 4,710 6.640 (1,930) 
21 27 Signals and interlcckers 473,000 2,000 471.000 21 22,429 22,429 14,024 8,405 

29 Power plants 2,000 2,000 15 133 133 42 91 
23 31 Power-transmission systems 7 000 7,000 16 467 467 929 (462) 
24 35 Miscellaneous structuies 3,000 3.000 16 200 200 139 61 
25 37 Roadway machines 60,000 1,800 58.200 5 11.640 11.640 1 ,«>.32 9,708 
26 39 Public improvements-Construction 30,000 30.000 50 600 600 821 (221) 

27 44 Shop machinery' 66 000 56.000 8 7.000 (7.000) 0 0 0 



W W Whi'ehurst & Associates, Inc Exhibit WWW - 7 
Page 2 of 2 

CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURCHASE ACCOUNTING DEPRECIATION ADJUSTMENTS BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT 
- USING CONRAIL FAIR MARKET VALUE PER PRICE WATERHOUSE 

(Dollars In Thousands) 

Line 
No ICC 

(1) 

Descnption 
(2) 

28 4 5 Power-plant machinery 

29 

36 

39 

40 

41 

Total Expenditures for Road 

Equipment 
30 52 Locomotives 

Shop mach - Locomotives 
31 53 Freight-train cars 

Shop mach - Freight cars 
32 54 Passenger-tram cars 
33 " S Highway revenue equipment 
34 5^ Floating equipment 
3i 57 Work equipment 
3<, 68 ty/liscellaneous equipment 

Shop mach - Misc equip 
37 59 Compulei systems 

GRAND TOTAL 

Non-operating & disposition asset.s 

FINAL TOTAL 

Post-Acquisilion Conrail Deprecialion Conrail 

Fair Est Annua) 1995 Increase 

Maiket Estimated Net Remaining Estimated Re-dtstnb Depr IncI Reported in CRC 

Value Salvage Depreciable Years Annual Shop Shop Mach R-1 Reported 

0^/97' Value Amount to Depr' Depr Mach^ Re-distnb Depr Depr 

(3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

(9) (10) 

8,000 8,000 15 533 533 13 520 

14.656.000 310.100 14,345,900 392.360 (7.000) 385,360 162.048 223,312 

(Sch 415) (Sch 415) (Sch 415) 

650,000 65,000 585,000 9 65.000 65,000 66,695 (1,695) 

3.834 3,834 1,389 2,445 

469,000 100,000 369,000 9 41,000 41,000 39,739 1,261 
2,498 2,498 905 1,593 

0 0 0 

1,000 1,000 5 200 200 0 200 

0 0 0 

40,000 6 000 34,000 10 3,400 3,400 7,037 (3,637) 

6,000 2,000 4,000 4 1,000 1,000 1,000 
668 668 242 426 

21,000 900 20.100 I 10.050 10,050 11,744 (1,694) 

1.187 000 173,900 1,013,100 120,650 7,000 127.650 127 751 (101) 

15.843.000 484.C00 15.359.000 513.010 0 513,010 289,799 223.211 

400,000 400.000 fi 0 

16 243 000 16 759.000 513.010 Q ?89 79S 

Source NS-20-CO-00103 
Distributed to Locomotives. Freight Cars, and Other Equipment based on 1995 Conrail distnbution. 

Assets of the Corporation that are not part of the railroad 
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CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURCHASE ACCOUNTING DEPRECIATION ADJUSTMENTS 
BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT 

• AS CONTAINED IN T.D. CROWLEY WORKPAPER FILES PREM95.WK4 AND NSPREM.WK4 
(Dollars In Thousands) 

I 
•vl 

TD Cr.'>vv(ey A jjustmenis Depr Using TDC Depr 
1995 Increase TDC Fair Market Over/(Under) 

Reported in CRC Assumed Values per Fair Market 
ine Conrail Reported Total Price Value 

D?§<?rip|i9n Depr pepr Depr Watertiouse Depreciation 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) 

(3) • (4) (5) (6) 

Road (St.h412) (Sch 4121 (Sch 4 .2) 
1 2 Land for transportation purposes 0 0 0 0 0 
2 3 Grriding 2,855 2.630 5,485 42.404 (36.919) 
3 4 Other right-of-way expenditures 47 43 90 55 35 
4 5 Tunnels and subways 448 398 846 3.426 (2,580) 
5 6 Bndges. trestles, and culverts 6.559 6,200 12.759 55.490 (42.731) 
o 7 Elevated structures 0 0 0 320 (320) 
7 8 Ties 36,080 37,073 73,153 55.875 17.278 
e 9 Rail and other track matenal 47,100 46,878 93.978 70.809 23,169 
9 11 Ballast 20 386 19,291 39,677 84.375 (44.698) 

10 13 Fences, snowsheds. and signs 65 87 152 800 (648) 
11 16 Stations and office buildings 12.292 12.452 24,744 11.600 13.144 
12 17 Roadway buildings 334 375 709 455 254 
13 18 Water stations 5 15 20 67 (47) 
14 19 Fuel stations 1,169 1.063 2.232 1.667 S65 
15 20 Shops and enginehouses 3,343 3,081 6.424 7.455 (1.031) 
16 22 Storage warehouses 0 0 0 0 0 
17 23 Wharves and docks 20 19 39 400 (361) 
16 24 Coal and ore wharves 2,427 2,180 4.607 2.500 2.107 
19 25 TOFC/COFC terminals 4,378 4,351 8.720 6.950 1.779 
20 26 Communication systems 6.640 7,264 13.904 4.710 9.194 
21 27 Signals and inierlockers 14,024 13,751 27.775 22.429 b.346 
22 29 Power plants 42 39 81 133 (52) 
23 31 Power-transmission systems 929 845 1.774 467 1.307 
24 35 Miscellaneous structures 139 127 266 200 66 
25 37 Roadway machines 1.932 8,956 10.888 11.640 (752) 
26 39 Public improvements-Construction 821 782 1.603 600 1,003 



W.W.Whitehurst & Associates. Inc. 

CALCULATION OF CONRAIL PURCHASE ACCOUNTING DEPRECIATION ADJUSTMENTS 
BY PROPERTY ACCOUNT 

- AS CONTAINEO IN T.D. CROWLEY WORKPAPER FILES PREMM.WK4 AND N8PREM.WK4 
(Dollars In Thousands) 

Exhibit WWW 8 
Page 2 of 2 

I 

TD Crowley Adjustments Depr Using TDC Depr 
1995 Increase TDC Fair Marttet Over/(Under) 

Reported in CRC Assumed Values per Fair Matkei 
.ine Conrail Reported Total Price Value 

DescriDlion Depr I2fifi[ Deor Waterhouse D9Pr««ifiti9n 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (•) (7) 

(3)* (4) (5) (6) 

27 44 Shop machinery' 0 0 0 0 0 
20 45 Power-plant machinery n 22 as 533 (498) 

at Total Expenditures for Road 167.922 929.979 ($$.?90) 

EflMipm^nl (Sch 415) 
30 52 Locomotives 66.695 61.148 127.843 65.000 62.843 

Shop mach - Locomotives 1.389 1.470 2.659 3.834 (975) 
31 S3 Freight-train cars 30.739 44.706 84.445 41.000 43,445 

Shop mach - Fre;ght cars 905 1,002 1.907 2.498 (591) 
32 54 Passenger-train cars 0 0 0 
33 55 Highway revenue equipment 0 0 0 200 (200) 
34 56 Floating equipment 0 0 0 
35 57 Work equipment 7.037 6.320 13 357 3.400 9.957 
36 58 Miscellaneous equipment 0 1.000 (1.000) 

Shop mach • Misc equip 242 247 489 668 (179) 
37 59 Computer systems 11,744 11.429 23.17? 19.050 19.123 
30 Total Expenditures for Equipment 127.751 129.922 294.079 127.W0 129.429 

9 GRAND TOTAL 289.799 294 244 584 043 513010 71 033 

Source NS-20-CO-00103. 
Distributed to Locomotives. Freight Cars, and Other Equipment based on 1995 Conrail distribution. 
Assets of the Corporation that are not part of the railroad. 
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Depo of:Thomas D. Crowley In Re: CSX Corp. 12-5-97 Cr67785.0 
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CONDENSED TRANSCRIPT AND CONCORDANCE 
PREPARED BY: 

ACE-FEDERAL REPORTERS, INC. 
1120 G Street, N.W. 

Suite 500 
Washington, DC 20005 

Phone: 800-336-6646 
FAX: 202-737-3638 
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I I ! 

Cl 

(3| 

H! 

15] 

|6i 

("I 

HIGHI.YCONrFIDENTlAL P»ge 1 

BEFORE THE 
SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

CS-\ CORPORATION AND CSX : 
TRANSPORT.ATION INC., : STB Finance Doeke! 
NORFOLK SOLTHERN CORPORATION . No. 

33388 

(81 AND NORFOLK SOLTHERN RAILWAY : 
|9) COMPANY-CONTROL AND 

OPERATLNC-
IIOI LEASES AGREEMENTS-CONRAIL : 
un INC. AND CONSOLIDATED RAIL : 

CORPORATION : 
X (131 

f l4| 

IU! 
1161 
IIT] 
USI 
1191 

r-v 
1221 

DEPOSITION OF THOMAS D. CROVJEY 

Wastiingtoo. D.C. 
Friday, Decembers. 1997 

REPORTED BY: 
SARA A. EDGINGTON 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL Page 2 
Deposition of THOMAS D C R O V , l i Y , called for 
exanucatiou punuant to notice of deposition, oo 
Friday. December 5, 1997. in WashingtoD, D.C. at the 
law officffs of LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene and MacRae, 

HI 
i:i 
131 !•«! 

1875 
|5| Connectirut Avenue, N.W , Suite 12(X). at 9:00 a.m 
I4i before SARA A. EDGINGTON. a Nola.'y PubUc 

u iitua a.".d 
! ' the District of Columbia, when were present on 

.'.If of the respective parties: 

' X T DEMS. ESQ 
Arnold i . Porter 
555 Twelfth Stree:. N W 
Washmgtoc. D ; 20004-1202 
(202) 942-5858 

On behalf cf CSX Corporation and 
CSX Transr^rta'.ioa, Inc. 

I l l ; 

1:5. 
l i t 

i i ~ 
IISI 
119! 

IS' 

H1GHL> CONFTDE.NTIAL 
APPEARANCES fCONTINUED): 

.\nCHAEL F. McBRIDE. ESQ 
LeE^uf, Limb. Greene &. MacRar 
1875 Connecticu: Avenue. N.W. 
Suite 1200 
Washington. D C 20009 
,'202) 976-8000 
On behalf of American Electnc 

Pa?: : 

(9] Power Service Corporation. 
(101 AtlantK City Electr- Company. 
[HI and Indiana Power and Light Company 

113! KELVIN J DOV.T), ESQ 
(14) Slover (SL Loftiu 
115) 1224 Seventeenth Street, N.W. 
j l i ] Washmgton, D. C. 20036 
(17) (202)347-7170 
(III On bc.^'jjf of GPU Generation, Inc. 
[19] and Cfosumers Energy Company 
1201 ALSO PRESENT: 
r n ROGER C. PRESCOTT 
rni SEAN D. NOLAN 

HI 
(21 
|3| 
(<l 
(5) 

|6| 
today 

n 
of 
( i | 

I9| 

(101 

f i l l 

l i : i 

HIGHLY CONRDENTIAL Page 4 
P R O C E E D I N G S 
Whereupon. 
THOMAS D. CROWLEY 
was called as a wimess and, having fir. t been duly ' 
swom, was examined ar.d t6:'ified as follows: 

NIR DOWD: Good n o m i i j . We are here 

for the deposition of Thomas D. Crowley, president 

L. E. Peabody Sc Associates and a wimess who bas 
app>eared m this matter on behalf of a number of 
commenung parties. For the record, also 
accompanymg Mr. Crowiey is Roger C. Prescott and 
Sean Nolan, both of whom are also with L E. 

Peabov.,. 
(131 SL Associates. 

[14] My name is Kelvin Dowd I'm cott"jel for 
I [15] GPU Generation. Incorporated, and Consumers 

Energy 
Company, rwo of the parties that have sponsored 

[ITi Mr. Crowley's testimony. 1 have signed the 
(IS) confidential and highly confidential undertakings. 
[191 MR MCBRIDE: My name is Michael F. 
[70] McBride of the law firm Leboeuf. Lamb. I represent 
(21) Amencan Electric Power Service Corporation, 
Atlantic 

[22] City Electnc Cotnpany, and Indiana Power a'-1 Light 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL Page 5 
(i! Company, three of the companies who have 

sponsored 
(21 testimony by Mr. Crowley. I 'm accompanied by my 
[3| colleagues, Bruce Neeley and Breada Durham. All of 
[4| us hav: signed the confidential and highly 
[5] confideniial undertakings. 
(61 MR. DENTS I would like to confinj tha: 
['\ Si : Prescott and Mr. Nolan have both signed; is tha; 
(S| correct'!' 
[91 MR. DOWD: Yes. 

(101 -MR .MC BRIDE: One more thing. I gather 
II I] we're going to desigoale th:s deposition as highly 
(121 confidential until the witness can review it and we 
(131 can determine which portions to k f tp that 
designation 

[141 and which to declassify. 

P-715 
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(151 EX/J^NATION 
(161 BY MR. DENIS: 
(17] Q G->od moming. Mr. Crowley. I am Paul 
(IB! Dfnti. I'm '^'ith thr lay.-firm Arnold SL Poner. I 
(191 represent CSX and CSX Transponation in ikis 
1201 proceeding 
(211 ! have several mesnons for you. I wouid 
1221 like to direa vour anennon to your lestimonv tha: 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL Page 6 
tucs submined as pan of a documem fiied as 
ACE IS on behalf cfAlLanlic City Elecrric and 
Indiana Power and Ligh: In your tesnmorn on behalf 
of A CE -and I wil! refer simply to A CE lo cover both 
Atlantic Ciry Elecmc and IPSd. as the designator in 
this proceeding does. In your testimony, you refer 

[7] 10 the Conrail and Monongahela merger proceeding 
|S; before thr ICC. Do you recall ihat ponion of your 
(9i testimony.-

A Yes. 
Q Do you imow when the merger between Conrad 

and Monongahela fLiilw-ay took place? 
A As I state on page 13 of mv statement, the 

merger was approved and a decision serred October 

(II 

(21 

(31 

(41 

(51 

(6| 

,'101 

mi 
112; 

1131 

114: 

10, 
!15 

|16i 

1.7! 

(20 

1991. 
Q I understand that, Mr. Crowley. My 

quesiion was wheiher you kr.ew when the merge' itself 
look, place. 

A You'll ha»e IP c'arify that for me. I 
don't understand the question. 

Q Yovr testimony indicates th.a: the rr.erger 
was CDBroved and decision served Oaober .'Orh. 1991; 

HJGHLY CONRDENTI.AL Pag; ' 
L5 co'-rer.'' 

A \es. 
Q Do you know when the merger berween rne cwo 

ccrrjsanies rAa; was the subjea cfthat decisior. took 
place' 

A The merger from a financial reporting 
standpoint, or tnerger from an ot>erating standpoint, 
or merger frorrj some other standpoint? That 's thf 
part of the question i didn't understand. 

Q Le: 's r.an from a financial operanng 
.cjrjpoin;. Do you know when tne mrrger took place 
"cr-. cfijianaai operating perspeaive^ 

A I bdie»e it was in calendar year 1992. 
Q Dc you itrtow wnen the merger took place from 

j.r oDcrat-jig perspecnvf ^ 
A Nc. I don t. It would be in that same 

general time period. 
J2 5V OU^ i• mar.er :c tne analysis tns: \ ou 

- m vour •^en.ned siaiement submiced as pan of 
'.CE 18 if lhe merger took place, from cfir.ar.c.a. 
. reranng persreaive. L-. 1993 

A No. 

HIGHLY CONTIDE.STiAL Page 8 
Q Vn'oula i: maserfor your lestimorty if tne 

me'ger, from an operanng perspeaive, took place in 

199 2 

(4! A No. 
(jj Q In vour testiriony, you indicated thai you 
[6] utilized CViS datafo' .'992 - excuse me, for 1991 and 
[T, /P95.' is that correa'' 
[II A That's correct. 
[9j Q DA vou c any pom. perform the same 

(101 aruilysis using CTV5 data f o r 1992 rather than 1991 ? 
(Ill A .No. 
(121 Q In conneaion with the study you performed 
[131 for your testimony m ACE 18. did you anal-yze the 
(14] ownership ofthe Monongahela Railway Corporation? 

j (151 MR. DOWD. Do you understand the 
question? 
[16] THE V^TTNESS: No. I didn't. 
[IT] BY MR. DENIS 
[11] Q Lr. merry It another way, then. Do you 
[19] know who the owners cfthe Monongahela Railway 
{20] Corporation were a: the lime ofthe ICC decision 
(211 referred lo m your tesxvnorty' 
[221 A I'm sure t h a ' I have looked it up, and I 'm 

HIGHLY C O N n D t N T I A L Page 9 
Ml sure at one point I did know that, buta.s I sit here 
|2| today, I can't -ecall. 
[3] Q Do you recall if Conrail had any ownership 
[4] interest m the Monongahela Railway Corporation at 
[5] the time ofthe ICC decision referred to in yovr 

[61 tesnmorry^ 
[7] A I don't recall that as I sit here. 
[1] Q Do you recall whether there were other 

I [9] owners of the Monongahela - excuse me. StrUce 

! (10) / t o . 
: (11J Do you recall if there was any other 
' (12! companv tha: was an owner of Monongahela Railway 
! (131 Ccrporation prior to the decision referenced m your 
\ (14; testimony? 
1(131 A As I sit here today, 1 don't recall. 
1(161 Q ^oulc it be relevant to your analysis i f . 
[ [171 m 1991, Cor.rail owned 90 percen: or more of the 
[ (181 Monongahela Railwcy Corporation? 

[19! A No. 
[2C1 Q Vt'ould It be rei rvanj to vour analysis if 
(211 Conrail ow-ned 75 percent of Mcnrngahela Railway 
[221 Corporanon throughout 1991 ? 

HIGHLY CONTIDLNTIAL Page 10 
[ i ; A .No. 
;:; Q Is the percentage ownership m the 
]V Monongahela Railway Corporanon t/iat would be held 

^' 
(4] Cor.rail m .'59.' at all relevant to the analysis in 
(51 your rgsnmoKv' 
[6. A Not to the analysis that I did, no. 
I7j Q Vt'ouid it be relevant to the analysis that 
[t] you did in your tesv.morry if Conrail coraroiled the 
(9; Monongahela Radwuv Corporanon m 1991 ? 

(lO; A .Not tc the analysis I did, no. 
[11; Q In conneaion with your lestimorry, did you 
[12] sTjdy whether there were any agreemenu m place 
(13; berween the Monongahela Railway Corporation arui 
[14! Ccnrail in 1991? 
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A No. 
Q Did you perform this analysis at arty time 

A We rcTiewed the documents that the 
railroads provided reUted to the Monongahela. and I 
don't recall seeing anv agreements betweei. ;hose 
camers, but if there were any in the documents that 
you provided, we would have reviewed them. 

Q Would u ee relevant to your analvsis if 
there were an\ agreemenu between ConraU and the 

1161 

i n 
111] 
1191 
120) 
121] 
122] Monongahela Radwav Corporation m 1991 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTi.AL Page 11 
(11 A Well, to the extent they impacted our 
[2] analvsis. we would have reviewed it and included 

them 
[31 if they were relevanL 
1*1 ^ iJo yr" recall if yju included in your 
(51 analysis any agreements berween Monongahela Railway 
[6] Corporation and Conrail? 
(7] MR. DOWD: Asked and answered You car 
II] answer It again. 
|9] THE WTTNESS 'W'e wculd have reviewed the 

(101 agreements to determine if they had an impact on the 
I I I ; analysis 
!i2i BYNIR. DE.VIS 
[13] Q Why did you choose tne vear of 1991 fo r 
1141 purposes of you-' analysis tn this testimony '' 
|I5| A 1991. as I state in my testimony, was the 
116) year of the merger. 
II7; Q What IS the significance of that 10 your 
IISI analysis^ 
119) A I wa.s iookme fo ra point in timeso I 
|2C; could make a before-and-after companson, and thut 
12:; was the be/ore part of the analysis. 
1221 Q When vou serv befo'e-and-after analysis. 

|6: 

r 
I8i 

191 

HIGHLY CONHDENTLAL Page 12 
^f'o'e ar j i a'ter what are you looking a t ' 

A The merger. 
Q VrTr: is the event ofthe merger significam 

. ./• .':rialysj' 

Well, as I State in my testimonv, we were 
attempting to •i»»ermine if the pricing; behavior 
changed as a result of the merger between what the 
MGA wai charging versus what Conraii wts charging 
after it absorbed the MGA. 

Q Wnv did vou choose thr year 1991 for 
ruToses of this analysis'' 

A It was the latest available. 
Q Why ir thr latest available data 

;. ?'.t ~.:a.m for purposes cfvour analvsis '' 

A I was try ing to get as current data as 
possit)le to shew wiiat the changes were f rom the 

point 
• in tune of the merge' to what the iinpacli are on the 

lis; markets today, and the iatect available would 
119 accommodate that decision. 
TC Q Did you perrorm tnis crMivSLi a: any time 

usmg 1994ticua' 
i n A No. 

HIGHLY CONTIDENTIAL Page 13 
Q Did you perform rhis analysis a: crry time 

;: iismg 1993 data'' 

[3: 

(*1 

(5) 

16] 

m 
(SI 

19) 

(10) 

MU 

112j 

(13) 

114] 

(151 

116] 

117] 

( I I I 

fl9] 

120) 

121] 

(22) 

using 1992 data' 
A I think I've already an.vwered that, and the 

answer is no. 
Q Did you understand nry tjuestion to be asking 

whether you used those years as altemanves to 
1995 ? 1 didn': ask the question particularly well. 

A I understood your question to mean did I 
ever do an analysts for that year, and I answered no 
to all of those years other than '91 and '95 

Q I would like to mm to a series of 
questions about the testimony you submined on behalf 
of Indiana Power arui Light m the document labeled 
IPL-3 of me Service Transportation Board. Ir, tne 
statement of your qualifications submined with 
lesnmony fiied m IPL-3, you mdicated ihat you 
provuied eviden-e on various red merger proceedmgs 
m the past: is that cnrrea' 

A And you are referring to what? 
HIGHLY CONRDENTIAL Page 14 

[ I ] Q Page -4 of your statement of 
PI qualifications. 
(31 A Yes. 
(4) Q Did you pro-vide testunorry m the ICC 
li] proceedmg wah respea to the Burimgton Northern/ 
\ i ] Santa Fe. ransactwr ' 
[7; A I'm sorry. 1 didn't hear lhe end of thaL 
(I; Q The Burimgton Sonhem/Santa Fe 
|9) transaaion' 

[10] A Yes, I did. 
(II] Q Did your testimony m the Burimgton 
[12; Sonhem/Sania Fe rranscawn refer to trackage 
111] right- compensanon m any wav? 
[14] A I believe it did, yes. 
[151 Q On behalf of which pany did you testify in 
[I6i the Burlington Nonhem/Sanin Fr transaaion with 
[17] respea tc nackage ngh.is compeTtsation'' 
[ I I I A It's someiiiing I can look up. I don't 
[19] recall as 1 sit here-
[20] Q Dul you submit testimcm on behalf of 
[21 ] Tucson Electric Power Comoany" 
[221 N{R. DOWD: I am gomg to object. Tbe 

HIGHLY CONTIDENTIAL Page 15 
[1] record in Ihat case vk ii i speak for itself . So i f th; 
12] wimess has trouble rccallag specifics about that 
[3] event, perhaps you can ;us: soow him an exiubit. 
|4] THE WITNESS: 1 don't recall as I sit 
[5] here Tucson is one of our ebcots, and we possibly 

' (61 did put in teshmocy u; that case 
r, BY MR. DENIS 

j (J) Q In preparmg your tesnmorry submitted as 
I (9; pan of IPSd.-3 .did you review the lestutumy you 
I 1101 submined m tne Burimgton Sonhem/Santa Fe 
I [11] proceedmg regardmg trackage nghts compensation ? 
I (121 A No. 

I (13) Q Areyoufamiliar with the ICC's decision in 

(14j tne Burimgton Sonhem/Sarua Fe transaction ? 

|15] A Yes. 
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[161 Q Are you familiar With the discussion by the 
117] ICC in that decision of trackage nghu compensarujn ? 
( I l l A Generally, yes. 
(19! Q Did you review- the Burimgton 
[201 Sonhem/Santa Fe decision ofthe ICC wuh respea to 
(211 nackage rights compensation tr. cormecnon wah the 
(221 preporanon of your lesnmortv on lPid.-3'' 

HIGHLV CONFIDENTIAL Page 16 
[II A No. 
|2| Q Do you have an understandmg of the 
(31 prmciples announced by the ICC? 
{*] A Ves. 
(5) Q B7m/ i; your understandmg of those 
(6) -rmctcles" 
(7; \ My understanding i.^ that the ICC did not 
[1] want tu adjust the tracicage rights compensations the 
(91 parties agreed to and left what the parties proposed 

(101 in place. 
IIII Q Dui thr ICC m that Burimgton 
(12! Sonhem/Santa Fe decision amadare any other 
(131 prmciples that should he applied m assessmg 
(14] trackage rights compensation ? 
(15; A I don't recall. 
(16] Q In your opinion, was lhe Burlington 
(17] Sonhem/Santa Fe decision ofthe ICC correaly 
(Itl decuied on the issue of cradcage nghu 
i 191 compensanon ? 
(201 MR. DOWD. I 'm going to object tc that as 
(211 cailmg for £ legal conclusion. You're asking bim 
1221 whether, m his opinion, they got the rigfat answer 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL Page P 

l i : 

n 
(Sl 

19! 

110! 

!; n 

i : ; 
(21 
13) 

15; 

•MR. DE.N1S I am asking about his opinion. 
RC; is a iau^er but ai an expert in this proceeding. 

MR. DOV»T) Can you repeat the question^ 
BY MR. DENIS: 
Q Vt'nether the ICC decuion woj right 

concemmg trackage ngh.ts issues. 

A I do not believe they were correct. 
Q Are youtamiliar wuh the decision ofthe 

STS m the Union Pacific/Southern Pacific 
cansaaion 

A Ves. 
Q Are you familiar with the discussion m the 

STB's opinion relatmg to rraokjgf nghis 
compensation 

A Ves. 
Q .'ue you farrMiar wan the STB s anaiys-.s of 

;.cu' testimony on behalj cfthe Westem Coc' Traffic 
League on the issi-e of trackage ngh.u compensanon ? 

A Very familiar, yes. 
Q In preparation of your tesiimorry submitted 

ir. IPdl-S.did-yuu review the UPSP decisupn ofthe 
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Surface Transponation Board on thr issue of trackage 
nghu ccrtipensation 

A No, I did not 
Q What IS your understanding ofthe 

£ nncipals cmvlied bv the boarC m the UPSP decision 

(6) relating to trackage nghu compensation ̂  
[7] A T^TiattheSTBdidinLTSPasitrelatesto 
[ i | tracicage nghts compensabon is what the STB did in 
[91 the BN/Sanu Fe merger. 

(101 Q So would vou regard those two decistorjs as 
(11) consisterj, m your view- cu an expen' 
(121 A Consistent from the govemment standpoint. 
113; yes. 
[14! Q Is their aruziyncal methodology 
[151 co/utireTif.' 
[16] MR.MCBRIE : With respect to trackage 
(17) rights compensation? 
[I l ] BYMR. DE.VIS: 
(191 Q With respea lo irackage righu 
(20) compensation Thank you 
(211 A I don't think they analyzed them. 
[221 Q In your opmion cs an expen. was the UPSP 

HIGHLY CONnDE.NTIAJ. Page 19 
(11 decision bv the board correaiy decided on the issue 
(21 of trackage nghu compensation 
[j] MR. DOVrT) In what expert capaciry art you 
(4) asking him? Expert os trackage nghts? Expert on -
(5] MR. DENTS: He's submitted testimony here 
(6] or. how to analyze trackage rights compensation. I ' m 
(7) asking hun if the board's decision in doing the same 
(S| thing in 'a: UPSP decision was correct or not. 
[91 MR. DOWD: In a previous question, he 

(101 testified, in his view, the board did not analyze 
[111 trackage rights compecsation m that case. So maybe 
[12] you can rephrase your question 
[13] BYMR DENIS: 
|14| Q Can you answer the question as asked? 
(ISI A I've lost the question now. 
[16] Q Let's go back. Dui the board, m the Union 
[17] Pactfic/Soutnem Pacific tra.isaaion, m their 
[it] opmion transacrion, did they analyze tht issue of 
(19) trackage nghu compensc.: j . - . " 
[20] A No, I don't believe they analyzed trackage 
[211 rights compensation. They accepted what the earners 
[221 proposed. 
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Q Did the board review vow testimony on the 

proper calculation of trackage nghu compensation ' 
A The board reviewed my testimony as it 

related to trackage rights compensation in the 

(U 
(21 
(31 
W 

merger 
[5] case, yes. 
(61 Q What was the board s opmion ofyout 
(7) testunorry? 
HI A They didn't like i t 
(9) Q Did lhey indicate m the opmion wnether 

110) your lesmruiny was correa or mcorrea m the proper 
111] approach to cr.lrulntmg trackage nghu compensation ' 
(121 A They thought that my approach was incorrect 
(!3| in calculating trackage rigfats compensation in 3 
(141 merger case. 
(15; Q In your opmion, was the board's decision 
lit) correaly decided on lhat point? 
[17] A I 'm sorry? 
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1111 Q In vour opmion, was the board's decision 
(19) correah-decided on lhat pom:'' 
(201 A In my opinion, the board was not correct. 
121) Q Are you familiar with t'ne ICC decuions 
(221 t'nai are generjlly known as the SSW comr>ensa:ion 

HIGHLY CONHDEVnAL Page 21 
'' 1 aecuions ? 

i ; i A Yes. 
13) Q In preparation of your testimony cfIPSiL-3, 
|4| did you reviev, the ICC decisions m the SSW 
(5j compensation proceedmgs? 
(6| A No, 
(7] Q Vi'nat IS your understn-ulmg of the SSW 
[81 compensation decisions as they relate to the proper 
(9) approach to calculatmg tr .ickage nghu compensation ' 

110) A It's been a w!-_"' - .ice I've looked at 
II11 those decisions. As 1 sit 'lere today, I wouldn't be 
ii2; able to even speculate. 
1131 Q Do you have a view as to whether your 
114] testimonv L~. IPJLL-3 IS consistent with the ICC 
1151 decisions m SSW compensation ' 
|i6j MR. DO'WD: lam going to object. He just 
117] testified he's not in a position to even confirm 
( l i ; ub.-ther he's familiar with the discussion. Sol 
I (91 don't see hov̂ - you can ask him whether it s consistent 
(201 uiih his testimony. 
(:;il .^IR. DE.NIS: You and I can make assumptions 
122) aooui how he wiil answer tbat questioo, but he's the 
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v.imess, and I would like him to answer it. 

THE VflTNESS In order lo answ er the 
question, I would have to go bacic and review the 
rr.f.bodoio^y used lo SSW, and 1 don't recall that 
rr::nodclogy as I sit here today. 

BY .MR DENIS 
Q I would like tc refer you to page 19 of 20 

in IPL Exhibi: ^ of vour lestimonv on behalf of 
IPSd. 

A 1 have it. 
MR. DENIS: The record will reflect tbe 

itness IS examining his own copy of that testimony 
MR DOVrT). For the rtcoid. the copv the 

•.k iwess is looking at is as filed, and there are no 
:t:ra.":eous markings or aaythiDg of tbat narure oo 

BY MR. DENIS: 
Q Couid you describe f o r me the steps of your 

craiysLs trust are sum.martzed tn :he tablr cn page 19 
o' -.our :esr-jrj3n\ 

'.-'•] A Certainly . The table on page 19 
: : demonstrate? compensation on two bases: on a per 
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car-mile basis, which would be column 1: and a 
IM' trailing gross ton mile analogy, which is column 3 of 
;3i theublf . 

- The elements that are included in the 
':-] calculation include line 1, which is a combined 
It; CSX.'Conrai; LUGS formula fcr 1995 representing 

the 

IS: 
|9; 

IIOI 
(111 

115; 

1161 

i I'^i 

::'; 
::o: 

(71 unit cost for roadway ojieration depreciation and 
|S) lease expenses, and the sources out of tbe 1995 
[9; CSX/Conrail portion URCS formula are identified on 

110] the bottom of the tible. The second line is an index 
[11! that is used to increase the line 1 expenses from 
(12) calendar year 1995 to the fourth quaner 1997. 
(13) Line 3 ts simply the multiplication of the 
[14| unit cost on line 1 by the index on line 2. Line 4 
(151 is the unit cost for CSX/Conrail portion of 1995, 

(16) return on road propert), also taken from the LTICS 
(IT] formula. Line 5 Ls the total of lines 3 and 4. 
(II! Q Is lme 1 on your table, whiiii you 
[19] indicated u taken from the URCS formula, a 
[20] measurement of vanable cost' 
(21) A Yes. 
(221 Q Are there other cosu included m there 
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(I) other than \-anable cosu^ 
(21 MR. DOWT): bcluded in line 1 or -
[3] MR. DENIS: No, included in line I 
(4| THE'WITNESS: That would be tbe variable 
[5] portion of the cost delineated in the item column. 
(61 BY MR. DENIS: 
[7] Q in the testimony thai you submined on 
|l) behalf ofthe Western Cod Traffic League m the 
19] Union Pacific/Southem Pacific transaaion, did you 

110) adopt a similar approach to calculatmg nackage 
[11] righu corr.pensation ? 

(121 A Sunilar to the whole table or lo line 17 
(131 Q Similar to lme 1. 
114) A Well, line 1 is not - is not the trackage 

i I15| rights compensation but a component part of 
trackage 
(161 rights compensation lhat I 'm suggesting. Thc^e 
(17) elements would have been included in theevidence I 
(III submitted on behalf of the Westem Cral Traffic 
(I9| League merger. 

120) Q Are youfamdiar with the analysts of 
(211 trackage nghu compenstnton dee by the applicants 
[221 m the Union Pacific/Southem Pacific ' 'aniaaion' 
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111 And by opplicanu, I am referring not to the 
(21 applicanu m our proceedmg but rather the 
13) applicanu m that proceedmg. Union Paafic and 
(41 Southem Pacific. 

[51 A I 'm familiar with the compensation or the 
[61 tratJiage rights fee. 1 m not familiar with an 
n analysis to develop it. I don't bdieve I ever saw 
[Sl an analysts. I simply recall seeing a number. 
(91 Q Do you recall whether the board, in its 

i 10) decision in the Union Pacific/Southern Pacific 
1111 rransaction, reviewed the applicants' use of URCS 
(121 daia in cnirulntmg trackage nghts compenstuion ? 
ii3\ .MR MCBRIDE. Whether it did what''I 
|14| didn't hearthe verb. Viewed? 
[15] .VIR. DENIS: Reviewed. 
116] .MR. DOWD: I 'm gomg to object to that 
(IT) question as no foundation that the applicants used 
(HI URCS data m tbat case is their testimony. 
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MR. DENIS: I am simply askmg whether the 
board did something. 

BY MR. DENTS: 
Q You can answer the question if you know. 

HIGHL"i' CONFIDEVITAL Page 26 
ill A I am not familiar witfa anything other than 
(2) the number that the UPSP put forward as a trackage 
(31 rights fee. 
[4] Q To your knowledge, has either the ICC or 
|5< the Surface Transportation Board ever assessed 
[6] whether a u correa to use the data that you used 
(7) m lme I of your table for purposes of calculatmg 
It] trackage nghu compensation? 
(9; A Let me se-.> if I understand your question. 

(iOi Are you asking me, do they consider these 
components 
(II! in analyzing a trackage rigfats fee? 
(12! Q Let 's Stan with that. 
(131 A In the last two mergers, to my knowledge, 
||4| they didn't do any analysis of tbe fees. Tbey simply 
(151 accepted what the railroads proposed. In prior 
116! mergers, they - when they were more active in 
(17! settingthecotrpensation, they would have had to 
(IS! cotisider these kinds of things, because these are the 
1191 elements that the trackage nghts carrier reviews. 
1201 Q In prepanng your testxmorry that was 
121! submined as part of IPiL-3, did you attempt to 

[21] conform your mlrulation of trackage nghu 
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(: 1 cornpensanon to the board s opinion in Union 
Cl Pacific/Southem Pacific'' 
[31 A As it relates to trackage rights 
I- compensation'' 
1' Q As It relates to Trackage righu 
\-.' compensatior.. 
r A In LTSP, the board did nothing but accept 
1! their number, and I did not accept the applicant's 
1̂  number in this case. I was not able to conform the 

fic two. 
.MR. DEMS 1 have no further questions. 

; i: MR MCBRIDE: Of al! of the statements, 
li;, that s all you have? 
\ \ i VIR DENIS Yes NLr. Crowley, thank you 
!:; very much. 
(It, VIR. MCBRIDE Fcr tbe record, we have no 
flTi redirect. 
: S fWhcreupon, at 9:45 a.m., the deposition 
5 uas concluded.) 
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of 
, 19. 

Notary Public 

My commission expires: 
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i: i HEREBY CERTIFY that I have read this 
;: transcnpt of my deposition and tfaat this traoscnpt 
(3: accurately states xhe testimony given by me, with the 
:4: changes or correctioos, if any. as noted. 
15: 
16' 
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REBLTTAl. VERIFIED STATEMENT 

OF 

JOHN H. WILLIAMS 

I. INTRODUCTION 

My name is John H. Williams. I am President of the Woodside Consulting Group 

Inc.. which is located in Menlo Park. Califomia. I submined a Verified Statement in the 

Railroad Control Application. Volume 2B of 8 (CSX/NS-19). which descnbed the 

methodology and results of my Rail Traffic Diversion Study conceming the likely impact of 

the operation by Norfolk Southem of Conrail's lines on the traffic and revenues of affected 

railroads That Venfied Statement also described my qualifications and my expenence. 

encompassing almost 35 years in the railroad industn.' and consulting. 

The purpose of this statement is to provide m\ analysis and rebuttal of cenain traffic, 

revenues, 'narket impacts, and competition statements submitted on October 21. 1997 and 

October 31, 1997 in this proceeding by the following panies: 

• CMA-10: Joint Comments of the Chemical Manufacturers Association and the 

Society of the Pla.stics Industn., Inc.; 

• W&LE-4 Responsive Application of Wheeling & Lake Ene Railway 

Company: and 

• Ann Arbor-5: Responsive Application and Request for Conditions by Ann 

Arbor Acquisilion Corporation. 

My rebuttal is based on my analyses of the comments and statements filed by the 

parties listed above, on their underlying work papers, on relevant portions of the Norfolk 
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Southem Rail Traffic Diversion Smdy that I sponsored and that was previously submitted in 

this proceeding, and on my knowledge, judgment, and experience. 

n. CMA-10: JOINT COMMENTS OF THE CHEMICAL MANLTACTLTtERS 
ASSOCIATION AND THE SOCIETY OF THE I'LASTICS INDUSTRY. INC. 

Attachment 2 to CMA-10 is the Verified Statement of Mr. John J. Grocki. a 

transportation coiisultant. His Verified Statement includes, among other things, an Appendix 

C entitled "Traffic Analysis." This portion of my Statement relates primarily to Mr. 

Grocki's Verified Statement, including the Appendices thereto. 

A. Mr. Grocki's Data Base Is Incomplete and His 
Methodologi' is Flawed 

Mr. Grocki's use of only a 100 percent Conrail traffic base for his Study too 

nartowly defined the relevant traffic that would be affected by the Conrail transaction. In 

order to consider the full effects on chemicals and plastics traffic resulting from the Conrail 

transaction, it is my opinion that Mr. Grocki shouid have mirrored the definition of relevant 

traffic contained in my Rail Traffic Diversion Study to include all ihres of the following 

traffic categories: 

•*• Norfolk Southem traffic, including all Norfolk Southem-Conrail joint 

traffic; 

• Conrail traffic; 

• Non-Norfolk Southem/non-Conrail traffic (also called "non-

participatory" or "third party" traffic), which is traffic in which 

neither Norfoik Southern nor Conrail participated in 1995." 

(CSX/NS-19, Williams, Page 73) 
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The same data base would be used for analysis of the CSXT/Conrail combination, although, 

for convemence. the iraffic records could be re-sorted according to a different hierarchial 

scheme. 

The failure of Mr. Grocki's Smdy to consider any relevant rail traffic other lhan that 

handled by Conrail constitutes a significant flaw that leads to both understating the service 

and competitive benefits of the Conrail transaction, as well as overemphasizing the 

importance of the transaction's effects on Conrail traffic only For ex.'.mple, access by 

Norfolk Southem to Conraii stations in competition with CSXT (e.g.. Philadelphia) will 

permit Norfolk Southem to extend its haul for single system service to those locations, even 

though Conrail did not participate in such movemenis during 1995 Thus. Mr. Grocki 

understates the conversion of relevant Northeastem Region rail traffic to single system 

service - which is a significant benefit of the Conrail transaction - by leaving it out of his 

Study. 

Just as Mr. Grocki did not consider traffic moved by railroads other lhan Conrail. his 

Study also did not consider the extent of rail competition al stations located off the Conrail 

network For example. .Mr. Grocki's Study did not consider that if traffic being moved by 

Norfolk Southem to a Conrail destination station to be served by CSXT from an origin 

station in the Southeast was open to competition from CSXT. then CSXT could convert such 

movements to single system service. Therefore. Mr. Grocki did not consider the possibility 

that existing Norfolk Southem-Conrail traffic would become new CSXT/Conrail System 

single-line traffic where the new CSXT/Conrail System will solely serve the destination 

station and both CSXT and Norfolk Souihem serve the ongin station. Similarly, for Union 

Pacific Southem Pacific System u-affic originating in Texas or Louisiana. Mr. Grocki's Smdy 

did not consider the availability of compelilion by other carriers such as Burlington Northem 
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Santa Fe, Illinois Central or Kansas City Southem, which would affect the available 

compelitive options for sucb traffic destined to Conrail stations, including the new Norfolk 

Southem System's ability to extend its length of haul over a different gateway. 

As described in his Smdy, Mr. Grocki obtained a 100 percent traffic tape for Conrail 

for the year 1995 as the data base for his traffic analysis. Mr. Grocki asserted that "...the 

100% traffic sample offered greater accuracy..." than the Carload Waybill Sample, for the 

following reasons: 

"The principal advantages of using the 100 "̂ nt sample for a database are: 

• It includes all traffic originatm^ and terminating in Canada; the Carload 

Waybill Sample only includes traffic originating in Canada if it 

terminates on a Class I Railroad in the U.S. It does not include any 

traffic terminating in Canada. 

• The 100 percent sample iiKludcs traffic originating and terminating on 

all railroads, while the Carload Waybill Sample only includes traffic 

which originates or terminates on a Class I Railroad. This could lead 

to undercounting chemical and plastics traffic which originates or 

tenninates on a short line. 

• Stations with relatively small traffic volumes may tend to be excluded 

from the Carload Waybill Sample." (Grocki. Appendix C, Page 1) 

Mr. Grocki's claimed superiority of the 100 percent Conrail data base over the 

Carload Waybill Sample with respect to Cnadian traffic, does not apply to my Rail Traffic 

Diversion Smdy because, as I stated in my Verified Statement contained in the Railroad 

Control Application: 
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"The requirements for carrier reporting of traffic for inclusion in the Carload 

Waybill Sample do not apply to traffic tenninating in Canada. In order to 

rectify that omission, 100% files of Norfolk Southem, Conrail. and CSX 

Transportation waybill data for Canadian terminations were appended to the 

Carload Waybill Sample, and those few similar traffic movements terminating 

in Canada for those three carriers that were included in the Carload Waybill 

Sample were removed " (CSX/NS-19, Williams, Page 73) 

Cleariy. Mr. Grocki's asserted superiority of the 100 percent Conrail data base because it 

includes Canadian terminating Conrail traffic provides no advantage over the approach used 

in my Rail Traffic Diversion Smdy, which included 10 wrcent Canadian terminating traffic 

data for Conrail, Norfolk Southem, and CSXT. 

Mr Grocki's assertion that the Carload Waybill Sample "...only includes traffic 

which onginates or terminates on a Class I railroad..." is also incorrect. According to the 

User Guide for the 1995 Surface Transportation Board Waybill Sample, dated July 15, 1996. 

potential reporting railroads are those that terminated more than 4,500 carloads in 1995. 

There were a total of 77 finns that did report to the 1995 Carload Waybill Sample, including 

a number of smaller, non-Class I carriers such as the Chicago, Central and Pacific. Paducah 

& Louisville, and Wheeling & Lake Erie. On this point, therefore. Mr. Grocki's assenion is 

simply inaccurate, as the reporting procedures include traffic originating or tenninating on 

non-Class I lailroads. 

A further deficiency of Mr. Grocki's Smdy is that the computer logic he used was 

intended solely to categorize Conrail's traffic, not to model the competitive interplay for that 

traffic among competing railroads. Accordingly, Mr. Grocki's Smdy did not model the 
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marketplace competition for Conrail's traffic with other caniers. nor did it mode! the 

competitive stmggle for any other traffic, such as were illustrated in my examples. Both the 

DNS Traffic Diversion Model, which I used in my Rail Traffic Diversion Smdy. and the 

.ALK Associates Rail Traffic Diversion Model used on behalf of CSXT utilize an iniricate set 

of diversion logic in order to reflect the commercial realities of the marketplace, as known 

by Norfolk Southern's and CSXT s commercial experts It is my opinion that, absent the 

application of a similar set of diversion logic, the foundation underlying Mr Grocki's Smdy 

is incomplete. It is those gaps listed above, among other factors, that cause Mr. Grocki's 

data analyses and his resulting conclusions with regard to the effects of the Conrail 

transaciion on rail service and competition wiihin the Northeast to be inconect. 

B. Mr. Grocki's Traffic Analvsis Is Incorrect 

Mr. Grocki used the 100 percent 1995 Conrail traffic data base for chemicals and 

plastics to conduct his Study, which he described as follows: 

"Using these assumptions. GRA thfn conducted an analysis for chemical and 

plastics traffic to identify the service and competitive impacts. This analysis 

involved approximately 345.700 impacted carloads totaling almost Sl billion in 

freight revenue The iraffic was divided into mne major categories, depending 

on the potential impact of the break-up of Conrail on competition and service. 

The results of this traffic analysis are contained in Figure JG-C-2, in which the 

nine traffic classes are shown The note to JG C-2 explains which types of 

traffir are included in each service/competition category." (Grocki. Appendix 

C, Page 7.) 

Mr. Grocki's Figure JG C-2 shows each of the nine categories of chemical traffic, 
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with Mr. Grocki's brief summan. of his views as to the effects on competition and on service 

(i.e., "same," "improved," "worse." "worse if gateway shifted," and "unknown") for the 

traffic assigned to each category. Also shown are notes which summarize the characteristics 

of the traffic that Mr. Grocki claims to have used in order to assign the traffic to each 

category. 

I describe below the process by which I reviewed and assessed the results of Mr. 

Grocki's Study. My findings include the following: (1) large blocks of traffic were not 

assigned by Mr. Grocki to his nine categories in accordance with the criteria that he 

designed; (2) there was a sigmficant understatement of the positive benefits of newly-created 

single system service, (3) there was an outright failure to consider the Conrail transaction's 

cross-territorial boundary service improvements; and (4) foi these reasons and others 

described herein, I disagree with Mr. Grocki's conclusions for many of his categories 

regarding the impacts of the Conrail transaction on competition and service. 

In response to a request by Norfolk Southem. Mr. Grocki provided a copy of the 

traffic records data underlying his Figure JG C-2. Each record included origin and 

destination locations and railroads, ConraU's connecting railroads and junctions, STCC, 

traffic class. Conrail revenue, cars. tons, revenue, and the assigned traffic category in Figure 

JG C-2. As a resu!i of our analysis, we were able to replicate the categories of traffic and 

numbers of carloads that Mr. Grocki assigned to each of the nine categories. Accordingly, 

we know that the traffic records we analyzed for each of Mr. Grocki's traffic categories are 

the same ones that he used in his Smdy. 

In order to pnvide a reasonableness test of Mr, Grocki's Smdy results, I prepared 

Attacfjniint JHW-CMA-1 from Conrails 1995 An,v.ui. Repon of Freight Commodity 

Statistics, for the same commodities Uiai Mr. Grocki's Smdy used, namely STCC 28 
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(Chemicals & Allied Products). STCC 29 (Petroleum & Coal Products), and STCC 48 

(Hazardous Wastes). In accordance with sundard reporting re.iuirements. STCC 49 

(Hazardous Matenals) is included within the base STCC codes used in the Annual Repon of 

Freight Commodity Statistics. 

As shown by Attachment JHW-CMA-1. Conrail s Chemicals & Plastics traffic in 

1995 consisted of the following proportions: 

• Local 32.87c 

• Fonvarded IS. 17c 

• Received 44.8% 

• Bridge 4.3% 

The 345.700 carioads considered m Mr. Grocki's Smdy approximate the 349.800 total 

carloads of Chemicals & Plastics traffic reported by Conrail in 1995. as summarized in 

Attachment JHW-CMA-1. Because two-thirds of Conrail" s 1995 Chemicals & Plastics traffic 

was interchanged wuh a westem or southem rail camer. my expectation, based on 

expenence. was that Mi. Grocki's Study would show enhanced compention and/or improved 

service impacts on a majority of uhat traffic. 

Thus, in my initial review. I questioned the validity of Mr Grocki's Smdy finding 

that 50.7% of all Conrail Chemicals & Plastics traffic (Category No. 3 of his Figure JG C-2> 

would be unaffected by the Conrail transaciion. and I also questioned the reasonableness of 

Mr Grocki's finding that only an addiuonal 600 carioads. or 0.2% of all Conrail's 1995 

Chemicals & Plastics traffic (Category No. I of his Figure JG C-2) would experience no 

degradation in either competition or service as a result of the Conrail transaciion. Such 

findings do not track either with the results of my Rail Traffic Diversion Smdy or with my 

general experience, nor are they supported by the details of Mr. Grocki's Smdy. As 1 
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show, Mr. Grocki's traffic analysis does not provide any reasonable basis for his conclusions 

conceming the level of service and degree of competition resulting from the Conrail 

transaction. 

1. Categorv No. 1: Bridge Traffic 

-ording to Mr. Grocki's Figure JG C-2, this category consists of 600 

carioads. or 0.2% of Conrail's Chemicals & Plastics traffic The basis for Mr. 

Grocki's assignment to this iraffic Category No. 1 is as follows: 

"Bridge traffic which will now have an additional route choice with the same 

service and no New Orieans/Memphis diversion potential " (Grocki. Appendix 

C, Figure JG C-2. Page 9) 

Mr. Grocki slated that, in his oninion. competition and service would be "improved" 

and "same." respectively, for this traffic Category No. 1. 

I have reviewed the carioad movements assigned by Mr Grocki to this 

Category No. 1. Based on my review. 1 agree with Mr Grocki's assessment that the 

ConraU transaction will result m "unproved" or "enhanced" competition for this 

bridge traffic, because an additional route choice will be made available. 

However. I do not agree with Mr. Grocki's characterization that service for 

this category of traffic wUl be the "same." From my review. 390 carioads of east-

west and 66 carloads of north-souUi traffic, or 77% of the total of 600 carioads in 

this traffic category , will benefit from the improved service resulting from the Conrail 

transaction Such service improvements for cross-teniiorial traffic now moving via 

Conrail's westem and southem gaiewavs are described in the operating plans filed by 

the Joint Applicants in this transaciion. Further, because of the additional route 
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choices available to all carloads assigned by Mr. Grocki to be included in this 

Categor> No. 1.1 fully expect that higher qualit)'. improved service will be provided 

as a result of that intensified competition, in accordance with economic theor> and 

with my own experience It is my opinion, therefore, thai the service provided to the 

traffic contained in Categor>' No. 1 will be "improved." 

2. CAte^orx No. 2: Shared A<:<pt*̂  Arpa tn Shared Assets 
Area Traffic 

According to Mr. Grocki's Figure JG C-2. he categorized 51.400 carioads. or 

14.9 percent of ComaU's Chemicals & Plastics traffic, as this Category No. 2. The 

basis for Mr Grocki's assignments m Category No. 2 are as follows: 

"Cunent Conrail local traffic which will become SAA to SAA traffic; and. 

Traffic to/from off Comail origms/destinations which will move to/from 

SAA's which has no New Orleans Memphis diversion potential." (Grocki. 

Appendix C. Figure JG C-2. Page 9) 

Mr. Grocki stated that, in his opinion, competition and service wouid be "improved" 

and "worse." respective!). for this traffic Category No. 2. 

I have reviewed all of the carload movements that Mr. Grocki assigned to 

Caiegor> No. 2. From my review, 1 determined that Mr. Grocki included abcut 

16,000 carloads m this Categorv No. 2 that would benefit from single sysiem service 

as a result of the Conrail transaction For example, I found [[[ ])] carioads of 

traffic onginated by Norfolk Southern ai ([[ ]]). TN destined to 

m ]]]. PA, that will realize Lie benefits of single system 

service on the new Norfolk Southern/Conrail Sysiem as a result of the Conrail 
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transaction. As another example. I found [[[ ]]] carioads of traffic originated by 

CSXT at [[[ ]]]. NC destined to [[[ ]]]. NJ in the Northem New 

Jersey Shared Asseis Area that will realize the benefits of single system service on the 

new CSXT/Conrail System, following the Conrail transaction. In my opinion, a more 

descriptively consisteni grouping of the data than the one used by Mr Grocki would 

assign all of the 16,000 carloads which will benefit from the realization of single 

system service as a result of the Conrail transaction to Category No. 5. m order to 

accurately analyze this traffic and assess the impaci of the Conrail transaction 

Similarly, my review of the movements contained in this Category No. 2 

identified 18,361 carioads of east-west and 10,059 carioads of north-south traffic, all 

of which will benefit from the improved service offered by the Joint Applicants as a 

result of the Conrail transaction. 

I concur, as Mr. Grocki states, that competition will be "improved" for all 

traffic included m this Category No 2 I fully expect higher quality, improved 

service will result from such "enhanced" competition, in accordance with economic 

theory and my experience, even though Mr. Grocki characterized lhe service for this 

Category No. 2 iraffic as "worse," presumably because of his contention ihat all 

Shared Asseis Area traffic would experience poorer service after the transaction. For 

reasons discussed later in my statement. I anticipate the opposite result Accordingly, 

It is my opinion that the service provided the traffic contained in Category No. 2 will 

be "improved." 

3. Category N'o. 3: Unchanged Traffic 

According to Mr. Grocki's Figure JG C-2, Category No. 3 consists of 
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175.200 carloads, or 50.7% percent of Conrail s Chemicals & Plastics traffic i 

tniitled this trafftc category as "Unchanged" because Mr. Grocki's view was lhat 

both competition and service for this traffic category would be the "same." following 

the ConraU iransaction. 

The basis for Mr. Grocki's assignment to Category No. 3 follows: 

"Conrail local traffic which becomes NS local or CSX local traffic; 

Traffic which cunently moves via ConraU to/from NS rr CSX which 

becomes NS-CSX interline traffic. Bndge traffic which cunently has 

multiple routing options and will continue to have ihem after the 

merger: and. Traffic to/from off Conrail points which cunenth moves 

to/from Conrail which will, after merger, ongmate/terminate on NS or 

CSX and is not divertable to Memphis or New Orleans." (Grocki. 

Appendix C. Figure JG C-2. Page 9) 

Mr. Grocki stated that, in his opinion, both competition and service would be the 

"same" for this iraffic Category No. 3 

1 have reviewed the movements assigned to Category No. 3 by Mr. Grocki. I 

founi that in excess of 28,000 carloads mcluded in Category No 3 will realize the 

benefiis of single system service as a result of Conrail transaction. For example. 

[[( ])] carloads cunently originated by CSXT at |(( ]]]. FL will 

terminate at [[[ ]]], OH on the new CSXT/Conrail System after the Comail 

iransaction. As another example. [([ ))] carloads onginating on Conrail at [([ 

]]]. DE now moving via Nc.tolk Souihem to [([ ]]), OH will benefit 

from smglt system service by the new Norfolk Souihem/Comail System as a result 

of the Comail transaction. Similarly. [[[ ]]] carioads originating on Norfolk 
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Souihem at [[[ ]]). TN will realize the benefiis of the new Norfolk 

Soutliem/Conrail System s single line service to [[[ ]]], PA, after the Comail 

transaction. 

I also found that 53.695 carloads of east-west and 22,331 carloads of north-

south traffic, or a toic.1 of 76.026 carloads, will realize the service benefits offered by 

the Joint Applicants, resulting from the Conrail transaciion. 

From my review, it is apparent that, of the total of 175.200 carloads assigned 

by Mr Grocki to this Category No. 3, 104.000 carloads will benefii from improved 

service. Accordingly, only tne remainder, or 71.200 carloads of the 175,200 carload 

total in this Category No. 3. can be conectiy stated to have "same" or "unchanged" 

service. I do agree with Mr. Grocki's assessment that competition for all traffic in 

this Category No. 3 will remain the "same," or "unchanged." 

4. Categorv No. 4: To/From Shared Assets Area Traffic 

As shov.n by Figure JG C-2. Mr. Grocki assigned 31,900 carloads, or 9.2% 

of Comail's Chemicals & Plastics traffic, to this Category No. 4, which also consists 

of Shared Asseis Area traffic The basis for Mr. Grocki's assignments to this 

Caiegor>' No. 4 follow: 

"Conrail local traffic which becomes NS or CSX traffic to/from an SAA; and, 

Iraffic which moved NS or CSX to/from Conrail which becomes NS or CSX 

to/from SAA." (Grocki, Appendix C. Figure JG C-2. Page 9) 

Mr. Grock; stated that, in his opinion, competition and service would be "same" and 

"worse." respectively, for this Category No. 4. 
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I reviewed the movements assigned to this Category No. 4 by Mr. Grocki. 

The traffic which is included in this Category No. 4 is characterized by either the new 

Norfolk Southem/Conrail Sysiem or the new CSXT/Conrail System "stepping into 

Conrail's shoes" as a result of the Conrail transaction. Although many of the 

movemenis shown by Mr. Grocki can be handled by only one of the two new 

Systems, there are a substantial number of other movements to or from Shared Assets 

Areas which also originate or terminate at jointly served locations - such as Chicago 

or Toledo or Cincinnati - which would be subjeci to enhanced competition from both 

new Systems, and to the service benefits resulting from such competition even though 

Mr. Grocki's Smdy made no effort to determine the amount of such traffic. 

For this reason, I do not agree with Mr. Grocki's characterization that this 

category of traffic will experience no change in its competitive enviromnent Instead, 

it is my opinion that both the competition and the service provided after the Conrail 

transaction by the two new Systems will be at least as good as that provided by 

Conrail prior to the Conrail transaction. In the absence of dau, however, I have 

suted that both the competition and the service evaluations for this traffic category are 

"unchanged." 

5. Categorv No. 5; Single Sv.«rtem Traffic 

According to Figure JG C-2, Mr. Grocki assigned only 12,600 carioads. or 

3.6% of Comail's Chemicals & Plastics traffic to this Category No. 5. The basis for 

Mr. Grocki's assignments to this Category No. 5 follow: 

"Traffic which cunently moves Conrail to/from NS or CSX which 

becomes NS local or CSX local traffic" (Grocki. Appendix C, Figure 
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JG C-2. Page 9) 

Mr Grocki stated that, in his opinion, competition and service would be "worse" and 

"improved." respectively, for this traffic Category No. 5. 

Mr Grocki's identification of only 12.600 carloads of single system service is 

at (xlds with the 50.000 to 60,000 single system moves shown by my Rail Traffic 

Diversion Smdy and by similar smdies by CSXT to result from the Conrail 

transaction; at 50,0(X) carloads, the single system moves identified by the Applicants 

would constimte 17.4% of the toul chemicals and plastics traffic identified by Mr. 

Grocki. As suted above, my review of Mr. Grocki's Smdy indicates that he 

improperly assigned about 16.000 single system moves to Category No. 2, as well as 

an additional 28.000 single system moves to Category No. 3. Those improperly 

assigned 44,000 carloads, m combination with the 12,600 single system movements 

identified in this Category No. 5 by Mr Grocki's Smdy, toul 56,600 carioads, which 

validates the Joint Applicants' findings that 50.000 to 60,000 carioads of Chemicals & 

Plastics iraffic will benefit from "improved" single system service as a result of the 

ComaU transaction. 

As shown by Figure JG C-2. Mr. Grocki characterizes competition for such 

single system traffic as "worse. His rationale for doing so was provided in a 

response to a Norfolk Southem intenogatory, as follows: 

"Traffic which is currently interlined between Conrail and NS or CSX which, 

after the Comail break-up will become NS or CSX local traffic, cunently 

could be routed via NS/Comail or CSX/Comail. In this case, the shipper has 

the benefit of competition at the origin (or de.stination) when he can negotiate 

between the two competing carriers. After the Conrail break-up, whichever 
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canier (NS or CSX) controls the local move, will effectively become a 

monopoly earner because it can control the service for the route thereby 

depriving the shipper of one competitive option." (CM.A-I3 SPI-8. Grocki 

Response to Intenogatory No. 13) 

The characteristics of all of the traffic which will benefit from single sysiem 

service as a result of the Conrail transaction do not suppon the blanket application of 

Mr. Grocki's rationale that competition will be reduced. For example, all of the 

16.000 single system moves improf)erly assigned by Mr Grocki as Category No. 2 

traffic, but which should have been assigned as Category No. 5 traffic, will benefit 

from improved competition to/from the Shared Asseis Areas. Similariy. a portion of 

those 28.000 carloads which will benefit from single system service that Mr. Grocki 

had enoneously assigned to Category No. 3 involve movemenis between origins and 

destinations ihat are and will remain open to competition - some of which have been 

created by the Comail transaction, and none of which will experience a ;duction in 

competition because of the Comail transaction Still other movements cunently 

originate or terminate at exclusive locations on either Norfolk Southem or CSXT; 

thus, the Comail transaction will not lead lo a reduction in competition for such 

traffic 

In toul. then, the characteristics of all of the 50.000 to 60.000 carloads that 

will realize single system service are unknown However, at least 16.000 carloads 

will realize enhanced competition, while an unknown remainder will be unaffected by 

the Comail transaction or may. in some insunces. expenence a reduction in 

competition of the form posmlated by Mr. Grocki. On balance, however, it is my 

judgment that competition for the composite of the single system movements realized 
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by the Comail transaction beyond the 16.000 carioads is most fairiy characterized as 

"unchanged." 

6. Categorv No. 6A: Shared Assets Area Traffic Potentiallv Divertible 
To The Memphis Or New Orleans Gateways 

According to Figure JG C-2. Mr. Grocki assigned 21.200 carloads, or 6.1% 

of Conrail's Chemicals & Plastics traffic, to this Category No 6A. The basis for 

Mr Grocki's assignment of traffic to this Categorv N0.6A follows: 

"Traffic to/from off Comail points which cunently moves to/from Comai! 

which will originate'terminate in the Shared Asset Area and is potentially 

diveruble to Memphis or New Orleans." (Grocki. Appendix C, Figure JG C-

2. Page 9) 

Mr Grocki suted thai, in his opinion, competiuon and service would be "worse if 

Gateway shifted" and "worse." respectively, for this traffic Categorv No 6A. 

I reviewed the deuUed iraffic records for this iraffic categorj'. The records 

consisted of Comail forwarded and received iraffic to/from Shared Assets Areas, with 

the other end of each move being on a railroad other lhan Norfolk Souihem or CSXT. 

As such, al! of this traffic will be open to competition between the new Norfolk 

Southern'ComaU System and the new CSXT/Comail System for the Comail end of 

the move, after the Comail transaction. Moreover, further analysis revealed that 56% 

of the carioads originated or terminated at non-Comail points (i.e.. the oUier end of 

the move) exclusiveh served by one railroad. Accordingly, Mr. Grocki's conclusion 

that all of such Shared Assets Areas traffic would be divertible by the new Norfolk 

Southem/Conrail System, or the new CSXT/Comail System, in direct competition 
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with each other on the northem end of the move, to a Memphis or New Orleans 

Gateway that would shorthaul the westem canier lhat exclusively serves the southem 

end of the move for 56% of the traffic in this categorv- does not reflect a reasonable 

assessment of the facts. As the exclusive carrier at one end of a mov,-: with two 

carriers competing for the other end of the move, the westem canier would be in a 

stronger position to successfully achieve its long haul on the move. 

For the remaining traffic in this Category No. 6A which originates or 

terminaies at sutions not exclusively served, the shipping public will reuin two 

altemative carrier routes at both the origins and destinations. For example, for the 

[[[ ]]] carloads originating on the Union Pacific Southem Pacific System at (([ 

]]], LA destined to [[[ ]]], NJ in the Shared Assets 

Area, the allemative canier at the origin sution of [([ ]]] is Illinois 

Central. In conjunction with the availability of competing service between the new 

Norfolk Southem/Comail System and the CSXT'Conrail System, this would, I 

believe, preclude the ability of either system to divert this traffic to the Memphis or 

New Orleans Gateway. 

For all the above reasons. I conclude that none of the traffic in this Category 

No. 6A will suffer any adverse impact on competition as a result of the Comail 

transaciion; instead, competition will be "enhanced." In addition, because all of this 

traffic cunently moves either through the east-west gateways or the north-south 

gateways, the Conrail iransaction will result in "improved" service for all of this 

iraffic. 
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7. Categorv No. 6B: Non-Shared Assets Area Traffic Potentiallv 
Divertible To The Memphis Or New Orleans Gatewav 

According to Figure JG C-2. Mr. Grocki assigned 43,400 carloads, or 12.6% 

of Comail's toul Chemicals & Plastics traffic, to this Category No. 6B. The basis 

for Mr. Grocki's assignment of traffic to this Category No. 6B follows: 

"Traffic to/from off Comail points which cunently moves to/from 

Conrail which wih originate/ienminate on CSX or NS and is potentially 

diveruble to Memphis or New Orieans." (Grocki, Appendix C. Figure 

JG C-2, Page 9) 

Mr. Grocki suted that, in his opinion, competition and service would be "worse if 

Gateway shifted" and "same." respectively, for this Category No. 6B. 

The traffic assigned to this Category No. 6B is similar to that of the preceding 

traffic Category No. 6A in that Mr. Grocki alleges that this traffic, too, is potentially 

divertible to the Memphis or New Orieans Gateway. 

I reviewed the deuiied records in this traffic category. As was tme for 

Category No. 6A, 60% of this Category No. 6B traffic originates or terminates at 

exclusively served non-Comail points. It is to be expected that Norfolk Couthem or 

CSXT would meet strong resistance from a carrier serving an exclusive point on the 

southem end of a move to any anempt at shorthauling via the Memphis or New 

Orleans Gateways. Also, a sizable amouni of traffic originates or terminates at non-

exclusively served Comail points, reducing the likelihood that either the new Norfolk 

Southem/Comail System or the new CSXT/Conrail System would be able to force 

routings via the Memphis or New Orleans Gateways. Therefore, I conclude that Mr. 

Grocki has substantially oversuted the potential for such diversions. 
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For example, I see no possibiliry that the [[[ ]]] carioads onginated by the 

Umon Pacific Soutiiem Pacific System at its exclusively served suuon of 

[[[ ]]]. TX destined to the exclusively served Norfolk Southem'Conrail 

Sysiem sution of ([[ ]]]. DE could be diverted io a longer haul via the Memphis 

or New Orleans Gateways by the new Norfolk Souihem/Comail System because the 

latter carrier has no conunercial leverage to do so. Similarly. I see no possibility that 

the [[[ ]]] carloads originated at lhe Union i _cific Souihem 

tacific System exclusively served sutioi. of [[[ ]]], LA and destined to the 

exclusively served Norfolk Southem/Conrail Sys:-m sution of [[I 1)]. WV 

could be diverted via the Memphis or New Orleans Gateways. 

Other iraffic conuined in this Category No. 6B c iginaies or tenninates at 

exclusively served Conrail points, but terminates or originates at non-ex'""usively 

served points off-Conrail. For example, [[[ ]]] carioads originate on the Union 

Pacific Southem Pacific Sysiem at [[[ ])], TX (which is also sened b> the 

Burlington Northem Sanu Fe System) and are destined to [[[ ]]]. DE, which 

will be exclusively served by the new Norfolk Southem/Conrail System 1 disagree 

with Mr. Grocki's contention that this movement could be diverted via the Memphis 

or New Orleans Gateways, thereby shorthauling the originating canier and, as Mr. 

Grocki alleges, increasing the rates charged to the shipping public. 

i-'ilthough theoretically the Norfolk Southem'Conrail System could play the 

Burlington Northem Sanu Fe System off against the Union Pacific Southem Pacific 

System in order to achieve a gateway change, one of those two wertem caniers 

would have to concur both in the shormaul routing and m the reduced revenue 

division associated with it. Altematively, the shipper would have to agree to a rate 
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increase in order to compersate the short-hauled originating carrier, if Mr. Grocki's 

hypothesis were accepted Because tlie shipper controls the routing and. unless both 

westem caniers simuluneously sought such a rate increase, the shipper's preferred 

alternative would be to continue the existing routing, selecting the wesiem carrier that 

concuned in the existmg routing and would reuin the existing rate kvel. For these 

reasons, it is my opimon that anv such diversions to the Memphis or New Orleans 

Gateways are highly unlikely to occur as a result of the Conrail transaction. 

Because all of the traffic involved flows through east-west or north-south 

gateways, it is my opimon that service will be "improved" on all of the traffic 

conuined in this Category No. 6B and, further, that competition will be "unchanged," 

with no diversions o the Memphis or New Orleans Gateways, as a result of the 

Comail iransaction. 

8. Category No. 7: Joint Line Traffic 

According to Figure JG C-2. this traffic consists of 6.600 carloads, or 1.9% of 

ComaU s Chemicals & Plastics traffic. The basis fot Mr. Grocki's assignment of 

traffic to this Category No. 7 follows: 

"Comail local iraffic which becon.es NS-CSX interiine traffic." 

(Grocki. Appendix C. Figure JG C-2, Page 9) 

Ml Grocki suted that, in his opinion, competition and service would both be "worse" 

for this traffic Categorv No. 7. 

1 have reviewed all of the movements assigned to Category No. 7 by Mr. 

Grocki m his cunent Smdy Based on my review, I conclude that Mr. Grocki has 

oversuted by 1,351 carioads the amount of interline traffic that will be created as a 
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result of the Conrail transaction. Thus, instead c*' the 6.600 carloads Mr Grocki 

indicated would become interline traffic, it is my opimon that the conect number is 

5,228 carioads, based on Mr. Grocki's dau. 

lhe most frequent enor in Mr. Grocki's S.ady was his failure to recognize 

that either the existing CSXT System or the exisn.ng Norfolk Souihem Sysiem could 

access ceruin sutions whether or not the C ">mail traffic at that station was "acquired" 

by either the new Norfolk Southem/Conrail L "stem or the new CSXT/CcnraU 

System. Examples of such sutions are La Porte nd Tene Haute, IN; Chicago and 

Kankakee, IL; parts of Baltimore and Pinsburgh; and selected shortiines. including 

the Finger Lakes an«l Pittsburgh Industrial Railroad; all such sutions can be reached 

by both new SysieMs. even if the other end of the move is located at a Comail sution 

which will be exclusively served by either the new Norfolk Southem/Conrail System 

or the ntw CSXT/Comail System. 

Mr. Grocki farther alleged: 

"It is GRA's conclusion that because of the limited number of t-teways 

between NS and CSX in Official Tenitory anc the potential for circuitous 

routing that this traffic will suffer a significant deterioration of service versus 

the ComaU single line service which it enjoys today.,.." (Grocki, Appendix C, 

Page 14) 

In order to respond, I summarized the interline traffic by junction from my 

Conrail N (Penn Lines) and Comail C (New York Central) split runs, which provided 

the best available dau to test Mr. Grocki's allegation. What I found was ihat, for all 

of the interline traffic created, the car miles on Comail after the Conrail iransaction 

would exceed the car miles on Conrail prior to the Conrail iransaction by less than 
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five percent I also found Lhat the most sî .nificani jitnction to be used for such 

interline traffic wa? Buffalo, wh ch accounted for 60% of the toul movements. 

Except for the junction to be create ' at Jersey City, all o: " e other significant 

junctions which would be used are already operational, and they include major 

interchanges such as Cincinnati. Cleveland. Columbus, and Toledo. 

It is my opinion that the introduction of circuity of less than five percent for 

the interline traffic, coupled with its concentration at high volume, existing 

operational interchange points, will prevent any "significant deterioration of service." 

such as was alleged by Mr. Grocki. 

As shown by Figure JG C-2, Mr. Grocki has suted that the effects on 

competition for this Joint Line traffic category will be "worse." In r :sponse to a 

Norfolk Souihem intenogatory for his supponing rationale, Mr. Grock, replied as 

follows: 

"A shipper which is curtently a Comail local shipper which, after the Conr}--\ 

break-up. will become an NS-CSX interline shipper will suffer reductioi in 

competition for two reasons: 

"(a) Prior to the Comail break-up, this shipper would negotiate with a single 

carrier (Comail) After the Comail break-up, the shipper will have to 

negotiate with two (monopoly) carriers for an interline movement. As 

competitors, CSX and NS have historically been relucunt to make competitive 

interline rates. In addition, the toul cost of the movement will be higher than 

a Conrail single line haul; therefore, in the absence of condiiions imposed by 

the STB. shippers will likely have to pay a h'gher rate. 

"(b) Both NS and CSX will lend to favo* shippers with single line service over 
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interline movemenis, particularly wiihin Official Territory. SirH;e many 

chemical and plastics products are commodity-like in namre (i.e.. lhey are 

available from a number of sources), customers which, prior to the 

transaciion. had the advanuge of Com ' single line haul, will now find 

themselves in ihe position of being an interline move with potential 

competition from NS and CSX single line hauls. NS and CSX would lend to 

favor theii own single line haul customers versus the CSX-NS interline move 

after the break-up." (CMA-13/SPI-8. Grocki's Response to Interrogatorv' No. 

13, Page 7) 

In rebutul. I offer the fact that CSXT is currently one of Norfolk Southem's 

largest interchange partners, and that those two head-to-head competitors make 

compelitive interline rates and interchange traffic on some 200.000 units annually. 

Because for this traffic there will be nĉ  altemative to working together, the new 

Norfolk Southem Comail System in conjunction with the new CSXT/Conrail Sysiem 

wil! "step into Coru-ail's shoes'" in order to operate and market the 5.200 carloads of 

interline traffic which results from the Conrail transaction. 

Further. I know of no reason why Comail's rates do not now .eflect 

marketplace conditions, so tliai Mr. Grocki's assertion that interline movements will 

require that shipper̂  will have to pay higher rates is simply inconect If — and Mr. 

Grocki has presented no supporting documenution to his hypothesis -- the toul cost 

of the interline movement increases, but the rate has already been set at its maximum 

in light of marketplace condiiions. then the raie can go no higher and the two carriers 

will absorb any such cost increases. Moreover, the fact that some 200,000 units 
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annually are interchanged beiween the existing .Norfolk Southem and CSX 1" Systems 

in the ordinarv course of business presents strong evidence countering Mr Grocki's 

assertion that those shippers requiring interline movements will be treated less than 

equally compared with the single line customers by the new Ncrtblk Southem'Conrail 

System and the new CS.XT-Copjail Sysiem. 

For these reasons, and because the interline panners. the Norfolk Southem 

Comail System and the CSXT/Comail System, will merely "step into Comail's 

shoes." it is my opinion that compelilion for this category of iraffic will be 

"unchanged." 

9. Categorv No. 8: UnknowTi Traffic 

According to Figure JG C-2. uiis traffic consists of 2.70Ci carloads, or 0.8% of 

Conrail's Chemicals &. Plastics traffic fjie basis for Mr. Grocki's assignment of 

traffic to this Categorv- No. 8 ioilows: 

"Traffic which was handled by Comail in 1995 but now oiiginates or 

ler.ninates on a short line which has multiple routing options. This traffic 

could potentially move v'a another railroad lhan NS or CSX after the Comail 

breakup." (Grocki. Appendix C. Figure JG C-2. Page 9) 

Mr Grocki suted that, in his opinion, both competition and service would be 

"unknown" for this traffic Categorv No. 8. 

I reviewed the records for all 2.700 carloads assigned to this traffic category. 

Although there are a number of smaller movemenis that do not fit the logic by which 

Mr. Grocki said he assigned traffic lo this traffic category, all of the movements in 

excess of {[[ ]]] carloads each either originate or terminate at East Windsor HUl, 
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CT, which was a Comail sution in 1995. but is now located en the Connecticut 

S-̂ uthem Railroad, a ne'Aly formed shortline. Based on my review, 1 characterize the 

impact of the Comail iransaction on coi /etition and service for this t.'affic categorv' 

as "unchanged." because Lhere will be no effect. 

C. Mr. Grock's Gatewav Analvsis Is Without Validitv 

Mr Grocki sutes that approxunately 63.000 carloads of Chemicals & Plastics iraffic 

will have a reduction in competition after the Comail transaction. One of fhe three traffic 

categories to which he attributes a reduction in competition after the Conrail tranr tion is: 

"Potentially diveruble traffic, i.e.. traffic which is cunently original.«. or 

terminating at locations not on Comail and which moves to'from a Comail 

origin or destination which will be solely served by either CSX or NS after the 

merger and which will be potentially diveruble from its cunent Comail 

Gateway lo the Memphis or New Orleans Gateway." (Grocki. Page 5) 

In response to a Norfolk Southem Intenogatory, Mr. Grocki confirmed that the above 

traffic category is included in Figure JG C-2 in accordance with Note 6b and comprised 

43.400 carloads. In accordance with the suted hypothesis and the rate increase projected by 

Mr Charles N. Marshall, whose Verified Staiement appears as Attachment 3 to CMA-10. 

Mr Grocki conducted an analys's of the cost impact of diverting such traffic from existing 

Conrail gateways From ihat Gateway Diversion Analysis, Mr Grocki determined a 

potential rate increase of 10.75% would be required in order to permit westem connecting 

railroads to mainuin their existing revenue through a revised gateway and to permit eastern 

railroads to reuin the same dollar margin lhey enjoyed vir the original gateway. 

fhe results of Mr Grocki's Gateway Diversion Analysis are conuin in his work 
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papers CMA-HC-0003 through 0005. which I have reproduced as Anachment JHW-CMA-2 

HC. and which are refened to as the "Chemical Traffic Diversion Table" in the 

intenogatory responses below. As shown on Page CMA-HC-0005. Mr. Grocki's Gateway 

Diversion Analysis effectively rerouted only 22.238 of the toul 43.400 carloads included in 

Figure JG C-2. Note 6b. 

In response to a No-folk Southem Interrogatory, Mr. Grocki explained the difference 

in these two figures as follows: 

"The methodology used to produce the traffic described in Section 6A and 6b 

of the Grocki verified sutement was different from the methodology used to 

produce the Chemical Traffic Diversion Table. The former methodology 

identified all potentially diveruble traffic to the New Orleans gateway. The 

latter methodology only utilized origin-destination pairs which had a net cost 

savings via the altemate gateway to the railroads involved, and was not sorted 

by gateway... " (CMA-14, Response to Interrogatory No. 2. Page 3) 

Mr Grocki further explained that: 

"The methodology used to de"elop the Chemical Traffic Diversion Table 

identifies the "most profiuble" gateway foi the railroads involved... " (CMA-

14, Response to Intenogatory No, 3, Page 4) 

In othf r words, what Mr. Grocki found, as he conducted his Gateway Diversion 

Analysis rjid as he considered the revenue, costs, and profit margins for the movements 

being analyzed, was thai only about one-half of the traffic that he had identified as potentially 

divertible to the Memphis or New Orleans Gateways in his Figure JG C-2 Note 6b could 

profiubly be diverted by the railroads involved. 
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My further review of Mr. Grocki's work papers identified such significant enors in 

his methodology as to make the entire Gateway Diversion Analysis unusable Attachment 

JHW-CMA-3-HC was prepared in order to analyze the deuil underiying Mr Grocki's 

Gateway Analysis, as conuined in work papers CMA-HC-005 through 0008 

From my investigation, as can be ascertained from Atuchment JHW-CMA-3-HC. I 

found the •'Allowing deficiencies n Mr. Grocki's Gateway Diversion Analysis: 

• Of 165 sute-lo-suie pairs in Mr Grocki's Analysis, 65 suie-to-sute 

pairs, or 39% of the toul. show the Conrail cormecting railroad having 

a negative profit margin, on existmg trafiic movements and cunent 

routings: 

• Ten additional records show $0 cost for both Comail and the 

connecting railroads; 

• Four records show $0 revenue divisions for .he connecting railroad; 

• Many suie-io-sute pairs not relevant to Memphis or New Orleans 

Gateway routings because of circuity are mcluded in Mr. Grocki's 

Smdy, such as Wyoming to Indiana and New Jersey to Oregon; and 

• In responses to Norfolk Southem intenogatories. Mr. Grocki was not 

able to identify which gateways he had used for each sute-to-sute 

pair, but he admitted lhat the Chemical Traffic Diversion Table may 

have included routings via Kansas City or St Louis. He simply 

doesn't know Conceivably, however, none of the 22,238 carloads 

conuined in Mr Grocki's Smdy v;ere acmally diverted via either the 

Memphis or New Orleans Gateways. 

The largest two suie-to-sute movements shown in Mr. Grocki's Smdy Analysis are 
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3,375 carloads originating in Texas destined to New Jersey and 2,421 carloads originating in 

Texas destined to Pennsylvania For those movements, I calculated from Mr Grocki s data 

lhat the wesiem railroads' revenue-to cost ratios were at the umealisticaliy low le els of 1.02 

and 1.09, respectively, over their existing routes. 

As other examples, Mr Grocki's Analysis showed that [[( ]]] carloads originating 

in Wyoming and terminatmg in Indiana produced a negative margin (i.e.. a loss) for the 

western railroads of ([[ ]]) per carload, with a revenue-to-cost ratio of [(| ] ] ] , for 

existing routings. Similarly, for f(( JJl carloads originating in New Jersey and terminating 

in Texas. Mr Grocki's Smdy found a negative margin (i.e., a loss) for the westem railroads 

of 111 )]] per carload, with a revenue to cost ratio of [[[ ] ] | 

As shown by Anachment JHW-C.MA-2-HC. the bottom line result o*" Mr Grccki's 

cost analysis is that ComaU's westen; connections generate revenues of S49.9 million and 

costs of S48.4 million on thi" traffic over their existing routes. ^ my calc lation, that is a 

revenue-to-cosl ratio of 1.03, which means that, for tbj wesiem railroads, such Chemicals & 

Plastics traffic is only marginally profiuble Based on my experience, I do not believe that 

either the Union Pacific Southem Pacific System or the Burlington Nonhem Santa Fe System 

produces such a low . marginal revenue-lo-cost ratio on lheir Chemicals & Plastics traffic. 

It Mr Grocki's Analysis results were conect 'which they are not), then the westem 

railroads would not be intensely competing tor this Chemicals & Plastics traffic; instead, 

they would seek the shortest possible haul to the closest gateway in order to minimize either 

their losses or tbeir marginal contributions. Mr Grocki slides past the improbable results of 

his Analysis by his assumption lliat the wesiem camers. by reducing their lengths of haul, 

will reduce their cosls, but maintain their existing revenue. The real point of Mr. Grocki's 

Analysis is tliat rail rates must be raised so that the westem railroads can generate a 

29 

P-753 



reasonable profit margin on their Chemicals & Plastics traffic, and that objective can be 

further achieved by the wesiem railroads shorthauling themselves! 

From my analysis of deuiled movement records during ihe conduct of my Rail 

Traffic Diversion Smdy. I know that some Chemicals & Plastics iraffic already moves via 

the Memphis and New Orleans Gateways. If the hypothesis presented by Messrs. Grocki 

and Marshall were con::ci. then the Chemicals & Plastics traffic already moving via those 

gateways should have higher rates than would similar traffic moving via the more commonly 

used gateways of St. Louis and Chicago. 

Atuchment J1IV/-CMA-4 was prepared in order to compare the revenue per ton for 

Chemicals & Plastics traffic now moving via the Memphis and New Orleans Gateways with 

that for identical sute-to-sute pairs moving via the Chicago and St. Louis Gateways. In 

preparing AlUcbjnent JHW-CMA-4, I considered only those sute-to-sute pairs with the 

Northeast Region end of the move located in Ohio or more easterly sutes, because it is those 

sutes which would benefii from use of tfie .shorter routes via New Orleans and Sl. Louis. 

Sute-to-sute pairs which had no traffic moving via either the Memphis or New Orleans 

Gateways were not considered because lhey provided no basis for rate comparisons. 

As a review of Atuchment JHW-CMA-4 will show, the average revenue per ton for 

the four gateways was: 

Chicago: S53.77 

Memohis: S54.87 

New Orleans: $51 91 

St. Louis: S57.17 

Average for all four gateways: $56,53 
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From my comparison of existing Chemicals & Plastics traffic movements via these 

four gateway s, 1 conclude dial there is no facmal basis for the hypothesis posmlated by 

Messrs Grocki and Marshall that rates will be iricreased if such traffic were diverted to the 

Memphis or New Orleans Gateways To the contrary, my comparison from the 1995 

Carload Waybill Sample demonstrates that rates for such traffic moving via the Memphis and 

New Orleans Gateways are lower than the average for all four gateways as well as lower 

than the most neavily used St, Louis Gateway, 

FurthenrDre. because it is based on Mr, Grocki's Gateway Diversion Analysis, which 

was demonstrated above to be fraught with substantive errors, Mr. Marshall's observation 

that "the average rate increase for aU diveruble cars is 10.75%" (Marshall, Page 5) has been 

shown lo be without foundation and should be disregarded 

In response to a question from Mr. Stone, CMA's counsel, during my August 11, 

1997 Deposition. I explained why such shorthauls of the Union Pacific and the Burlington 

Northem Sanu Fe Systems via the Memphis or New Orleans Gateways were unlikely to 

occur: 

"A. Yes The rationale for ihat move as I have already tesiified was the 

traffic originating or tenninating in the Southwestem exclusion territory except 

for KCS traffic was originated or terminated by either the Union Pacific 

Sysiem or the BN/Sanu Fe system. 

"And tfiai diversion of that traffic away from the St. Louis area gateways 

including St Elmo or Sidney in tfie case of the new Norfolk Southem gateway 

or away from the Chicago gateway to a Memphis or a New Orleans gateway 

would short haul eitfier tfie Union Pacific or the BN/Santa Fe system. And 

such short hauls were considered unlikely to occur. In other words, the two 
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Westem caniers were not expected to concur in routing changes lhat 

subsuntiaUy short hauled them. 

"Q Okay Do you have any prediction based on your experience m the 

industry of what it would require to induce BN or UP to be shon hauled"? 

"A. Consolidation witfi eitfier the Norfolk Soutfiem'Comail system or tfie 

CSX/Comail system " (Williams Deposition. August 11. 1997. Pages 157-

158.) 

I have not changed my opinion since that date. 

D. Mr. Grocki's Service And Competition Allegations Are Inaccurate 

From my analysis of Mr. Grocki's Smdy. I prepared Atuchment JHW-CMA-5. which 

provides my Rebutul Resutement of Mr Grocki's Study results conuined in his Table JG 

C-2. As explained earlier in my Sutement and shown by Atuchment JHW-CMA-5, using 

oiUy that Conrail dau used in Mr Grocki's Smdy, I conclude that as a result of the ComaU 

transaciion. 233.200 carloads, or 67 f% of Comail's Chemicals & Plastics traffic, will 

benefit from unproved service, and li.200 carioads. or 21.2% of toul Chemicals & Pla.nics 

traffic, will benefit from enhanced ccmpeiition 

1. The Conrail Transaction Will Improve Service For .Most 
Chemicals & Plastics Traffic 

As suted in the Norfo k Souihem Operating Plan (CSX'NS - 20), Mr. Mohan 

concluded that both east-west aid north-south traffic would be subsuntiaUy imp~oved 

as a result of the ComaU iransacion. The increased traffic volume would permit both 

intermediate switching to be reduced and block size to be increased, which would in 
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mm permit more efficient mn-through-type trains, not only on the new Norfolk 

Southem/Comail System but on connecting caniers as well. Similar benefits were 

suted in tfie CSXT Operating Plan. 

The reasons for my conclusion that 233,200 carloads, or 67.5% of total 

Chemicals & P'astic traffic, will benefit through improved service from the Comail 

transaction are shown in Atuchment JHW-CMA-5 anJ summarized as follow: 

• Single System Service: 56,600 carloads 

• Improved service via east-west and north-south gateways: 140.600 

carloads 

• Improved Service from Enhanced Competition: 36.00/0 carloads 

I defer to tfie Norfolk Soutfiem and tfie CSXT i perating witnesses who show 

tfiat service moving to or from tfie Shared Assets Areas will not be reduced. 

However. I would point out tfiat a subsuntial volume of Shared Assets Area traffic 

moves across Northeastem Region boundaries via tfie e-̂ st-west and north-soutfi 

gateways and. tfierefore, wi): receive improved service for the reasons described in 

Mr. Mohan's Verified Sutement, as a result of tfie Conrail transaction. 

Even tfiough he admitted tfiat his Class I railroad experience does not include 

any operrting experience. Mr. Grocki identified approximately 111.000 carloads of 

Chemicals &. Plastics traff c which he judged would receive "impaired service" as a 

resui; of the ComaU uansaciion. He suted that tfie "unpaired service" would involve 

either traffic moving to or from a Shared Assets Area or Comail local traffic which 

becomes interline traffic after tfie Conrail trar saction. My findings differ significantly 

from Mr. Grocki's. and I disagree witfi his conclusions, for all of the reasons 

discussed in this Verified Sutement. 
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2. The Conrail Transaction Will Enhance Competition For a 
Substantial Portion of Chemicals & Plastics Traffic 

Mr. Grocki identifies about 63.000 carloads of Chemicals & Plastics traffic 

that he concluded would experience a reduction in competition. According to Mr. 

Grocki. the following tfiree traffic categories would be involved: 

" 1. Current Comail local traffic which will become NS/CSX interline 

traffic after the Conrail break-up." (6.600 carloads) 

"2, Traffic which is cunently interline between Comail and NS or CSX 

which, after the Conrail break-up, will become NS or CSX local 

traffic." (12.600 carioads) 

"3. Potentially divertable traffic, i.e.. traffic which is cunently originating 

or terminating at locations not on Comail and which moves to/from a 

Comail origin or desiuution which will be solely served by either CSX 

or NS after the merger and which will be potentially divertable from 

its cunent ConraU Gateway to the Memphis or New Orleans Gateway," 

(43.400 carloads) (Grocki, Page 5, carloads added) 

For the reasons discussed eariier 11 this Statement, I do not believe that any 

Chemicals & Plastics traffic will receive reduced competition as a result of the 

Comail transaction. As shown by Atuchment JHW-CMA-5, it is my opinion that 

73.200 carloads, or 21.2% of toul Chemicals & Plastics traffic, will receive enhanced 

competition Almosi all of the traffic which will benefii from enhanced competition 

between the nev* Norfolk Southem/Comail System aiKl the new CSXT/Conrail System 

will be traffic moving to. from, or between Shared Assets Areas. In addition, a small 

amouni of bndge traffic will benefit from enhanced competition, because the Conrail 
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transaction will create additional routes, as admitted bv Mr. Grocki. 

HI. W&LE-4: RESPONSIVT APPLICATION OF WHEELING & LAKE ERIE 
RAILW AY CO.MPANY 

This portion of my Verified Sutement evaluates and rebuts portions of the Responsive 

Application of the Wheeling & Lake Erie Railway Company. 

A. W&LE Was Formed In Order To Enrich Its Founders. Not To 
Preserve Competition with Norfolk Southern/Conrail 

The .Responsive Application of the W&LE is replete with sutements that tfie W&LE 

was founded in 1990 m order lo preserve competition with a then-to-be formed Norfolk 

Southem/Comail combination The basis for W&LE's claim to tfiis effect is conuined in the 

Verified Suiement of Larry R Parsons, Chairman. CEO and majority shareholder of tfie 

W&LE. The following is a typical sutement on this subjeci by Mr. Parsons: 

" I have reason to believe tfiat tfie recreation of the W&LE in this described 

tenilorv' was NS's response to the Antitmst Division's divestimre demand. 

This would-be new W&LE. added to the thtn-viable Pittsburgh & Lake Erie, 

was supposed to offset the clearly anticompetitive aspects of a Comail/NS 

combination in the Pinsburgh'Chicago Conidor." (W&LE-4. Pages 24-25) 

Nothing could be further from the truth Indeed, as I show in my sutement. the 

W&LE was formed with a single objective: to emich its founders The presen-ation of 

competition in the Pittsburgh-'Chicago Conidor was not a consideration. 

The bases for founding, operating, and profiting from the W&LE are clearly stated in 

the Wheeling .icquisition Corporation 's Of ering Proposal, dated November 10. 1988. 
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Prepared by the W&LE founders and promoters. th»t document described the W&LE 

operating properties, discussed the evolution of regional railroads generally, presented a 

business plan including pro forma financial projections of revenues and expenses, provided 

projecteii remms to its investors, and conuined resumes of its founders, who later became 

the W&LE's management team Witfiin the WAC Offenng Proposal, there is not a single 

word nor any other shred of suppon for Mr. Parsons' unsupported "belier lhat the W&LE 

was created as a prospective competitor of a Co.irail/NS combination in the 

Pittsburgh/Chicago conidor. 

The WAC Offenng Proposal expressed the view that tfie operatmg propenies 

comprising the W&LE could be operated togetfier by its management te.im to prcxluce 

additional traffic: 

"The Wheeling group believes that the properties can be operated together to 

produce additional traffic. Norfolk Southem. for several reasons, has not 

developed the use of the bndge route between the Upper Midwest and mid-

Atlantic sutes..." 

"For one, NS owns a competing route and channels traffic over its high 

density main line For another. NS ownership of the lines has precluded the 

use of the lines by competitors, particularly CSX. As an independent, the new 

railroad would be in a position lo work wiih other camers . " (W.4C Proposal. 

Page 5) 

The WAC Offenng Proposal went on to sute: 

"The Wheeling lines of Norfolk Southem carry sufficient density so that they 

are in no immediate danger of being "lorn from die ground." Still, the 

existence of the lines fits no marketing strategy consisleni with the overall 
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design of Norfolk Southem, which is otherwise the most profiuble and well-

mainuined of the large major railroads..." 

"The lines have been operated as strategic orphans since their induction into 

tfie NS system in tfie I960's. The lines would have provided a link between 

the East and Midwest, bul Norfolk Southem (tfirough predecessor Norfolk & 

Wesiem) pulled back from a strong foray into Eastem markets, prefening to 

concentrate on routes serving auto planvs and the coal fields. The lines were 

marked for sale when NS sought to purchase Comail, by tfie 1980's the 

acknowledged power in Eastem markeis. When that purchase was denied, NS 

decided to divest the Wheeling lines as part of an overall plan to trun an 

estimated 2,500 miles of raU lines from its sysiem..." 

"NS' intent, while benign, is not altogether altmistic. NS would still 

interchange a substantial amount of traffic witfi the Wheeling and is anxious to 

preserve its own traffic base.. ." (WAC Proposal. Page 12) 

Tuming to the benefiis and the oppormnity for investor profii in the W&LE. the W^C 

Offering Proposal staled; 

"Il is the hope of the regionals to optimize by realizing the advanuges-

flexibility and responsiveness-of being small, and also of being sufficiently 

large to serve diverse markeis. to create iraffic density and to attract 

capiul...." 

"On the latter score, it can be noied ihat Value Line Investment Survey 

recently began following MidSouth Corp., a regional railroad formed in 1986. 

Further, of the three linis involved in the Wheeling transaciion. two involve 

companies with receni or present public capital sums. The Pittsburgh & 
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West Virginia, owner of assets to be sub-leased on a long-term basis, is 

presenUy listed on tfie American Stock Exchange; tfie '\Vheeling & Lake Ene. 

altfiough controlled by stock and by lease by Norfolk Soutfiem. still was listed 

on tfie New York Stock Exchange until last year ..." (WAC Proposal. Page 14) 

The WAC Offering Proposal tfien presented its business plan, including pro fomia 

financial projections, which it descnbed as follows: 

"The Wheeling group has developed a business plan built around generating 

sufficient cash flow from railroad operations lo pay off in five years a 

subsuntial amount of the funds required for the acquisition. Although the 

Wheeling group is optimistic about applying the economics and marketing 

efforts of a regional railroad to secure new iraffic. tfie business supporting the 

pro forma plan is subsuntiaUy tfie existing traffic base. The pro formas reflect 

significant expecied gains in productivity as a result of plans to change the 

methods and orgamzation of work and of compensation... " (WAC Proposal. 

Page 16I 

The WAC Offering Proposal summarized ceruin key aspects of the pro formas as 

follows: 

"To summarize, the pro formas indicate tfial the railro. d operations would 

produce a net cash flow from operaiions of approximately $13.2 million in tfie 

base year on $43.3 million of revenue, and would show mild growtfi in botfi 

categories thereafter . ." 

•Revenues largely reflect acmal NS rail movements on the Wheeling lines for 

tfie years 1987 and first half 1988. (Later dau now being assembled up 
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tfu-ough the first half of 1989 will be scmtinized in tfie due diligence process.) 

Because tfie NS base dau is recorded on a system basis, the dau in many 

cases had to be pro-rated and assigned to tfie Wheeling lines; tfie basis for the 

split is generally mileage, altfiough otfier factors may affeci special cases..." 

"Adjustments were made to the revenues to recognize special assumptions-

botfi up and down. As an example, the question of how a key Cleveland 

utility will react to the problem of acid rain after 1992 led to a pro forma 

downward adjustment in coal revenues. The assumption was that the coal 

movements would initially be cut by one-third, even though the 

management bas set a high priority on taking steps to avoid that result..." 

"The pro formas do take into consit'eration tfie attraction of some new traffic 

whkh NS does not carry today Specifically, tfie growth would be added by an 

enhanced use of trackage righis over Hagerstown to points east and soutfi to 

tfie Shenandoah Valley..." 

"The pro fotma revenues in the most likely case grow from nearly $43.3 

million in the first year to more than $50.2 million in the year 10-as a 

result of estimated ICC allowed "general increases" in rates and witfiout 

regard for efforts to anract addiiioa-xl traffic witfi local marketing efforts and 

improved rail economics... " (WAC Proposal, Page 16; emphasis added) 

In order to show projected remms to its prospective investors, tfie WAC Offering 

Proposal prepared a leveraged buy-out analysis tfiat il described as follows: 

"The leveraged buy-out analysis which follows steps out from tfie rail 

revenue/expense pro formas. Again, it should be emphasized tfiat tfie figures 

presented do not uke inlo account additional values lo be realized from 
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propeny not used in rail operations.. 

"The first page of that analysis summarizes various assum.;̂ iions. The offer 

price is the combination of the S42 million offered to NS for the fixed asseis. 

plus $16.7 million in rolling stock to be received from and fin.tnced by 

Norfolk Southem..." 

"The remms to equity investors reflect various assumptions, including the pro 

forma results, the amount of equity in the capiulization. and the terminal 

values, among others,.." 

"The analysis shows coverage of interest, and concludes ixiat 60 per cent of the 

senior debt would be paid al the end of the fifth year, and that the Wheeling 

would have repaid subsiantiaUy all of the semor debt by the end of year 

seven..." 

"The buUd-up m shareholders' equity is projected...." (WAC Proposal, Page 

17) 

As shown by a review of the projected balance sheet (following Page 17) in the WAC 

Offenng Proposal, the WAC founders projected a more lhan 16-fold increase in 

shareholders' equity from the beginning pro forma amount of $5.1 million to $83.4 

million in 1999. On lhat basis, the retums to equity investors (also shown m the deuiled 

projections following Page 17 of the WAC Offenng Proposal) ranged from a high of 130.4% 

per annum to a low of 27.3% per annum, according to the relative optimism or pessimism of 

the assumptions involved. Of course, such substantial armual rates of remm to equity 

investors far exceed those obuinable in the usual financial markets, and it was through the 

realization of these extraordinary rates of remm that the W&LE founders sought to enrich 
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themselves. 

That even greater financial rewards were tfie tme dream of tfie W&LE founders can 

be deduced from tfieir reference to tfie public listing of tfie MidSoutfi Corporalion in tfie 

WAC Offenng Proposal (Page 14). For. if tfie W&LE were successftil. and it could be 

publicly traded at a pnce earning- ratio comparable to tfiat of MidSouth Corporation, or 14.4 

times W&LE net income of $9.8 million in 1999 (as was projected in tfie WAC Offering 

Proposal s projected income suiement following Page 17). tfien the market value of 

W&LE's shareholders equity would have increased to $141.1 million, or more than 28 

times the amount of the initial equity investment of $5.1 million. 

From my personal knowledge. I know that providing compei;tion witfi a combination 

of a merged Norfolk Soutfiem'Comail -- a merger which had already been mmed down by 

tfie U.S. Congress - never entered tfie minds of the founders and tfie investors in tfie 

W&LE. who sought instead simply to generate financial remms beyond tfieir wildest dreams. 

As descnbed in tfus Venfied Statement. 1 was activelv involved during tfie formation 

of tfie W&LE For that assignment. 1 reviewed ̂  ^ V'AC Offenng Proposal, held numerous 

conversations witfi tfie WAC founders, promoters, and investment banker, and interviewed 

tfie W&LE's principal customers Because Mr. Parsons did not assume his position at tfie 

Wheeling until March of 1992. according to his Sutemem, he had no knowledge of tfie 

rationale for tfie founding of tfie W&LE or of tfie W&LE promoters' objective to realize 

such extraordinary financial retums. As a result, his "beliefs" about Norfolk Soutfiem's 

rationale for its sale, are just tfiat-beliefs. and tf^ey have no basis whatsoever in fact. I 

submit tfiat tfie W.̂ C Offenng Proposal demonstrates tfie lack of any validity to majority 

shareholder Parsons's suted beliefs and ihat such beliefs should be wholly disregarded by tfie 
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Board. 

B. Mr. Parsons' Mis-statements Concerning The Woodside Consulting 
Group. Inc. Are Misleading And Untrue 

In several places in his Sutement, Mr. Parsons. W&LE majority shareholder, mis

represents the role of the Woodside Consulting Group. Inc in the formation of tfie W&LE 

with attacks on Woodside which simply have no facmal support, and which are both 

misleading and untrue. 

Mr. Parsons' mis-represenutions include the following: 

"The initial debt problem was partly tfie result of a faulty consulunt smdy by 

Woodside Group which erroneously projected for the new W&LE $40 million 

in operating revenues and five years of coal traffic originations despite the 

passage of the Clean Air Act. Coal traffic was extraordinarily imporunt for 

the new W&LE. Its projections accounted for a significant part of the 

revenues and a very high percenuge of tht new lailroad's margins." (Parsons, 

Page 5) 

"The W&LE was purchased for $42 million (not including any imputed value 

of a NS equipment lease which was tenninated shortly after I arrived at the 

W&LE). The railroad incurred approximately $42 million of debt based upon 

a study by Woodside Consulting Group of Menlo Park, Ca. thai indicated, 

among other things, that the W&LE would generate about $40 million in 

annual revenues and that coal revenues which comprised roughly 25% of 

W&LE's most profiuble traffic would remain for 5 years . ." (Parsons, Pages 

8-9) 
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Mr. Parsons' mis-suiements are untme. Further, the multimde of accusations made 

b\ Mr. Parsons - with regard to Woodside's "traffic projections;" Woodside s purported 

"guarantees" that a fixed amount of coal traffic volume and revenue would continue for five 

years; Woodside's alleged lack of consideration of the effects of tfie Clean Air Act on tfie 

W&LE coal traffic; and tfiat he as tfie W&LE President, Chief Executive Officer and 

majorit)' shareholder relied two and one-half years later on tfie Woodside Report's supposed 

assurances that W&LE enjoyed a "guaranteed" stf-eam of fiimre coal revenues -- demonstrate 

tfie faultiness of Mr. Parsons' judgment, and cast a pall of doubt on the reminder of his 

Verified Sutement. 

In January 1990, tfie Woodside Consulting Group. Inc. was reuined by Wertheim 

Schroder & Co. Inc. for a consulting assignment which involved the preparation of a 

Business Plan for tfie W&LE. Our assignment was to work witfi tfie founders of tfie 

Wheeling Acquisition Corporalion to evaluate tfieir planning assumptions for traffic volume 

and revenue projections, operating costs, capiul expendimre plans, and to prepare an 

estimate of tfie net liquidation of tfie W&LE's track and stmcmres. Atuchment JHW-WLE-

1 conums a complete discussion of Woodside's assignment, our major conclusions, and our 

findings as to the most significant risks of the W&LE transaciion 

Conceming the development of the W&LE's traffic projections, we suted tfie 

following: 

"We began our analysis of W&LE's traffic projections using tfie original 

WAC Business Plan. Subsequently, WAC revised its iraffic projections based 

hrgely on tfie receipt of more complete dau from NS. As a result of our 

review, we have made several additional minor adjustments to WAC's iraffic 

projections, as are discussed later in this Chapter." 
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"As shown by Table I - l . we project W&LE's Linehaul Revenues at S36.514 

million tfu-oughout Uie planning horizon. Table II-1 presents a 'W&LE Traffic 

Summary By Commodity Group' for tfiis linehaul traffic, based on WAC's 

revised projections. As shown. WAC's revised projections for W. ;LE's 

traffic volume were 95.100 carloads and $36.5 million of total revenues, 

annually, or about the same as those in lhis V\ &LE Business Plan/ 

(Business Plan. Page 11-2; emphas.s added) 

The Business Plan discussed each of the Wheeling Acquisition Corporation's revenue 

and volume projections for each of W&LE's five pnncipal commodity groups. 

Our discussion of Coal Traffic in tfie Business Plan, which is reproduced m 

Ailachnienl JHW-WLE-1. recognized tfie imporunce of coal traffic to tfie W&LE, and 

discussed the fumrt of tfie existing coal movements to be assumed by W&LE within tfie 

context of tfie Clean Air Act. It also considered the political pressure which could be 

exercised b> the Sute of Ohio to ensure thai the maximum amouni Ohio coal conlinued to be 

mined at W&LE's Ohio mines and bumed at W&LE's Ohio utility plants, most lUcely in 

conjunction witfi some increased use of blended low sulfur coal Having reviewed all of tfie 

information provided to us by The Wheeling Acquisition Corporation, and having 

interviewed all of tfie affected parties, we concluded that, recogmzing the nsks involved, tfie 

financial projections for W&LE's coal movements were reasonably suted. 

Subsequent to tfie issuance of Woodside's Business Plan, on April 12. 1990. a 

represenutive of Wertheim Schroder & Co. Inc requested m\ advice conceming two coal 

revenue sensitivity scenanos that he was prepanng for W&LE's investors and lenders. My 

advice was that a "disaster" case scenario should call for W&LE lo lose all of its coal traffic 
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not later lhan Januar> I . 1995. I also advised him that a "worst" case scenario should 

contemplate tfie loss of 45% of W&LE's coal traffic in that same time period That 

conversation reflected tfie awareness of all of the parties involved in the W&LE's transaction 

of the subsuntial risks as.sociaied with ihe projected fiimre movement of coal by W&LE. 

The Woodside Report concluded lhat all of the business risks of the W&LE 

transaction were reasonable to assume, subject to the following requirement: 

"Our expenence with otfier regional railroads suggests thai, so long as an 

effective Management Team is in place, not only will W&LE's business 

risLs be mitigated, but new opportunities will be recognized and exploited." 

(Business Plan. Page 1-11, emphasis added.) 

The Woodside Consulting Group has gained subsuntial "cperience with many new 

regional railroads All of tfiose regioiial railroads which have been successful have had good 

railroad managers who adhered to their business plans. For any new railroad, the k 

ingredient to successful pertormance is its Management Team. Woodside's experience is ihat 

a good Management Team can conect a faulty business plan, but that a poor management 

team can min a good business plan Froni our experience with successful regional railroads, 

we believe that capable railroad managers (such as Ed Moyers, Bill Brodsky. or Ed 

Burkhardt) would have been able to solve the W&LE's business problems and to execute the 

W&LE Business Plan as it was projected to be achieved. 

Based on that Woodside experience and also on those actions subsequently uken by 

W&LE s Management Team of which we are aware, we believe it is cle? - that the failure of 

the W&LE to produce results in accordance with tfie Business Plan resulted botfi from the 

loss Ol Avon Lake coal traffic (witfiout tfie expecied intervention by tfie Sute of Ohio to 

preserve its mining industry) and from the failure of the W&LE Management Team. 
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compounded by tfie failure of tfie W&LE Board of Directors to effectively monitor tfie 

W&LE Managemem Team, in implementing tfie freight car suppiy and car hire cost aspects 

of tfie operational portion of tfie W&LE Business Plan. 

From tfie perspective of tfie Wheeling Acquisition Corporation's founders and 

promoters, its invesonem banker, and Woodside, tfie W&LE business Plan was a high risk, 

as well as a potentially very high reward, transaction. Witfiin tfie W&LE traffic base, tfie 

risk of losing a subsumial portion of W&LE's existing high sulftir oal movemems was tfie 

most sigmficant. What is apparent from a review of tfie Business Plan is tfiat, for a variety 

of reasons, all of tfie parties involved - inciuamg tfie coal oroducers and users and tfie 

Wheeling Acquisition Corporation founders and promoters - believed tfiat high sulfiir coal 

would continue to flow over tfie W&LE from Ohio origins. Altfiough Woodside concluded 

from our investigation tfiat tfie views of all of tfiose parties were reasonable, we made no 

assurances and provided no guarantees to any party tfial W&LE was insulated eitfier from 

competition from Norfolk Soutfiem or otf-er rail carriers, or from utility scmbber or otfier 

equipment decisions, or from any otfier extemal events over which W&LE had no control. 

C. Mr. Thomoson's Traffic Loss Studv It Greatlv Overstated 

W&LE's Witness Thompson presents a Los-: Smdy in which he projects annual 

revenue losses of $12.7 million as a result of tfie Conrail transaction. In contrast, tfie 

Norfolk Soutfiem RaU Traffic Diversion Smdy tfiat I prepared and sponsored projected 

annual revenue losses to tfie W&LE of $1.9 million, as a result of tfie Norf'olk Soutfiem 

portion of the Conrail transaction. 
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1. Mr. Thompson's Methodologv 

The W&LE traffic smdy undertaken to quantify the losses which W-* LE 

would incur as a result of tfie proposed Comail transaction, sponsored by Mr. 

Thompson, is summarized as Appendix A (Pages 103-105) to his Verified Sutement. 

According to Mr, Thompson, tfiat analysis was based on fiscal year 1996 (which has 

been identified elsewhere as July 1, 1995 tfirough June 30, 1996). Applicants 

selected calendar year 1995 as the base year for purposes of this proceeding, and the 

use of tfie twelve montfi period July 1, 1995 tfirough June 30. 1996 muddles any 

efforts at consistency, resulting in "apples and oranges" comparisons. 

From my review of Mr. Thompson's Appendix A. it appears that his ^ oss 

Smdy was undertaken using work papers otfier tfian tfiose placed in the W&LE 

depository as work papers W&LE-OOOOl tfu-ough W&LE-00342. Those work papers 

consist of the following: 

• W&LE-OOOl tfirough W&LE-00205: A computer listing, in reverse 

page number order, of 11,307 records of Wheeling Pin Steel 

movements for FY 1996. conuining traffic class, STCC. shipper, 

waybill date and number, car number, and revenue dau, but not origin 

and destination information It is, therefore, of linle value in assessing 

the validity of Appendix A, for which origin cities. STCC, and 

destination cities (tfie latter included for some, but not all, moves) are 

the principal identifying information. 

• W&LE-00229 tfu-ough W&LE-00245: A computer listing of W&LE 

forwarded/received traffic for FY 1996, conuining origin and 

destination, STCC, shipper, carioads. and revenue information 
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summarized for the period, as well as an "N" or "C" nouiion for 

many records. Although this information does conespond to the smdy 

period identified by Mr Thompson, it is not sufficient to support all of 

the dau summarized in Appendix A. which also include W&LE local 

and bridge traffic movements. 

• W&LE-00206 tfu-ough W&LE-00228 and W&LE-00246 tfirough 

W&LE-(X)342: Computer listings of W&LE's forwarded/received 

traffic and, separately by class of traffic and by W&LE customer, both 

for FY 1997, which does not conespond to the smdy period identified 

by Mr. TTiompson as the basis of his Appendix A. 

Of the work papers provided by W&LE. while clues about local iraffic may be 

gleaned from the FY 1997 listing by customer, only the listing of W&LE FY 1996 

forwarded/received iraffic might possibly provide any direct support for Mr. 

Thompson's Appendix A summary. It should be noted that information about routing 

ard other participating carriers is not included ir any of W&LE's computer listings. 

However, even for those ongia'destmation pairs in Appendix A that clearly represent 

either forwarded or received moves, there is no clear pattem allowing a match 

beiween the FY 1996 work papers and the Appendix A summarv. Neither carloads 

nor revenue figures can be found to conespond for any of the Appendix /. 

movemenis. Moreover. Mr. Thompson has failed to identify any method that he may 

have used to estimate diversion percenuges where his Appendix A summary includes 

less than all of the traffic in a specific flow. 

In summar>, Mr. Thompson's underlying work papers were incomplete as 

were his movement records used for his smdy. and they were based on FY 1996 (July 
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1, 1995 - June 30. 1996) dau that does not conform to the 1995 calendar year base 

year selected by the Board for this proceeding. 

Nevertheless, I have reviewed all of the traffic movemenis shown in Mr. 

Thompson's Loss Smdy, as well as all of his work papers and all other iraffic dau 

presented bv W&LE. As a result of my review and analysis. I have resuted Mr. 

Thompson's Loss Smdy in order to attempt an "apples to apples" comparison. 

Altfiough the absence of underlying work papers and use of non-base year dau has 

created difficulty, it is my opimon. based on the FY 1996 Traffic Diu used by Mr. 

Thompson. W&LE's acmal annual revenue loss will be $2.0 million, instead of the 

$12.7 million annual revenue loss claimed by Mr. Thompson in the W&LE Loss 

Smdy. Thus, I conclude that Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy greatfy oversutes tf.c 

W&LE's revenue losses resulting from the Norfolk Southem portion of the Comail 

transaction. 

The following Table JHW-1 shows my "Resutement of W&LE's Loss Smdy, 

the amount of my resutement, and my reasons for resutement: 
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TABLE JHW -WLE-1 

Restatement of W&LE's I xiss Studv 
(Dollars in Millions) 

Thompson's WUliams' 
W&LE Restatement of 
Loss Studv Loss Studv Williams' Reasons for Restatement 

$3.6 $0.0 W&LE "Phantom Train" 
1.9 0.0 NSCR same as CR; no iransaction effeci 
12 0.0 Only W&LE serves origin or destination suiion 
2̂ 1 0.0 W&LE/CSXCR Alliance 
0.2 0.2 NSCR Single Sysiem Senice 
0.2 0.1 NSCR vs. W&LE Single Sysiem Service 
3.5 1.7 NSCR Compelilion 

$12.7 $2.0 Total 

The deuil underlying tfie resutement of Mr Thompson's Loss Smdy shown 

above in Table JHW-WLE-1 is conuined in Atuchment JHW-WLE-2-HC. which 

reproduces the deuiled movements conuined in Mr Thompson s Appendix A. 

amplifies tfiose movemenis by my resutement of tfie revenue loss, and provides my 

reasons for resutement for each movement 

2. W&LE's "Phantom Train" 

As shown by Atuchment JHW-WLE-2-HC. W&LE claims it will lose $3.6 

million annually for intermodal traffic moving beiween Hagerstown. MD and 

Bellevue. OH, based on FY 19% dau Mr. Thompson's nanative description of a 

mn tfirough intennodal train service between Bellevue, OH and Hagerstown. MD, to 

connect witfi NS indicates tfiat "these trains moved for a period of about six weeks at 

tfie beginning of tfie Comail control case." This cleariy places tfie traffic movement 
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in FY 1997 and not relevant to Mr. Thompson's FY 1996 analysis period, let alone 

tfie Board's adopted calendar year 1995 period. Furthermore, as shown by the June 

25. 1997 letter from Norfolk Soutfiem's Executive Vice President - Operations which 

was reproduced from W&LE's work papers (see Atuchment JHW-WLE-3), tfie 

cessation ty Norfolk Soutfiem of this train's operation was due to other factors 

(specifically. W&LE's abysmal on-iune performance record) that are not related to 

the Comail iransaction; accordingly, this move has no place in a uble summarizing 

unpacts on W&LE of the Conrail u-ansaction. 

Despite those facts. Mr. Thompson has attributed to this traffic movement 

(STCC "48000") a loss of $3.6 million in revenue, as shown in his Loss Smdy. 

This $3.6 million revenue loss is clearly far in excess of tfie revenue ever received by 

W&LE for this traffic for the six week period when the trains actually ran, and its 

projected toul armual revenue, as suted in W&LE's response to Norfolk Southem's 

Imcrrogatory No. 24 (W&LE-6). Thus, cloaked in Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy is 

W&LE s "Phantom Train" tfiat perhaps might have moved, had W&LE's train 

schedule pertbrmance been bener. but that acmally hardly moved at all! The $3.6 

million revenue loss claimed by Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy for W&LE's "Phantom 

Train" should be disregarded in its entirety. 

3. NSCR Same As Conrail; No Transaction Effect 

Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy also claimed annual revenue losses of $1.9 

million by attributing ceruin traffic losses to the Conrail transaciion tfiat are, in fact, 

not related, as summarized by my Table JHW-WLE-1 Where tfie competitive 

position of tfie new Norfolk Soutfiem/Conrail System (NSCR) after the Conrail 

51 

p-775 



iransaction will be identical to tfiat of Conrail before tfie Conrail transaciion. then the 

Conrail transaction will have no effeci on W&LE. and it is inappropnaie lo project 

tfiat traffic would be diverted from W&LE and to attribute such revenue losses to tfie 

Conrail transaction. 

The largest movement in this category of traffic is iron ore from Huron. OH 

to Mingo Junction. OH tfial, according to Mr. Thompson, will be lost by W&LE in 

tfie amount of $1.8 miUion dollars annually. Mr. Thompson's lament for tfiis traffic 

follows: 

"W&LE cunentfy has a short-term lease allowing limited access to Lake Erie 

via Huron Dock at Huron, OH which will expire in less than a year. 

Wheeling Pittsburgh Steel curremly has a contracmal ability to ship up to 

25% of its ore shipments otfier tfian by Comail Witfi NS serving Wheeling 

Pittsburgh Steel in place of Conrail, i,e.. succeeding to Comail s shipping 

contract, NS control of Huron Dock will open the door for NS to become tfie 

sole supplier of ore for Wheeling Pittsburgh Steel. Wheeling Pittsburgh Steel 

consumes beiween 2.1 and 2.6 million tons of iron ore per year of which, 

under the previous Comail contiaci, W&LE had tfie oppormnity to handle 

more tfian 500.000 tons annually. This important traffic will be foreclosed by 

tfie combination of NS's absorption of Comail's rights, and its exclusive 

position on Huron Dock." (Thompson, Page 4) 

A W&LE work paper (which I have reproduced as Anachment JHW-WLE-4-

HC) provided further comments on this movement as follows: 
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"WE handles [[[ ]]]%. CR now has bal from Penny Dock to Mingo Jet. 

direct, .\mouni WE can get rises to ([[ ]]]% by 2000." (WLE-000033 -

MKT HC) 

From Mr. Thompson's sutement and work papers, it is apparent lhat the 

current competitive simation is that Conrail handles iron ore from Penny Dock to 

Mingo Junction directly in competition with W&LE's movements from Huron Dock 

to Mingo Junction directly. As Mr. Thompson sutes, W&LE's real objection is to 

tfie potential expiration of its 1994 lease from Norfolk Soudiem for W&LE's use of 

the Huron Dock. Clearly, it is the potential expiration of W&LE's lease for tfie 

Huron Dock - not the Conrail transaction - which would cause the loss of W&LE's 

iron ore traffic. In the absence of the Comail u-ansaction, the termination of 

W&LE's Huron Dock lease would cause W&LE's iron ore traffic to be lost, just as 

subsequent to tfie Comail U-ansactic n. termination of W&LE's Huron Dock lease 

would cause tfie loss of W&LE's iron ore traffic. Thus, the Conrail ttansaction has no 

effect on whetfier or not W&LE's iron ore traffic is lost. What will determine 

wheiher or not W&LE reuins the iron ore Uaffic is its ability to negotiate an 

extension of its Huron Dock lease in a private, marketplace negotiation, but that is 

not a Comail transaciion effect. 

Another example of a W&LE claimed u-affic loss that is not related lo the 

Comail transaction is the movement of com traffic originating at [[[ ]]], OH 

destined to [[[ ]]], MD (see Movement No. 4. Attachnient JHW-WLE-2-

HC) Prior to tfie Comail transaction, tfiis iraffic was routed ASRY (Plymoutfi) 

W&LE to destination; both [[[ ] ]] and [[[ ]]] are served 

by Comail. which competes for this traffic. After the Conrail iransaction. the new 
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Norfolk Southem/Conrail Sysiem will "step into Conrail's shoes." and W&LE's 

compelitive posiiion will be unchanged as tfie ASRY/W&LE combination will 

complete against the new Norfolk Southem/Comail Sysiem over the exact same route 

that Conrail uses today. Accoid.ngly. as shown by Attachment JHW-WLE-2-HC. my 

reason for rejecting Mr. Thompson's claim that the [[[ ]]] of revenue from this 

movement will be lost is because the Conrail u-ansaction will have no effeci on it. 

4. Onlv W&LE Serves the Origin or Destination Station 

As shown by Table JHW-WLE-1, I rejected Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy's 

projected $1.2 million of annual revenue losses whenever the only rail canier serving 

tfie origin or destinauon sution was W&LE. Accordingly, for example, as reference 

to Anachment JHW-WLE-2-HC wUI show. Movement Nos. 1 - 3 and 5 - 9 have all 

been rciuted to project the loss of no revenue. Since no other rail caniers serve the 

sutions involved - Rook, PA; Clarksfield, OH; Momoeville, OH; and New 

Washington, OH - it is beyond any other carrier's capability to divert such 

movements. The same rationale applies to otfier movements in this category, the 

deuils of which are shown by T?.blt JHW-WLE-2-HC. 

5. A W&LE/CSXCR Alliance Will Be Created 

Historically, botfi CSXT and Norfolk Southem have worked with W&LE to 

generate rail tfaffic. As shown by tfie CSXT Sysiem Map (1995), W&LE is 

categorized as a "regional connection" to CSXT because W&LE serves miporunt 

sutions, such as Canton. OH, tfiat CSXI does not. Following tfie Conrail 

transaction although the Norfolk Souihem/Comail combination will no longer have 
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need for W&LE as a feeder line to some sutions, that will not be true for the new 

CSXT/Comail System (CSXCR). Accordingly, as shown by Table JHW-1 and by 

Atuchment JHW-WLE-2-HC, il is my opinion that none of the $2 .1 million dollars 

projected to be lost by Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy will in fact be lost when it is 

comme lally advanugeous for the new CSXT/Comail System and W&LE and to 

enter into such an alliance. 

The most imporunt sutions affec"*d by such an alliance will include Canton, 

Mingo Junction, and Steubenville. OH, and Clairton, PA. Following the Conrail 

transaction, all of ihese sutions will continue to be served by W&LE and by the new 

Norfolk Southem/Comail System, but none will be served by the new CSXT/Conrail 

System. For that reason, it will be in the commercial interests of both W&LE and 

the new CSXT/Comail Sysiem to create a commercial alliance in order to compete 

for traffic originating or tenninating at these sutions. by "stepping into 

W&LE/Norfblk Southem's shoes " Thus, Mr. Thompson's projected annual losses of 

$2 1 million are uiUUcely to occur. 

6. Norfolk Southern/Conrail Single Svstem Service 

As shown by Table JHW-WLE-1, Mr. Thompson's Loss Study projected that 

annual revenues of $0.2 million would be lost by W&LE to single system service 

provided by the Norfolk Southem/Comail combination. Given the indicated shipper 

preference foi such single system service. I accept Mr. Thompson's finding that $0.2 

millicn will be lost, for the movements shown on Atuchment JHW-WLE-2-HC. 
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7. NSCR vs. W &LE Single Svstem Service 

According to Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy. any W&LE movement which 

would be subjected to competition from NSCR single system service after tfie Comail 

u-ansaction would be lost. The largest example of such traffic shown by Atuchment 

JHW-WLE-2-HC IS beiween [[[ )]]. OH. and [[[ ]]]. OH. 

consisting of [[[ )]] cars of scrap generating [[[ ]]] of revenue annually. 

Prior to the ConraU transaction. Martins Ferry is served by ConraU, CSXT, and 

W&LE, while Steubenville is served by Conrail and W&LE. After tfie Comail 

u-ansaction, the Norfolk Souihem/Comail combination will "step into Comail's 

shoes." and provide the same single system service in competition with W&LE that 

was provided by Comail. 

Given two single system service competitors and the fact lhat W&LE has 

already capmred a share of u-affic in tfiese markets. 1 have judged tfiat W&LE single 

system service could lose as much as one-half of the traffic to NSCR's single system 

service. However. W&LE's existing marketplace position in these traffic flows may, 

in fact, permit W&LE to reum ail of its traffic on ceruin movemenis. such as the 

one from Martins Ferry to Steubenville. because the new Norfolk Southem/Conrail 

Sysiem again merely "steps into Comail's shoes." In order to be conservative, 

however, I have projected lhat one-half of the toul of $0.2 million projected by Mr. 

Thompson's Loss Smdy would be lost. 

8. NSCR Competition 

Pnmarily in the Pittsburgh markets, rail competition is being provided by 

Comail, CSXT. and tfie Norfolk Soutfiem/W&LE combination, prior to the ComaU 
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transaction. Based on tfie Norfolk Souihem Rail Traffic Diversion Smdy tfiat I 

prepared. I b-lieve tfiat tfie Pittsburgh market is split about evenly beiween the tfu-ee 

competitors. Following the combination of ConraU's operations in the Pittsburgh area 

witfi tfie Norfolk Soutfiem. it is my view that tfie Norfolk Soutfiem'W&LE Pittsburgh 

market traffic will be redistributed among die two surviving major systems - namely, 

the Nortblk Southern/ComaU combination and CSXT. 

Accordingly, as a result of Norfolk Soutfiem's portion of the Comail 

iransaction. it is my judgment that one-half of tfie $3.5 million W&LE revenue loss 

claimed by Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy. or S1.7 million, wil' be lost as a result of 

the competition provided by the Norfolk Souihem/Comail combination. However, 

the remainder of the W&LE's traffic loss has already been considered by the CSXT 

Rail Traffic Diversion Smdy. as is described by CSXT's traffic expert V.̂ imess Mr. 

Howard A. Rosen, which I have reprtxiuced from W&LE's work papers WLE 00(X)5-

.MKT-HC as AttachiTient JHW-WLE 5-HC. 

D. Mr. Pinkerton's Projections Are Inflated 

W&LE's Witness Pmkenon presents an additional set of projections of W&LE's 

carload, intermodal, and revenue losses, which exceed even tfiose provided by Mr. 

Thompson's greatly oversuted Loss Smdy. Mr Pinkerton then uses his own traffic 

projections in order to show "...the resulting subsun'ual negative impacts upon W&LE's 

profit, cash flow, and financial posuion... ' (Pinkerton, P?ge 1) 

As I show m this section of my Venfied Sutement, Mr. Pinkerton's Loss Smdy does 

not track either with Mr Thompson's Loss Smdy or with the W&LE Five Year Plan. In my 

opinion. .Mr. Pinkerton's projections are so overly inflated, with linle basis in fact, tfiat they 
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should be wholly disregarded by the Board. 

1. W&LE's Five Year Plan 

According to Mr Pinkerton. W&LE's/"/ve Year Plan, FY 1997-FY 2001 is 

conuined in Appendix B of his Sutement. M'- Pinkerton described his use of the 

Five Year Plan as follows: 

"The framework for assessing the impaci of the proposed NS-CXST-CR 

transaction upon the W&LE is to compare the perfonnance of W&LE to its 

most receni Five Year Plan which was developed in October 1996. That plan 

incorporates all of the restmcmred fmancing artangements negotiated by the 

new W&LE owner/managers in FY 1994 and it also inclu Jes car load 

projections by commodity based upon the ir formation available one year ago. 

The complete Five Year Plan is atuched as Appendix B." (Pinkerton, Pages 

11-12) 

The carload anu revenue projections by commodity in the Five Year Plan 

referted to by Mr. Pinkerton are conuined in Appendix B. Page 36 of Mr. 

Pinkerton's Sutement Anachment JHW-WLE-6 summarizes W&LE's acmal uaffic 

volume and revenue for tfie years FY 1992 ihrough FY 2001 from that document. As 

shown by Anachment JHW-WLE-6. W&LE's acmal u-affic averaged 100, 871 

carloads for the years FY 1992 ihrough FY 1996, with a deviation around that 

average of not more than 15% per year throughout that five-year time period. 

According to the Five-Year Plan's projections, however, W&LE's carloads will 

increase from tfiat five-year average of 100.871 carloads to 191,780 in FY 2001, an 
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increase of 90%. 

Similarly, as also shown by Atuchment JHW-WLE-6. W&LE's net line- haul 

revenues averaged $32.3 million for the five-year period, FY 1992 through FY 19%, 

with higher or lower deviations of not more than 10% in any one year. In contrast, 

W&LE's Five Year Plan projects net linehaul revenues of $47,6 million in FY 2001, 

an increase of 47% above the five year average for FY 1992 through FY 1996. 

It is my experience that projections such as the carload and revenue projections 

conuined in the W&LE Five Year Plan are referred to by railroad planners as 

"hockey stick" projections, because of their sudden spurt upward from historical 

performance levels to significantly higher results. It is also r.iy ex|")erience that such 

"hockey stick" projections must be reviewed with great skepticism in order to assess 

their realism in the marketplace. Despite Nort'olk Southem's intenogatones, W&LE 

has not provided any basis for the carload, intermodal. or net lineliaul revenue 

projections conuined in its Five Year Plan. One Norfolk Souihem intenogator) 

sought to determine the methodology and sources of dau used to develop the Five 

Year Plan projections W&LE's response, however, merely referted back to the 

same Five Year Plan witfiout further explanation. Not producing documenution to be 

tested in this proceeding is umesponsive. Bul to then calculate financial harm to the 

W&LE based on a set of such undocumented and untested financial projections is not 

a reasonable approach. 

Il is noteworthy that W&LE offered a much lower, more realistic set of 

carload and revenue projections in its May 10, 1994 presenution to ils lenders, which 

I have reproduced as Anachment JHW-WLE-7-HC. As shown, tfiat 1994 Five Year 
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Plan projected FY 1999 carioads of 100,600 and revenue of S33.0 million, both of 

which are more consisteni with W&LE's acmal average FY 1992 through FY 1996 

performance of 100,871 carioads and $32.3 million of revenue lhan are the October 

7996 Five Year Plan projections used by Mr Pinkerton The benefii lo Mr. 

Pinkerton from using the more inflated projections was, of course, a companion 

inflation of his sutement of claimed harm to W&LE resulting from the Comail 

transaction. Conversely, i i "r. Pinkerton had used the lower iraffic projections 

conuined in W&LE's 1994 Five Year Plan - which appears to have provided the 

basis for its 1994 refinancing agreement - il is my opinion that Mr. Pinkerton's 

traffic loss projections would have been reduced accordingly. 

2. Mr. Pinkerton's Traffic Loss Projections 

Acccrding to Mr Pinkerton, his Traffic Loss Projections are based on the 

following: 

"The approach taken in my analysis is based upon a micro perspective on the 

traffic flows of the W&LE before and after the proposed transaction, 

compared lo the macro, waybill sample perspective used in the smdies of the 

applicants In contrast to other smdies submitted and referenced in the 

applicants' filings regarding traffic diversions and impacts upon other railroads 

and shippers not involved in the iransaction, my car load loss projections for 

W&LE are based upon analysis of sf)ecific customers, commodities, origins, 

destinations, rate ieveis. intermediate and short-mn costs, and operating plans 

described by tfie NS and CSXT in their application... " 

"Car load loss projections were developed surting with the analysis performed 

60 

P-784 



by Mr. Reginald Thompson using 1996 dau (see Sutements by L. Parsons and 

R. Thompson). The estimates made by Mr. TTiompson first were confirmed, 

and tfien adjusted to reflect potential growth through FY 2001 for the 

customers and movemenis involved. In addition, I performed an independent 

assessment of the intermodal losses and general merchandise commodities, 

including the potential for diversion to tmck in W&LE's service territory." 

(Pinkerton, Page 9) 

Later in his Sutemem, Mr. Pinkerton describes his approach somewhat 

differentfy as follows: 

"Carload loss projections were developed starting with the smdy prepared by 

Mr. Reginald Thompson (included and described in deuil in Sutements of Mr. 

L. Parsons and R. Thompson). In that smdy Mr. Thompson examined all of 

W&LE's existing business ir the context of the nerwork changes and operaiing 

plans described in the proposed NS-CSXT-CR u-ansaction Based upon my 

review of that smdy and extensive interviews with Mr. Thompson I concur 

with his conclusions regarding the customer - commodity - origin - destination 

combinations that will be affected. Further. I concur with his assessment of 

recent losses that have occuned that, though prior .o implemenution of the 

plans described in the applicants' materials, are properly attributed to the 

impact of the proposed transaction." 

"In order lo calculate car load losses for FY 1«)99, FY 2000, and FY 2001 tfie 

projections in Mr. Thompson's smdy w>̂ re adjusted by the growth shown in 

the Five Year Plan for each commodity group, starting with FY 1997. The 

resulting losses are presented in Table 4 and Figure 1 on the following pages. 
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Car load looses reach 25.243 in FY 2001 out of a planned toul of 128,664 or 

19.6%...." (Pmkenon, Pages 12 - 13) 

I have reviewed all of Mr. Pinkerton's Verified Sutement and all of tfie 

W&LE work papers and responses to Norfolk Soutfiem's Discovery Requests. 

Having done so, I found not one shred of evidence to support Mr. Pinkerton's claim 

that he a.nalyzed "...specific customers, commodities, origins, destinations, rate 

level . ." (P.nkerton, Page 9) in his Traffic Analysis. Indeed, from my review. 1 

believe that Mr. Pinkerton's approach to his traffic analysis simply look Mr. 

Thompson's greatly oversuted Loss Smdy. adjusted Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy for 

the growth shown in the Five Year Plan and then, if he believed it to be desirable, 

Mr. PirJcerton inflated to even greater traffic volume and revenue losses than had 

been included in Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy or in W&LE's five Year Plan, in order 

to show a greater adverse impaci of the Conrail iransaction on the W&LE. 

In order to compare the u-affic Loss Smdy presented by Messrs. Thompson 

and Pinkerton. I prepared Anachment JHW-WLE-8 which identified separately tfiose 

commodities for which Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy projected annual revenue losses 

of greater tfian Sl.O million. As shown by Atuchment JHW-WLE-8. Mr. Pinkerton's 

toul projected amiual losses of 25,243 carloads exceed Mr. Thompson's toul 

projected annual carload losses of 16,444 carloads by 8,799 carloads, or by about 

54%. Similarly, having applied his own "metfiodology." Mr. Pinkerton's projected 

amiual net revenue losses of $15.0 million exceed those of Mr. Thompson's Loss 

Smdy of $12.7 million, by an additional $2.3 mUlion. 

One of the best Ulusû tions of Mr Pinkerton's inflation of results is his 

expansion of Mr. Thompson's claimed revenue losses for tfie W&LE "Phantom 
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Train." This is tfie Norfolk South ;m train that was actually operated via the W&LE 

for only about a six week ume penod in early 1997, for which Mr. Thompson 

claimed an annual revenue loss of $3.6 million. As shown by Atuchment JHW-

WLE-8, Mr. Pinkerton extended such intermodai revenue losses to $4.5 million in FY 

2001, an increase of $0.9 million above the $3.6 million loss from the "Phantom 

Train" projected by Mr. Thompson At $4.5 million of annual revenue losses, 

however, Mr. Pinkerton's inflated amount exceeded even the $4.0 million of total net 

linehaul revenue for all intermodal traffic projected to be achieved by W&LE's Five 

Year Plan (Pinkenon, Page 36) It would seem that each new W&LE analysis results 

in an ever larger "Phantom Train!" 

For the Huron Dock iron ore, Mr. Pinkerton used a similar technique in order 

to create the "Pinocchio Iron Ore" movements. As shown by Atuchment JHW-

WLE-8, Mr. Thompson's Loss Smdy projected annual losses of iron ore traffic of 

3.701 carloads and net linehaul revenue of $1.8 million. By the application of his 

"methodology." Mr. Pinkenon projected armual iron ore iraffic losses of 10,000 

carloads and $4.0 million of revenue, or annual losses that exceed those shown in Mr. 

Thompson's Loss Smdy by 6.299 carloads and revenues of $2.2 million in revenues. 

In W&LE's Five Year Plan, however, toul iron ore traffic projected in FY 2001 was 

5,116 carloads and revenue of $2.2 million, both of which are only about one-half of 

the iron ore traffic losses of 10.000 carloads and $4.0 million of revenue claimed by 

Mr. Pinkenon! 

Mr. Thompson created and claimed traffic losses from the "Phantom Train" 

that barely ran - which Mr Pinkerton further expanded through his inflated losses lo 

amounts greater tfian the traffic projections in the W&LE Five Year Plan. Similarly, 
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Mr. Thompson claimed ir'-.i ore iraffic losses tfiat are not relevant to tfie Conrail 

transaction. b-..i which were ftirtfier inflated by Mr. Pinkerton to "Pinocchio Iron 

Ore" n-.ovements. most of which nevei moved nor were even projected to be moved 

in W&LE's Five Year Plan! 

In short. Mr. Pinkerton's increased iraffic loss claims even furtfier inflated tfie 

greatly oversuted traffic losses conuined in Mr. Thompson s Smdy. As discussed 

eariier in my Sutement. I projected W&LE's annual traffic losses as a result of tfie 

Norfolk Soutfiem portion of tfie Comail transaction to be $2.0 million based on 

W&LE's own traffic dau for FY 1996. It is tfiat S2.0 million annual impaci tfiat tfie 

Board should adopt in this proceeding, instead of tfie greatly overstated $12.7 million 

amiual losses projected by Mr. Thompson s Smdy. and instead of the even greater 

$15.0 million annual losses claimed by Mr Pinkerton. 

E. W&LE's Requested Conditions Are Not Related To The Conrail 
Transaction 

Using tfiree different witnesses. W&LE has presented tfiree wish lists of requested 

condiuons. all of which are oppormnislic. and none of which are related lo tfie Comail 

transaciion, Mr. Parsons presents a list of twelve such conditions in his Suiemtnl, Mr. Wait 

presents a list of ten requested conditions m his Sutement. while Mr. Thompson presents in 

his Statement a list of eight requested conditions for which he has quantified gains. The 

following list of requested conditions is from Mr. Wait s Statement: 

1. Access to Chicago 

2. Access to Toledo 

3. Access to Erie, PA 

64 

P-788 



4. Operation (and lease to own) of the Randall Secondarv 

5. Operation (and lease to own) of the Huron Branch 

6. Trackage rights on CSXT from Benwood to Brooklyn Jet. 

7. Use of W&LE Routes lo Provide Congestion Relief 

8. Stone Traffic - various trackage rights requests 

9. Access to Wheeling Pittsburgh Sieel at Allenport. PA 

10 Trackage righis on CSXT New Castle Subdivision 

So far as I have been able lo determine from W&LE's work papers. Mr Thompson 

i-nade no anempt to quantify conditions requested by Mr Wait that access to Erie. PA. 

operation of the Randall Secondarv . or the use of W&LE rouies to provide congestion relief 

Mr. Thompson did. however, suggest as his own condition, which he quantified (but which 

was not refened to either by Mr. Parsms or by Mr Wait), that Norfolk Southem should 

assume tfie P&WV lease payments Similariy. Mr. Parsons suggested as conditions irackage 

rights and commercial access to both Reserve Iron & Meul and lo Weinon Steel, and to 

"reverse joint facility maintenance obligations." none of which were discussed by Mr Wail 

or quantified b\ Mr. Thompson. 

None of conditions requested by eitfier of those tfiree W&LE witnesses are related lo 

the Comail transaciion. None are related to a showing of competitive harm that results from 

the Comail transaction, and none of tJic markets affected by the proposed conditions have 

been shown to experience competitive harm as a result of the Conrail iransaction. For 

example. W&LE does not now have direct access to Chicago or Toledo, but has indirect 

access via a connecting cartier. Following uie Comail transaction, although the connection 

itself may change for some traffic. W&LE will continue to have indirect access to those 

markets via a connecting cartier. Thus, tfie requested conditions are not related to the 
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Conrail transaction. 

Witfi the sole exception of the Huron Dock. W&LE has no existing access to any of 

the affected markets. As I discussed earlier in my Sutement. it is tfie potential expiration of 

W&LE s five-year lease for the Huron Dock - not the Comail transaction ~ which will 

deiermine whether or not W&LE continues to serve that facility. For this reason. I conclude 

that this requested condition is also not related to or by the Conrail transaction. 

F. W&LE Is A Failing Railroad. With or W ithout The Conrail 
Transaction 

Using W&LE's and Wheeling Corporation audited financial sutements for FY 1991 

through FY 1997. I have reviewed W&LE's historic eamings performance. Atuchment 

JHW-WLE-9 shows W&LE's operaiing income/losses and ils net income/losses for that 

seven-year time period From my review , it is my conclusion lhat W&LE's poor operaiing 

performance, compounded by its highly leveraged capiul strucmre. has produced little net 

income, which demonstrates that W&LE is a failing railroad, with or without the Conrail 

transaction. 

The Board is aware lhat W&LE's financial condition is not good, as recognized in its 

Decision of October 29. 1997 m STB Docket No. AB-227 (Sub-No lOX) which permitted 

the abandonment of the Massillon Branch: 

"W&LE has requested expedited handling of this petition and requests lhat the 

exemption be made effective by November 1. 1997, c. soon thereafter. 

W&LE sutes tfiat. because its fmancial condition has deteriorated sharply 

since last year, the money that il expects lo receive from salvage of the track 

materials is viul to its shon-term viability ..." (Page 5) 
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Although W&LE's financial condition may have "deteriorated sharply since last 

year." W&LE's financial difficulty is not a recent event, as suted by Emst and Young LLP 

in W&LE's 1995 Audited Financial Statements: 

"Management continues their plans to improve the financial position and 

results of operations of the Company, which included restmcmring us initial 

credit agreement with the lenders, settling all remaining issues with N'S. 

securing a grant from the Sute of Ohio, and purchasing ceruin railway asseis 

by another subsidiarv- of The Wheeling Corporalion. These transactions were 

completed during the year ended June 30. 1995. In addition, management's 

plans include ongoing efforts to improve oi">erating revenue, seek additional 

grants from sute anci federal sources, and to control operating expenses 

.Management expects, although it can not be assuned. that cash flows to be 

generated from operations wil! be sufficient to meet its financial 

obligations as they come due." (W&LE 1995 Audited Financial Statements. 

Page 7; emphasis added) 

It is my opinion that the Comail transaction will have no significant effeci on 

W&LE As shown in this Verified Sutement. the Norfolk Southem portion of the Comail 

iransaction will reduce W&LE's annual revenues by not more than $2.0 million, but ihat 

loss will be partially offset by the $0.5 million revenue gam from the CSXT ponion of the 

Comail transaction, which was presented by the CSXT Traffic Smdy in the Railroad Control 

.Application (CSX/NS-IS. Page S3). If W&LE were to lose S1.5 million of ils annual 

revenue stream, tfiat would amount to less lhan 5% of its toul revenue base and is of such 

small magnitude as to be non-life threatening, as the operating income impacts of such a 

revenue loss (after considenng W&LE's associated cost reductions) will have no material 
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effect on W&LE's financial viability. 

W&LE's receni experience witfi the Wheeling Pittsburgh Steel strike, as described by 

Mr Parsons, should be considered: 

'To date we remain in compliance with our lenders, despite severe recent 

losses due to a 10 1/2 month strike by our largest customer Wheelmg 

Pittsburgh Steel I believe it is a remarkable success story that the W&LE 

could susuin tfie loss of 25% of its traffic base for almosi a year and '.urvive 

while coniinuing to provide excellent service to its shippers " (Parsons. Page 

10; emphasis added) 

As I have described, tfie W&LE was conceived as a high risk/high reward 

transaction That W&LE's promoters and investors lost their bet is shown by W&LE's poor 

earnings pertbrmance subsequent to its sUrt up The W&LE is a failing railroad, but the 

fomm for resolving the fumre of W&LE should not be lhat of the Comail transaction before 

the Board, for. as 1 have shown, the impact ofthe Transaction on the W&LE's financiai 

posiiion will not be life threatening. 

rv. ANN ARBOR-S: RESPONSIVE APPLICATION .\ND REOLTST FOR 
CONDITIONS BY ANN ARBOR ACOUISITION CORPORATION 

A. Conclusions 

In support of Ann Arbor's request for condiiions. its President, Mr. Evert O. 

Enckson, estimates annual revenue losses of approximately $2,250,000 that he claims 

••...will be diverted by NSR and CSXT... " Of tfiis toul. Mr. Erickson claims revenue 

losses of $500,000 from tfie loss of Yuma Sand traffic destined to Cleveland plus $1,750.00 

from the loss of automotive traffic originating at Milan and Toledo, 
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I have reviewed all of tfie iraffic claimed to be diverted by Mr. Enckson and. in my 

opmion. none of tfiat iraffic will be diverted away from Arm Arbor bv Norfolk 

Southem/Comail or by CSXT/Comail as a result of the Comail transaction. 

From my review of tfie "affected" u-affic, I believe it is apparent tfiat Ann Arbor has 

esublished its commercial position in the marketplace due lo several factors: the reduced 

circuity of its line when compared with lines of Norfolk Soutfiem. CSXT, or Comail. us 

supenor switching location adjacent to Chrysler's automotive plan' in Toledo: and 

demonstrated shipper preference for its winning price/service bid-̂  ' r iraffic The Comail 

transaction, in itself, makes no changes to any of these factors Accordingly, none of Ann 

.'Arbor s claimed revenue losses of $2,250,000 can properly be said to result from tfie Comail 

transaction. 

I have also reviewed Mr. Meador's Verified Sutement conceming Norfolk Soutfiem's 

potentially reduced use of its Milan to Toledo trackage rights over Ann Arbor. Altfiough 

Norfolk Southem projects that some continuing use will be made of these trackage righis. 

even if all of Ann Arbor's $800,000 amiual receipts for Nortblk Southem's use were losi by 

Ann Arbor (and without considenng any of the related costs which Ann Arbor would no 

longer incur). Ann Arbor's financial viability would not be impaired Compared with Ann 

Arbor's 1996 income from railway operations of Sl.727.495. tfie loss of all $800,000 of 

annual receipts from Norfolk Soutfiem's uackage nghts, as offset by my estimated reduction 

of $640,000 of Ann Arboi's related costs, would not have a material effeci on Ann Arbor s 

financial viability. Therefore, it is my opinion lhat. in the aggregate, the Comail transaction 

will have no significani financial effeci on Ann Arbor. 
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B. Ann Arbor's \ uma Sand Traffic Will Not Be Diverted 

According to Mr Erickson: 

"Ann Arbor cunently participates in a three-canier move of sand originating 

at Yuma. Michigan and destined to Cleveland. Ohio The traffic now moves 

TSBY to Ann Arbor. Ann Arbor to Toledo, and CRC to destination Ann 

Arbor generates approximately $500,000 in annual revenues from its 

participation in this traffic. As a result of the CRC acquisition. CSXT will 

gam direct access to the shipper at Cleveland Consequently, after the 

transaction, the traffic may move TSBY to Arm Pere, Michigan and CSXT to 

Cleveland Since CSXT will be able to handle this lra» ; in a two-line move 

as opposed to the cunent three-line move, Ann Arbor sunds to lose all of iis 

revenues from this traffic." (Erickson. Page 5; emphasis added) 

I considered the Yuma Sand traffic record trom ihe 1995 Carload Waybill Sample in 

the Norfolk Southem Rail Traffic Diversion Smdy that I prepared. I judged none of the 

Yuma Sand traffic divertible to the combined Norfolk Southem/Comail System because the 

TSBY does not cormect directly with Conrail at Ann Arbor The Comail transaction will not 

change the position of the two caniers as Norfolk Southem will merely "step into Comail's 

shoes." and. therefore, such a diversion cannot be attributed to the Comail transaction, even 

if i ' could physically occur. In fact, following the Comail transaction, the combined Norfolk 

Southem'Comail System will have everv commercial incentive to continue to move tlic 

Yuma Sand traffic in conjunction with the Ann Arbor to the Cleveland destinauon, in the 

face of potential competition from the CSX r/Comail combination. 

It IS m> opinion that the CSXT/Comail route following the Comail iransaction will 

not be successful in attracting the Yuma Sand traffic, because to do so, TSBY, the 
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originating cartier, would have to accept a shorthaul and because of the relative circuitry of 

the CSXT/Comail route via Ann Pere, MI, 

The combined CSXT/Comai'i route between Howell/Ann Pere. MI and Cleveland is 

224 miles, which is 53 miles longer tfian tfie competing 171 mile TSBY/Ann Arbor/Comail 

route from Howell/Ann Pere to Cleveland. Thus, the 53 mile longer CSXT/Conrail route 

subsequent lo the Comail transaction will have circuity of tfiirty-one percent, which 

disadvanuges tfiat route compared witfi the joint TSBY/Ann Arbor./Comail route at presem. 

Because the Yuma Sand traffic is low in per carload revenue, tfie joint CSXT/Conrail route's 

circuity disadvanuge is of considerable economic significance. 

Mr Erickson suted tfiat Yuma Sand traffic "may" move via tfie CSXT/Conrail route 

to Cleveland after tfie Comail transaction. For all of tfie reasons discussed, it is my opimon 

tfiat the CSXT/Comail combination will not divert the Yuma Sand u-affic away from the Ann 

Arbor/Norfolk Soutfiem/ComaU route, as a result of tfie Comail tfansaction. 

C. Milan Automotive Traffic Will Not Be Diverted 

Mr. Erickson's rationale for tfie loss of tfie Milan, MI auiomotive tfaffic is as 

follows: 

"AA also participates m automotive craffic originated by NSR in Milan, 

Michigan Some of tfiis traffic is currentfy switched by NSR to Ann Arbor for 

movement to Toledo Al Toledo, Ann Arbor interchanges the traffic with 

eitfier CSXT for movement to LouisvUle, Kenmcky or CRC for movement to 

Chicago, where il is interchanged for destination to St. Paul. Minnesou. Witfi 

th? acquisition of tfie CRC line between Toledo and Chicago and given NSR's 

cunent route west from Milan, tfiere will be no ftirther need for Ann Arbor's 
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switching operation. After the CRC acquisilion. NSR will also have a single 

line route to Louisville. Altfiough tfie NSR route will be more circuitous than 

tfie Ann Arbor-CSXT joint-line route. NSR will undoubtedly favor us own 

route and be unwilling to forward traffic to its arch competitor " (Erickson. 

Page 6) 

At Milan, the automotive facUity is located on Norfolk Souihem. although it is open 

to Ann Arbor via switch. The obvious point is that, because Norfolk Souihem directly 

serves lhat automotive facility now, Norfolk Soutfiem has no "need" for Ann Arbor's 

switching operation at Milan at tfiis tune, prior lo tfie ComaU transaction. Similarly, because 

the Comail transaction will have no effect on Ami Arbor's swiiching operation at Milan, the 

Nortolk Soutfiem/Comail combination will have no ' need" for Ann Arbor's switchmg 

operation at Milan following the Comail transaciion. 

Neither Mr. Erickson's Sutement noi his work pape's provide tfie amount of revenue 

associated with his projection of .\im Arbor's traffic losses at Milan. The only work papers 

provided to us by Ann Arbor tfiat dealt with tfie Milan traffic are AA-HC-027 tfirough 031, 

which are reproduced as .'\ppendix JHW-AA-2-HC. The deuiled movement records are. 

based on tfieir revenue date, for the month of September 1997 Dunng September 1997, 

Aim Arbor moved tfie [[( ]]] carloads of an'omoiive pans from Milan to Comail for tfie Sl. 

Paul. MN destination, and [[[ ]]] carloads from Milan lo CSXT for the Louisville. KY 

destination, or a toul of seventeen carloads. Extrapolated to an annual basis, the traffic 

refened to by Mr. Erickson louls ([( ]]] carloads and [([ ]]] of revenue. 

Several years ago. Ann Arbor and Conraii made a joi.ii louie bid for the Milan lo Sl. 

Paul iraffic which underbid Nrrtolk Souihem direct, as tfie joint line .\nr. Arbor/Comail bid 

VI as judged by the shipper m the marketplace to provide a better price/service package. 
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After the Comail transaction. Ann Arbor may elect to bid jointfy with the 

CSXT/Comail combination or with Canadian .National in competition with any bid by the 

Norfolk Southem/Comail combination, and the Comail transaciion will not preclude either of 

those Aim Arbor altemauves. Indeed, given Ann Arbor's curtent success at underbidding 

Norfolk Southem. and the continued availabilitv of Arm Arbor's switch altemative al Milan, 

it is my opinion lhat Ann Arbor will not lose any of this traffic or its associated annual 

revenue of [[[ ]]) as a result of the Comail iransaction. 

For movements from Milan to Louisville. Mr. Erickson sutes ihat. following the 

Comail transaction, Norfolk Southerti will "also have a single line route to Louisville." That 

is tme. but Norfolk Southem already has such a single line route, which involves a slow and 

high cost switching move via CSXT to the destination plant. For this reason, the shipper 

prefers the combined Ann Arbor/CSXT joint line route, which generates annual revenue of 

[[[ ]]]. As a result of competuion in the marketplace, the Ann Arbor/CSXT joint 

route may. in tfie fumre. lose iraffic to the Nortblk Souihem route in conjunction with tfie 

CSXT switch move at destination But because the Comail transaction has no effect on the 

compelitive positions of Norfolk Souihem, CSXT. or Ann Arbor in this conidor. il would 

be wholly inappropriate lo anribute to the Comail transaciion any loss of this automotive 

traffic by Ann Arbor, 

D. Toledo's Automotive Traffic Will Not Be Lost 

Conceming Ann Arbor's automotive traffic in Toledo. Mr. Erickson sUtes: 

"A subsuntial portion of this traffic is switched by Ann Arbor to CRC in 

Toledo and CRC linehauls the traffic to Chicago for interchange with wesiem 

railroads. Ann Arbor also switches iraffic lo .NSR for linehaul movemenis to 
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Winston Salem. Nortfi Carolina and Atianu. Georgia. NSR currentfy b.as no 

auiomotive loading facility in tfie Toledo area. As a result of the CRC 

•ransaction, NSR is to acquire CRC's Toledo Automotive Tenninal (Airiine 

Yard). Once NSR acquires tfie Auiomotivp Terminal. NSR will have no need 

for Ann Arbor's swiiching service on traffic curtentfy linehauled by NSR. In 

addition. NSR will acquirf e CRC route from Toledo to Chicago and, 

tfierefore, will also be able to divert the automotive traffic Ann Arbor 

curtentfy switches to CRC for movement to or over Chicago. Most, if not all, 

of tfiis uaffic switched by Ann Arbor in Toledo could easily be diverted by 

NSR once it owns tfie CRC Automotive Terminal u: Toledo and die raU line to 

Chicago." (Erickson. Pages 5-6) 

Ann Arbor estimated tfie toul amiual volume of this traffic as [(( 11) carloads, 

but provided no work papers to indicate tfie specific iraffic volumes and revenues which 

would be lost by destination as a result of the projected loss of all of its automotive switch 

traffic in Toledo, altfiough Mr. Erickson does refer to "...a substantial portion of tfiis 

uaffic..." as being related Comail linehauls of traffic to Chicago for interchange witfi tfie 

westem railroads For such iraffic. however, as Mr. Erickson sutes. Conrail already has an 

automotive terminal at .Airiine Yard, from which Comail could directfy load tfie affected 

traffic for movement to tfie Chicago Gate .vay Therefore, Ann Arbor does not need to 

participate in this uaffic today except lhat tfie shipper has elected tfiat Ann Arbor do so, 

probabl> because Ann Arbor's automotive loading facility is located adjacent to tfie shipper's 

plant, which avoids tfie cost of draying automobiles several miles to Conrail's facility at 

Airline Yard. Notfiing in tfie Comail transaction will change Ann Arbor's position on this 

iraffic and iis alternative routes witfi the CSXT/Comail combination and Canadian National 
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wUl be available. 

Similariy, Ann Arbor's role on traffic currentfy line-hauled by Norfolk Southem to 

Winston Salem, NC and Atfanu, GA will be determined in tfie competiti-e marketplace At 

present, prior to the Conrail transaction, either Ann Arbor or Comail could provide 

automotive loading services to Norfolk Southem in Toledo. After tfie Comail transaction. 

Ann Arbor could join with CSXT/Conrail to compete for this traffic. Given the shipper's 

demonstrated preference for the Ann Arbor to perform its switching in Toledo and the 

conlinued, fumre availability of a CSXT/Comail rouie in conjunciion with Ann Arbor, it is 

my opinion none of Ann Arbor's traffic will be diverted because of the Comail transaction. 

75 

P-799 



VERIFICATION 

John H. Williams, sutes under penalty of perjury tfiat he is Presidem of the 

Woodside Consulting Group, Inc, which is located in Menlo Park. California, thai he is 

authorized to file and verify tfie foregoing rebunal verified sutemem in STB Finance Docket 

No, 33388 on behalf of tfie applicants, tfiat he has careftilly examined all tfie sutements in 

the foregoing verified sutement, that he has knowledge of the facts and matters suted 

therein, and that all represenutions set forth therein are tme and correct to the best of his 

knowledge, information and belief. 

Dated: /'i-;.ni^t II 1^"^' 

John H. WUliams 
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ATTACHMENT JHW-CMA-l 

Conrail Chemicals & Plastics Traffic. 1995 
(Carloads in Thousands) 

Received 
:ode 
28 

Description 
Chemicals & Allied 

Terminatine Delivered Terminatine Delivered Total 

Products 40.6 44.8 134.9 13.8 234.1 

29 Petroleum & Coal 
Products 73.7 15.7 20.7 1.3 111.4 

48 Hazardous Wastes u ±Q OA _ i l 

Total 114.8 63.2 156.6 15.2 349.8 

Percent of Total 32.8^ 18.1% 44.8% 4.3% 100.0% 

Source: Conrail Annua! Repon of Freight Commodity Statistics. 1995 
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Attachment JHW-CMA-2-HC 
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